
 

 

North Devon Council 
Brynsworthy Environment Centre 
Barnstaple 
North Devon   EX31 3NP 
 

K. Miles 

Chief Executive. 
 

 
 

To: All Members of the Council 
and Chief Officers 

 
NOTE: PLEASE NOTE THAT PRAYERS WILL BE SAID AT 6.20 P.M. PRIOR TO THE 
COUNCIL MEETING FOR ANY MEMBER WHO WISHES TO ATTEND 
 

 COUNCIL MEETING 
 
YOU ARE HEREBY SUMMONED to attend a  meeting of NORTH DEVON COUNCIL to 
be held in the Crematorium Meeting Room - North Devon Crematorium on 
WEDNESDAY, 24TH NOVEMBER, 2021 at 6.30 pm. 
 
(NOTE: From the 7 May 2021, the law requires all councils to hold formal meetings 
in person. The council is also ensuring that all venues used are Covid secure and 
that all appropriate measures are put in place. There are a limited number of 
spaces available for members of the public to attend. Please check the Council’s 
website for the latest information regarding the arrangements that are in place and 
the requirement to book a place 2 working days prior to the meeting  Taking part in 
meetings (northdevon.gov.uk) 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Chief Executive 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

1.   Apologies for absence   

2.   To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 29 September, 
5 and 20 October 2021 (attached)  (Pages 13 - 34) 

3.   Chair's announcements   

4.   Business brought forward by or with the consent of the Chair   

5.   Replies to any questions submitted by the Public and/or to receive Petitions under 
Part 4, Council Procedures Rules, Paragraphs 8 and 9 of the Constitution   

Public Document Pack

https://www.northdevon.gov.uk/council/councillors-and-committees/taking-part-in-meetings/
https://www.northdevon.gov.uk/council/councillors-and-committees/taking-part-in-meetings/


 
 

 
2 

 

6.   To consider motions of which notice has been submitted by Members in 
accordance with Part 4, Council Procedure Rules, Paragraph 11 of the 
Constitution   

 (a) To consider the following notice of motion by Councillor Walker 
 
“This council asks the government to bring forward legislation to make school 
uniform affordable for all. We recognise the importance of uniform and the correct 
wearing of it within schools as a social equaliser, but feel that at the moment many 
parents are struggling to buy uniform, especially with the effects of the pandemic 
and the way parents may have had to buy multiple uniform that hasn’t been worn 
much before having to be replaced. We also ask that within the school uniform 
policy that children are not penalised for minor infringements of uniform policy due 
to parental hardship or availability of the correct uniform for that child. 
 
We would like to thank all our local schools for providing thrift shops or exchange 
services within the schools and recognise that these services are invaluable.” 
 

(b) To consider the following notice of motion by Councillor Lofthouse 
 
“This council recognises that we are facing a climate emergency and that changes 
need to be made concerning the construction of new homes. Action needs to be 
taken to help secure the reaching of the government’s target of net zero by 2050. 
Furthermore we believe that it is important to apply the most recent National 
Design Guide for providing a healthy and pleasant place for our residents to live 
and work. The features in the guide are also climate friendly and will go some way 
towards the already adopted climate emergency to which this council is 
committed. 
 
Architect and engineer Maria Smith, who edited the RIBA’s Built for the 
Environment report whose demands were presented to COP26, warned that the 
whole planning system was currently weighted against building sustainably. 

“We have the knowhow, and every actor in the built environment wants to do a 
sustainable building – but the whole system is working against us,” said the Buro 
Happold director. 

https://www.bdonline.co.uk/news/make-net-zero-buildings-the-only-ones-worth-
building-architects-tell-cop/5114523.article 
 
This council requests that: 
 

(a) The government implements the RIBA’s proposals as submitted to COP 26 
without delay. This includes a requirement for the design councils’ guide to 
better placemaking to have priority as a material consideration for planning 
decisions. As part of new developments public facilities and infrastructure 
such as schools and health provisions need to be provided as an integral 
part of the initial construction. 
 

(b) All government inspectors consider a holistic approach with particular 
regard to the future consequences of climate change in the planning 
appeals process. 
 

https://www.bdonline.co.uk/news/make-net-zero-buildings-the-only-ones-worth-building-architects-tell-cop/5114523.article
https://www.bdonline.co.uk/news/make-net-zero-buildings-the-only-ones-worth-building-architects-tell-cop/5114523.article


 
 

 
3 

 

(c) New developments should include processes which will enable properties 
to have net zero CO2 emissions. Actions to include rainwater harvesting 
and storage, SUDS to include natural filtration and recycling for use within 
the development’s life, electrical power provision to be renewable with at 
least 50% being produced on site or within the immediate locality and 
developments to be provided with the infrastructure to be EV charging 
ready. 
 

(d) Building regulations include actions to make it mandatory to insulate any 
new homes or additions to existing homes to a level that meets a maximum 
energy consumption of <= 46kWh/m2/YR, with a tapering reduction for 
future homes down to <=25kwhr/m2/YR by 2030. (EuroPHitt criteria as an 
initial minimum). 
 

(e) A training program be instigated for officers and councillors that are likely to 
be involved in any form of planning and construction decisions or control, 
for the understanding and consistent application of the National Design 
Guide. 
 

(f) To consider the adoption of a SPD similar to that adopted by the Derbyshire 
Dales DC. 
https://www.derbyshiredales.gov.uk/your-council/news-and-
publications/latest-news/3382-climate-change-supplementary-planning-
document-adopted.” 

 
(c) To consider the following notice of motion by Councillor Wilkinson 

 
“This Council notes that: 

A private members bill concerning protecting our rivers and coastal waters has 
been going through Parliament. This Council is concerned about the discharge of 
untreated sewage into rivers and the sea. With our beautiful beaches being one of 
the main attractions for tourists unless reasonable steps are taken to prevent 
pollution we are concerned that there will be a real impact on residents and 
visitors to our area. Water companies admit that in 2020 alone untreated human 
waste was released directly into our waterways over 400,000 times for a total of 3 
million hours.  This might well be an underreporting of sewage discharges 
because the sector is allowed to self-report what it does and, for example, 
Southern Water has been fined for repeatedly dumping raw sewage into the seas 
along the south coast while not reporting the true amount to the Environment 
Agency. 

We understand that most, if not all, rivers in England are now polluted beyond 
legal limits with the Environment Agency rating only 14% of rivers as ‘Good’ in 
2019. Government funding to the Environment Agency to monitor river quality, and 
regulate water companies has dropped 75% since 2010/11. Our local rivers and 
beaches are threatened by further sewage discharges. The sheer volume of 
sewage and run-off entering the water means that the UK was ranked just 25th out 
of 30 EU countries for coastal water quality. 

Council resolves to  

https://www.derbyshiredales.gov.uk/your-council/news-and-publications/latest-news/3382-climate-change-supplementary-planning-document-adopted
https://www.derbyshiredales.gov.uk/your-council/news-and-publications/latest-news/3382-climate-change-supplementary-planning-document-adopted
https://www.derbyshiredales.gov.uk/your-council/news-and-publications/latest-news/3382-climate-change-supplementary-planning-document-adopted


 
 

 
4 

 

(a) Support the surfers against sewage campaign for an end to sewage 
discharge into our bathing waters by 2030. 

(b) Ask our M.P. to support all measures to prevent untreated human waste 
being released into our waterways. 

(c) Write to the Secretary of State for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs 
expressing our concerns about any discharge of raw sewage into North 
Devon rivers or our beaches  

(d) Ask the Government to make full use of the existing regulatory powers and 
restore the Environment Agency budgets in order to deliver the necessary 
oversight.” 

(d) To consider the following notice of motion by Councillor Roome  

“The UK event to promote small businesses started in 2013 and has grown 
in popularity year on year.  Council notes that Small Business Saturday 
2021 is coming up on 4th December. Small Business Saturday has grown 
into a significant event – with a record £1.1 billion spent with small 
businesses during last year’s event. As a result of the pandemic more 
people are now working from home rather than commuting to work and we 
need to continue to encourage our entrepreneurs and help them to be 
successful.  

Council recognises that this is an excellent opportunity to further promote 
our many small businesses in North Devon and to celebrate the 
contribution smaller businesses make to our economy and life in our area.  

With around 4,000 businesses in North Devon this Council believes that 
Small Businesses are the heart and soul of our communities and local high 
streets. It is only by supporting our local independent businesses that we 
can also help our local high streets, village shops and tourist industry to 
thrive.  

Council resolves to: 

(a)     Request that NDC officers work closely with local business 
organisations and smaller enterprises across North Devon to make them 
aware of Small Business Saturday and encourage them to be part of it. 

(b)     Ensure that Small Business Saturday is promoted thoroughly and 
prominently on the Council’s website, social media channels and other 
external communications. 

(c)      Continue with our year round communications campaign to shop 
locally under the slogan Live, Love, Local which helps to promote local 
small businesses and encourage residents and visitors to North Devon to 
buy local produce. Council recognizes that buying local produce reduces 
the carbon footprint and helps in the fight against climate change. 

(d)      Look for further ways to increase shopper numbers around Small 
Business Saturday and in the lead up to Christmas. 



 
 

 
5 

 

(e) Press for a speed up in the provision of superfast broadband in our 
rural areas.” 

 

7.   Declarations of Interest   

 (NB. Members only need to re-declare any interests previously declared at 
Committee and Sub-Committee meetings if the item is discussed at 
Council). 

 

8.   Chair's replies to any questions to Council by Members submitted under Part 4, 
Council Procedures Rules, Paragraph 10 of the Constitution   

9.   To agree the agenda between Part 'A' and Part 'B' (Confidential Restricted 
Information).   

PART A 

10.   Report of the Leader of the Council  (Pages 35 - 38) 

 Report by Leader of the Council (attached). 
 

11.   Questions by Members   

 Questions to the Leader or the Chair of a Committee submitted under Part 4, Council 
Procedure Rules, paragraph 10.4 of the Constitution.  

 

12.   Performance and Financial Management Quarter 2 2021-22  (Pages 39 - 68) 

 Report by Director of Resources and Deputy Chief Executive to the Strategy and 
Resources Committee on 1 November 2021 (attached). 

 

 (a)   Report by Policy Development Committee   

  To receive the report by the Policy Development Committee on 18 
November 2021 (to follow). 
 

 (b)   Report of meeting of the Strategy and Resources Committee  (Pages 69 - 
70) 

  To receive the report of the Strategy and Resources Committee held on 1 
November 2021 (attached). 
 

13.   Mid Year Treasury Management Report 2021-22  (Pages 71 - 86) 

 Report by the Director of Resources and Deputy Chief Executive to the Strategy 
and Resources Committee on 1 November 2021 (attached). 

 

 (a)   Report by Policy Development Committee   

  To receive the report of the Policy Development Committee held on 18 
November 2021 (to follow). 
 



 
 

 
6 

 

 (b)   Report of meeting of the Strategy and Resources Committee  (Pages 87 - 
88) 

  To receive the report of the Strategy and Resources Committee held on 1 
November 2021 (attached). 
 

14.   Appointment of External Auditors from 2023-24  (Pages 89 - 98) 

 Report by the Director of Resources and Deputy Chief Executive (report attached). 
 

15.   Report of Lead Member for Climate Change   

 Lead Member for Climate Change to report. 
 

16.   Report of Lead Member for the Environment  (Pages 99 - 100) 

 Report (attached). 
 

17.   Minutes of Committees   

 Council is recommended to note the schedule of Committee minutes and approve 
recommendations as listed below:  

 

 (a)   Building Control Joint Committee  (Pages 101 - 106) 

  (i) 4 November 2021 
 

 (b)   Governance Committee  (Pages 107 - 110) 

  (i) 20 October 2021 
(ii) 16 November 2021 (to follow) 

 

 (c)   Licensing and Community Safety Committee  (Pages 111 - 114) 

  (i) 19 October 2021 
 

 (d)   Planning Committee  (Pages 115 - 120) 

  (i) 13 October 2021 
 

 (e)   Policy Development Committee   

  (i) 18 November 2021 (to follow) 
 

 (f)   Strategy and Resources Committee  (Pages 121 - 134) 

  (i) 4 October 2021 
 

(ii) 1 November 2021 
(A) Minute 81 (c): Approval and Release of Section 106 Public 

Open Space Funds – Barnstaple, Chulmleigh, Newton 
Tracey and Witheridge 

(B) Minute 82: Gambling Statement of Principles 



 
 

 
7 

 

 

PART B (CONFIDENTIAL RESTRICTED INFORMATION) 

Nil. 
 
 
 

 

If you have any enquiries about this agenda, please contact Corporate and 
Community Services, telephone 01271 388253 

 
 
 

16.11.21 
 



 
 

 
8 

 

 
GUIDANCE NOTES FOR RULES OF DEBATE AT MEETINGS OF COUNCIL 
 
Part 4, Council Procedure Rules of the Constitution 
 
The basics 
 
At a meeting of Full Council, Members shall stand when speaking unless 
unable to do so and shall address the Chair. 
 
While a Member is speaking, other Members shall remain seated unless 
rising for a point of order, a point of information or in personal explanation. 
 
No speeches may be made after the mover had moved a proposal and 
explained the purpose of it until the motion has been seconded. 
 
Unless notice of motion has already been given, the Chair may require it to 
be written down and handed to him before it is discussed. 
 
When seconding a motion or amendment, a member may reserve their 
speech until later in the debate. 
 
Speeches must be directed to the question under discussion or to be 
personal explanation or point of order. 
 
A speech by the mover of a motion may not exceed 5 minutes without the 
consent of the Chair. 
 
Speeches by other Members may not exceed 3 minutes without the 
consent of the Chair, unless when the Council’s annual budget is under 
discussion, the leader of each political group on the Council may speak for 
up to 5 minutes or such longer period as the Chair shall allow. 
 
 
The rules of Question Time  
 
At a meeting of the Council, other than the Annual meeting, a Member of 
the Council may ask the Leader or the chair of a committee any question 
without notice upon an item of the report of a committee when that item is 
being received or under consideration by the Council. 

 
 



 
 

 
9 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

North Devon Council protocol on recording/filming at Council meetings 
 
The Council is committed to openness and transparency in its decision-making. 
Recording is permitted at Council meetings that are open to the public. The Council 
understands that some members of the public attending its meetings may not wish to be 
recorded. The Chairman of the meeting will make sure any request not to be recorded is 
respected.  
 
The rules that the Council will apply are:  
 

1. The recording must be overt (clearly visible to anyone at the meeting) and must 
not disrupt proceedings. The Council will put signs up at any meeting where we 
know recording is taking place.  

 
2. The Chairman of the meeting has absolute discretion to stop or suspend recording 

if, in their opinion, continuing to do so would prejudice proceedings at the meeting 
or if the person recording is in breach of these rules.  

 
3. We will ask for recording to stop if the meeting goes into ‘part B’ where the public 

is excluded for confidentiality reasons. In such a case, the person filming should 
leave the room ensuring all recording equipment is switched off. 

 
4. Any member of the public has the right not to be recorded. We ensure that 

agendas for, and signage at, Council meetings make it clear that recording can 
take place – anyone not wishing to be recorded must advise the Chairman at the 
earliest opportunity.  

 
5. The recording should not be edited in a way that could lead to misinterpretation or 

misrepresentation of the proceedings or in a way that ridicules or shows a lack of 
respect for those in the recording. The Council would expect any recording in 
breach of these rules to be removed from public view.  

 
Notes for guidance: 
 
Please contact either our Corporate and Community Services team or our 
Communications team in advance of the meeting you wish to record at so we can make 
all the necessary arrangements for you on the day.  
 
For more information contact the Corporate and Community Services team on 01271 
388253 or email memberservices@northdevon.gov.uk or the Communications Team 
on 01271 388278, email communications@northdevon.gov.uk. 



 
 

 
10 

 

 
 

 
 



 

Council - 29 September 2021 
 

1 
 

NORTH DEVON COUNCIL 
 

Minutes of a meeting of NORTH DEVON COUNCIL held at Crematorium Meeting 
Room - North Devon Crematorium on Wednesday, 29th September, 2021 at 6.30 
pm 
 
PRESENT: Members: 

 
 Councillor Biederman (Chair) 

 
 Councillors Bulled, Bushell, Cann, Chesters, Davis, Davies, Gubb, 

Henderson, Jenkins, Knight, Lane, Leaver, Lofthouse, Ley, Luggar, 
Mackie, Patrinos, Pearson, Phillips, Prowse, Roome, Saxby, 
D. Spear, L. Spear, Topham, Wilkinson, Worden, Yabsley and York 
 

 Officers: 
 

 Chief Executive and Director of Resources, Deputy Chief Executive 
and Senior Solicitor/Monitoring Officer. 
 

 

33.   APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR 
 

The Chief Executive advised that neither the Chair nor Vice-Chair were present and 
had given their apologies for this meeting.  Therefore, Council needed to appoint a 
Chair for this meeting. 
 
RESOLVED that in the absence of the Chair and Vice-Chair of Council that 
Councillor Biederman be appointed to Chair this meeting. 
 

34.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Barker, Campbell, Crabb, 
Fowler, Hunt, Lovering, Mack, Orange, Topps, Tucker and Walker. 
 

35.   TO APPROVE AS CORRECT RECORDS THE MINUTES OF THE 
MEETINGS HELD ON 21 JULY AND 26 JULY 2021 (ATTACHED) 
 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meetings held on 21 July and 26 July 2021 
(circulated previously) be approved as correct records and signed by the Chair. 
 

36.   CHAIR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

(a) Senior Solicitor and Monitoring OfficerTrevor Blatchford – retiring 
 
The Chair advised Council that Trevor Blatchford who was the Council’s Senior 
Solicitor and Monitoring Officer would be retiring from the Council this week. He 
advised Council that he had 17years of continuous service with the Council and 

Public Document Pack

Page 11

Agenda Item 2



 
Council - 29 September 2021 

 
 

 
2 

 

undertaken a number of roles including Assistant Solicitor, Head of Contentious, 
Senior Solicitor and Monitoring Officer.  He advised that he was always professional 
and a pleasure to work with.  On behalf of Council, he thanked Trevor for his service 
to the Council and wished him a long and happy retirement. 
 
Councillor Worden, Leader of the Council echoed the Chairs remarks and thanked 
Trevor for his service to the Council. 
 

37.   BUSINESS BROUGHT FORWARD BY OR WITH THE CONSENT 
OF THE CHAIR 
 

There were no items of business brought forward by or with the consent of the Chair. 
 

38.   REPLIES TO ANY QUESTIONS SUBMITTED BY THE PUBLIC 
AND/OR TO RECEIVE PETITIONS UNDER PART 4, COUNCIL 
PROCEDURES RULES, PARAGRAPHS 8 AND 9 OF THE 
CONSTITUTION 
 

There were no questions submitted by the Public and/or to receive Petitions under 
Part 4, Council Procedure Rules, Paragraphs 8 and 9 of the Constitution. 
 

39.   TO CONSIDER MOTIONS OF WHICH NOTICE HAS BEEN 
SUBMITTED BY MEMBERS IN ACCORDANCE WITH PART 4, 
COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULES, PARAGRAPH 11 OF THE 
CONSTITUTION 
 

(a) To consider the following notice of motion from Councillor Walker 
 
Councillor Worden advised that Councillor Walker was not present and requested 
that the Chief Executive provide an update on the latest position regarding Public 
Space Protection Orders in relation to dog control measures. 
 
The Chief Executive advised that at a previous Council meeting, Council had 
discussed and approved Public Space Protection Orders (PSPOs) in relation to dog 
control measures. Included within the resolution of Council was to ensure that 
systems were put in place to enforce the PSPOs such as delegating enforcement 
powers to other groups such as Parish Councils and the National Trust to issue fixed 
penalty notices. Officers were currently in process of setting up training to enable 
such groups to start enforcing the PSPOs. 
 
In response to a question, the Chief Executive advised that if he was unaware that 2 
people had already received training but would check that they had been given the 
appropriate enforcement powers. 
 

(b) To consider the following notice of motion from Councillor Patrinos 
 
Councillor Patrinos presented his notice of motion to Council. 
 

Page 12

Agenda Item 2



 
Council - 29 September 2021 

 
 

 
3 

 

It was moved by Councillor Patrinos and seconded by Councillor Lofthouse that 
“The NDC planning department has recently been the subject of unjustified criticism 
and unsubstantiated allegations. Council wishes to express its support for the 
planning department as well as all the Council’s other officers in the way they carry 
out their duty in trying circumstances.” 
 
The Chief Executive advised that it had been a particularly challenging time during 
the pandemic in relation to staffing. There had been media coverage recently 
regarding HGV vehicle driver shortages, however it was also difficult to recruit 
professional officers to the Council as previously the Council had relied on people 
relocating to the area, however as many were now working from home, this was no 
longer the case. Therefore, it was important that the Council as a whole continued to 
present the positives of the Council to make it easier to recruit staff in the future.  
There was currently a shortage of professional planning officers as many were 
moving into a consultancy role. It was anticipated that in the future that the Council 
may need to consider recruiting agency staff.  During the pandemic, the planning 
team had dealt with a substantial increase in the number of planning applications 
received with less members of staff which had resulted in planning income received 
being over £100,000 over budget.  The planning team was still one of the best 
performing teams in the region. 
 
RESOLVED that as the NDC planning department had recently been the subject of 
unjustified criticism and unsubstantiated allegations that Council wished to express 
its support for the planning department as well as all the Council’s other officers in 
the way they carry out their duty in trying circumstances. 
 

(c) To consider the following notice of motion from Councillor Tucker 
 
In the absence of Councillor Tucker, Councillor Worden presented the notice of 
motion to Council. 
 
It was moved by Councillor Worden and seconded by Councillor Davis “that the 
notice of motion be referred to the Policy Development Panel meeting in October 
2021 for consideration.” 
 
RESOLVED that the notice of motion be referred to the Policy Development Panel 
meeting in October 2021 for consideration. 
 

40.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

There were no declartaions of interest received. 
 

41.   CHAIR'S REPLIES TO ANY QUESTIONS TO COUNCIL BY 
MEMBERS SUBMITTED UNDER PART 4, COUNCIL 
PROCEDURES RULES, PARAGRAPH 10 OF THE 
CONSTITUTION 
 

There were no questions received by Members submitted under Part 4, Council 
Procedure Rules, Paragraph 10 of the Constitution. 

Page 13

Agenda Item 2



 
Council - 29 September 2021 

 
 

 
4 

 

 

42.   NORTH WEST DEVON POLICE COMMANDER UPDATE 
 

Council received a presentation by Superintendent Toby Davies, Local Police Area 
Commander for North and West Devon regarding an update on the work of the 
police in the area.  He advised that it had been a challenging past 18 months which 
include G7 planning and summer policing. There had been a lot of pent up demand 
during this period. 18 new Police Officers would be in post across the area prior to 
Christmas, some of these officers were students and others had transferred from 
other Police force areas. The new officers would located within every sector across 
the force such as Beat Manager, neighbourhood, responsive and investigative 
teams. Compared to 2019, the number of calls made to 999 had increased 
considerably, however the level of crime had decreased by 8%.  In terms of crime 
per head of population, this area had the lowest level of crime in the South West 
force area. The level of detections was amongst the highest for the area and region. 
The force had the best detection rates for domestic abuse.  The focus for the next 12 
months was the Police and Crime Commissioner’s Plan and the Community Safety 
Partnership.  Road safety initiatives would be delivered through the partnership and 
road policing was being carried out both overtly and covertly. Operation Snap was 
another initiative where the public could submit dashcam evidence of dangerous 
driving through the website.  The driver would then receive a notice of intention to 
prosecute. There would be an additional 2 speed detection officers and 2 vans in the 
North Devon area. If communities were experiencing problems with speeding, the 
police website included details on how to set up community speed watches. Anti-
social behaviour was having a bigger impact on some communities and it was 
important that it was tackled. The Government was piloting a “Street Aware” 
campaign where the public could report anonymously areas where they did not feel 
safe.  This evidence would then result in partnerships being developed in those 
areas to address the issues. Anti-social behaviour needed to be addressed by the 
police working in partnership with the local authority, health authority, parents etc.  
The Community Safety Partnership would be tackling those types of issues that were 
being identified within communities. 
 
There then followed a question and answer session. Superintendent Davies advised 
that the 18 new police officers would be located across the North and West Devon 
area.  In relation to Domestic Abuse and Domestic Violence, the police dealt with all 
incidents robustly and there was no bias on gender. There were no towns that did 
not have drugs within communities. From the information provided by communities, 
the police targeted the most dangerous first. In relation to the police crime reports 
that were provided to communities, he would look into how this information was 
presented in future to make sure that it was meaningful.  A Rural Affairs team was 
located in the area who understood the rural area and the importance of 
neighbourhood watch. The South Molton rural team were very aware of the issues of 
crime within rural areas. He advised that a joint Crime and Disorder Sub-Committee 
meeting with Torridge District Council would be held during October and suggested 
that Councillors attend this meeting. The 101 telephone line was not perfect, 
however there were other ways to contact the police such as via email.  
 

Page 14

Agenda Item 2



 
Council - 29 September 2021 

 
 

 
5 

 

The Chair thanked Superintendent Davies for attending the meeting and thanked the 
police for all of their work that they had done over the past 18 months which was 
appreciated. 
 

43.   REPORT OF THE LEADER OF THE COUNCIL 
 

Council considered and noted a report by the Leader of the Council (circulated 
previously) regarding work that had been undertaken since the last Council meeting. 
 

44.   QUESTIONS BY MEMBERS 
 

The following questions were submitted in advance of the meeting and responses 
provided by the Leader were circulated separately: 
 

(a) Question to Councillor Worden from Councillor York “Recycling Education - I 
have concerns that there is not enough importance or emphasis placed on 
educating the public on how to recycle more and reduce their waste. Please 
could you let me know what education is currently taking place? How much 
resource is being invested, in terms of money and staff time? Could plans for 
an improved programme of education be devised (along with resource 
requirements) and added to the relevant Service Plan? [Perhaps OS W&R 
#02 17/18 (‘Recycle More Project’)]  Has the education of residents in trial 
areas for 3-weekly bin collections been extended to new residents, so that the 
trial is maintaining its effectiveness?”  Councillor Worden’s response “We are 
part of the Devon wide Waste Partnership and so have run a number of 
campaigns under the Recycle Devon banner.  We also run our own 
campaigns in an effort to increase recycling and more importantly, reduce 
waste.  When the trial was started, we employed Recycle Officers to provide 
advice directly on the ground.  These were temporary contracts however and 
have since expired.  The trial itself was deemed a success at the time as the 
amount of recycling collected did increase in the chosen area.  The intention 
was that a decision would be made to roll out the trial across the district but in 
order to do that, we need to have the necessary infrastructure to be able to 
deal with the increased material.  The vehicle leasing contract has just 
commenced and we are now looking at ways to improve the process hall 
plant.  The recent DEFRA consultations may also impact on what is collected 
kerbside.  We suspended school and group visits to BEC as a result of the 
pandemic and will keep that under review.” In response to a supplementary 
question, Councillor Worden advised that along with Councillor Pearson 
would look at ways in which education could be linked to the upgrade of the 
process hall. 

 
(b) Question to Councillor Worden from Councillor York. “Seagulls - I have 

recently encountered problems with seagulls tearing open rubbish bags in 
Gloster Road, Newport, Barnstaple. It is rumoured that the development of 
Anchorwood Bank has displaced seagull colonies. After speaking to Customer 
Services, I was able to purchase and collect a gull-proof bag from Lynton 
House for £5. Please could gull-proof bags be added to the list of bags, bins 
and caddies which can be purchased online? Could gull-proof bags be given 

Page 15

Agenda Item 2



 
Council - 29 September 2021 

 
 

 
6 

 

free to residents in the narrow streets of Barnstaple where wheelie bins 
cannot be used? What would the cost implications of this measure be?”  
Councillor Worden’s response “In some areas where waste is collected in 
black bags and where seagulls or other creatures are a problem, gull guards 
have been provided free of charge.  In other areas, where problems are not 
as severe, customers may purchase bags through the customer service 
team.  The bags are not available to purchase online as we wouldn’t want 
customers that live in areas that are provided with the guards free of charge to 
purchase their own. We prefer customers to use bins rather than gull guards, 
so would prefer to limit the use of gull guards where possible in favour of 
actual bins.”  In response to a supplementary question, Councillor Worden 
advised that information regarding the provision of seagull bags could be 
included on the Councils website. 

 

45.   ILFRACOMBE HARBOUR COVE FENDERING AND 
FISHERMAN'S STORES ENHANCEMENTS 
 

Council considered a report by the Harbour Master (circulated previously) regarding 
the Ilfracombe Harbour Cove Fendering and Fisherman’s Stores Enhancements. 
 
The Deputy Chief Executive and Director of Resources advised that the Harbour 
Master had secured funding from the Marine Management Organisation of £111,580 
for the installation of fendering and installation of toilets at the Fishermen’s kiosk. 
Fenders protected the boats against the harbour. The fendering around the Cove 
area needed to be repaired which was the responsibility of the Council. After 
exhaustive research to satisfy all of the needs for the green heart wooden fendering 
protection on the Cove, only one type of protective covering could be used and there 
was only 1 UK supplier that could undertake these works. The breakdown of the 
costs were detailed in paragraph 5.2 of the report. The Council was required to 
contribute £52,070 which was best value to the Council. 
 
It was moved by Councillor Wilkinson and seconded by Councillor Bushell “that the 
recommendations in the report be adopted and that the Harbour Master be thanked 
for obtaining external funding for these works”. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 

(a) That Contract Procedure Rules be waived and the requirement to go out to 
tender be set aside in this instance to enable the Council to enter into a 
contract with Fendercare Marine Limited to purchase the Polymarine 
Wearplates required for the renovation of the Cove and Fuel Berth green 
heart wooden fenders; 

(b) That a variation to the Capital Programme of £163,650 be approved and 
that funds be released; 

(c) That the Harbour Master be thanked for obtaining external funding for 
these works. 

 

46.   STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2020/21 
 

Page 16

Agenda Item 2



 
Council - 29 September 2021 

 
 

 
7 

 

The Director of Resources and Deputy Chief Executive advised Council that the 
Governance Committee meeting that was due to be held on 27 September 2021 was 
not quorate and therefore unable to consider and make recommendations to Council 
on the adoption of the Statement of Accounts, Annual Governance Statement and 
Letter of Representation. As the Governance Committee had not received the 
External Auditors report, Council needed to decide whether to proceed with the 
consideration of these items.  It was recommended that consideration of items 14 
(a), 14(b) and 14(c) be deferred and that a special meeting of the Governance 
Committee be arranged in the third week of October 2021 to receive the External 
Auditors report followed by an Extraordinary meeting of Council to receive the 
recommendations of the Governance Committee in relation to the Statement of 
Accounts, Annual Governance Statement and Letter of Representation.   He advised 
that the Statement of Accounts were normally published at the end of September, 
however the External Auditors were still awaiting the Devon Pension fund report and 
therefore the External Auditors would not be ready to sign off the Statement of 
Accounts until October 2021. 
 
It was moved by Councillor Roome and seconded by Councillor Bushell “that the 
recommendations of the Director of Resources and Deputy Chief Executive be 
adopted.” 
 
RESOLVED that consideration of the Statement of Accounts, Annual Governance 
Statement and Letter of Representation be deferred and that a special meeting of 
the Governance Committee be arranged in the third week of October 2021 to receive 
the External Auditors report followed by an Extraordinary meeting of Council to 
receive the recommendations of the Governance Committee in relation to the 
Statement of Accounts, Annual Governance Statement and Letter of Representation.    
 

47.   PERFORMANCE AND FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT QUARTER 1 
2021/22 
 

Council considered the Performance and Financial Management report for Quarter 1 
of 2021/22 to the Strategy and Resources Committee on 6 September 2021 
(circulated previously). 
 

 (a)   Report of the Policy Development Committee  

  Councillor D. Spear, Vice Chair of the Policy Development 
Committee presented the Committee’s report on the 
Performance and Financial Management for Quarter 1 of 
2021/22 (circulated previously).  

 (b)   Report of meeting of the Strategy and Resources 
Committee  

  Councillor Worden, Chair of the Strategy and Resources 
Committee reported the recommendations of the Strategy and 
Resources Committee on the Performance and Financial 
Management for Quarter 1 of 2021/22 (circulated previously). 
 
It was moved by Councillor Worden and seconded by 

Page 17

Agenda Item 2



 
Council - 29 September 2021 

 
 

 
8 

 

Councillor D. Spear “that minute 60 (f) of the Strategy and 
Resources Committee held on 6 September 2021 regarding 
the Performance and Financial Management for Quarter 1 of 
2021/22 be adopted”. 
 
RESOLVED that minute 60 (f) of the Strategy and Resources 
Committee held on 6 September 2021 regarding the 
Performance and Financial Management for Quarter 1 of 
2021/22 be adopted. 

48.   UPDATE TO CONSTITUTION 
 

Council considered a report by the Solicitor and Data Protection Officer (circulated 
previously) regarding update to the Constitution. 
 
The Senior Solicitor and Monitoring Officer advised that as the Council had a new 
Senior Management Team there was a need to update the delegated powers within 
the Constitution to match the Heads of Service and senior officers that hold them. 
Other provisions within the Constitution were also required to be updated to reflect 
the current law.  
 
It was moved by Councillor Leaver and seconded by Councillor Yabsley “that the 
recommendation be adopted”. 
 
RESOLVED that the adoption of the amended version of the Constitution as 
appended to the report be approved. 
 

49.   REPORT OF LEAD MEMBER FOR CLIMATE CHANGE 
 

Council considered and noted a report by the Lead Member for Climate Change 
(circulated previously). 
 

50.   APPOINTMENT TO THE INDEPENDENT REMUNERATION 
PANEL 
 

Council considered a joint report by the Senior Solicitor/Monitoring Officer and 
Senior Corporate and Community Services Officer (circulated previously) regarding 
the appointment to the Independent Remuneration Panel.  
 
The Senior Solicitor and Monitoring Officer advised that the vacancy had occurred 
following the resignation of a member of the Panel. A recruitment process had been 
undertaken and following advertisement 2 applications had been received.  Only 1 
applicant had been able to attend an interview. Mr Russell was an exceptionally 
suitable and qualified person to fill the vacancy on the Panel. 
 
It was moved by Councillor Worden and seconded by Councillor Lofthouse “that the 
recommendation be adopted”. 
 

Page 18

Agenda Item 2



 
Council - 29 September 2021 

 
 

 
9 

 

RESOLVED that Graham Russell be appointed to the Independent Remuneration 
Panel for a four year period. 
 

51.   REPORT OF CHAIR OF GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
 

Council considered and noted the half yearly report by the Chair of Governance 
Committee (circulated previously). 
 

52.   MINUTES OF COMMITTEES 
 

 (a)   Building Control Joint Committee  

  RESOLVED that the following minutes of the Building Control 
Joint Committee (circulated previously) be noted and adopted 
as follows: 
 

(i) 8 July 2021 

 (b)   Governance Committee  

  RESOLVED that the following minutes of the Governance 
Committee (circulated previously) be noted and adopted as 
follows: 
 

(i) 27 September 2021 

 (c)   Harbour Board  

  RESOLVED that the following minutes of the Harbour Board 
(circulated previously) be noted and adopted as follows: 
 

(i) 10 August 2021 

 (d)   Licensing and Community Safety Committee  

  RESOLVED that the following minutes of the Licensing and 
Community Safety Committee (circulated previously) be noted 
and adopted as follows: 
 

(i) 10 August 2021 

 (e)   Planning Committee  

  RESOLVED that the following minutes of the Planning 
Committee (circulated previously) be noted and adopted as 
follows: 
 

(i) 11 August 2021 
(ii) 1 September 2021 
(iii) 8 September 2021 

 
Council noted that Councillor Chesters had given her apologies 
for the meeting held on 1 September 2021. 

Page 19

Agenda Item 2



 
Council - 29 September 2021 

 
 

 
10 

 

 (f)   Policy Development Committee  

  RESOLVED that the following minutes of the Policy 
Development Committee (circulated previously) be noted and 
adopted as follows: 
 

(i) 9 September 2021 

 (g)   Strategy and Resources Committee  

  RESOLVED that the following minutes of the Strategy and 
Resources Committee (circulated previously) be noted and 
adopted as follows: 
 

(i) 2 August 2021 
(ii) 6 September 2021 

 
Chair 
The meeting ended at 7.44 pm 
 
NOTE: These minutes will be confirmed as a correct record at the next meeting of 
Council. 
 
 

Page 20

Agenda Item 2



 

Council - 5 October 2021 
 

1 
 

NORTH DEVON COUNCIL 
 

Minutes of a meeting of NORTH DEVON COUNCIL held at Crematorium Meeting 
Room - North Devon Crematorium on Tuesday, 5th October, 2021 at 6.30 pm 
 
PRESENT: Members: 

 
 Councillor Hunt (Chair) 

 
 Councillors Barker, Biederman, Crabb, Davies, Gubb, Jenkins, Lane, 

Leaver, Lofthouse, Ley, Mack, Mackie, Orange, Pearson, Prowse, 
Roome, D. Spear, L. Spear, Topham, Tucker, Turton, Walker, 
Wilkinson, Worden and York 
 

 Officers: 
 

 Chief Executive, Lead Officer - Planning Policy, Senior Planning 
Policy Officer, Senior Solicitor and Monitoring Officer and Head of 
Place, Property and Regeneration 
 

 

53.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Bulled, Bushell, Campbell, 
Cann, Chesters, Davis, Fowler, Henderson, Knight, Luggar, Saxby and Yabsley. 
 

54.   BUSINESS BROUGHT FORWARD BY OR WITH THE CONSENT 
OF THE CHAIR 
 

There was no business brought forward by or with the consent of the Chair. 
 

55.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

There were no declarations of interest received. 
 

56.   GEORGEHAM NEIGHBOURHOOD PLAN 
 

Council considered a report by the Senior Planning Policy Officer (circulated 
previously) regarding Georgeham Neighbourhood Plan. 
 
The Senior Planning Policy Officer advised the following: 
 

 An adopted Neighbourhood Plan would form part of the Council’s statutory 
development plan and be used alongside the North Devon and Torridge Local 
Plan in determining planning applications in the parish of Georgeham. 

 The responsibility for preparing a neighbourhood plan resided with the 
designated “qualifying body” being Georgeham Parish Council. However, the 

Page 21

Agenda Item 2
Appendix A



 
Council - 5 October 2021 

 
 

 
2 

 

Council (as local planning authority) had a range of legislative responsibilities 
that it was required to discharge in support of neighbourhood planning. 

 The Parish of Georgeham was formally designated as a Neighbourhood Area 
for the purposes of neighbourhood planning by resolution of this Council in 
December 2015. 

 The Parish Council embarked on the process of preparing the neighbourhood 
plan, carrying out an extensive programme of work and engagement with the 
local community. 

 A formal pre-submission consultation was undertaken in accordance with the 
neighbourhood planning regulations in February 2021. 

 Following the Parish Council’s consideration of all the representations 
received, the Neighbourhood Plan was submitted formally to the Council on 9 
May 2021. 

 Following a series of checks, the Council undertook formal consultation on the 
submission Neighbourhood Plan in accordance with the neighbourhood 
planning regulations for a period of 6 weeks. 

 In July 2021, the Council appointed an Independent Examiner to determine 
whether the Plan should be recommended to proceed to referendum. In doing 
so the examiner was required to consider a number of issues as detailed in 
paragraph 4.7 of the report. 

 The Independent Examiners report was attached to the report as Appendix A. 
The Examiner had only proposed 8 modifications to the plan as detailed in 
Appendix A of the Examiners report. 

 The Examiner commended the Parish Council for their efforts on the 
neighbourhood plan as detailed in paragraph 4.19 of the report. 

 Officers of the Council also concurred with the sentiments of the Examiner. 
 
It was moved by Councillor Barker and seconded by Councillor Wilkinson “that the 
recommendations in the report be adopted”. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 

(a) That the recommendations and modifications proposed by the examiner in 
relation to the Georgeham Neighbourhood Plan, as set out in the examiner’s 
report (Appendix A) be accepted;  

 
(b) That the Georgeham Neighbourhood Plan be amended to include:  

 
(i) the Proposed Modifications set out by the examiner in his report 

(Appendix to the examiner’s report); 
(ii) the minor modifications identified in this report (Appendix B); and  
(iii) any further changes of a minor nature necessary to address 

typographic, spelling and grammatical errors, improve clarity, 
adjustment to ensure plan wide consistency of terminology, 
presentational improvements, factual updates and updated information 
with regard to the status of the Neighbourhood Plan; 

 
(c) That the Georgeham Neighbourhood Plan, as amended, proceeds to 

referendum, at a date yet to be determined;  

Page 22

Agenda Item 2
Appendix A



 
Council - 5 October 2021 

 
 

 
3 

 

 
(d) That the geographical area for the referendum be the Georgeham 

Neighbourhood Area (Civil Parish of Georgeham); and  
 

(e) That the above decisions and associated reasons in a formal Decision 
Statement (draft Statement provided at Appendix C) be published. 

 

57.   FORMATION OF PLANNING POLICY JOINT COMMITTEE 
ADOPTING ALTERNATIVE ARRANGEMENTS UNDER SECTION 
17 OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT AND HOUSING ACT 1989 
 

Council considered a joint report by the Head of Place and Property and Solicitor 
(circulated previously) regarding the formation of a Joint Planning Policy Committee. 
 
The Solicitor advised the following 
 

 Council had resolved at its meeting on 25 November 2020 that the North 
Devon and Torridge Local Plan be reviewed and updated. 

 The preparation of the current adopted Joint Local Plan had been overseen 
by a Joint Local Plan working Group, whereby 4 Members from both North 
Devon and Torridge District Councils were appointed.  This was an informal 
working group and was not open to the public. 

 The Planning Advisory Service had recommended the setting up of a joint 
Planning Policy Committee.  

 A draft agreement for a Joint Planning Policy Committee had been prepared 
in consultation and agreement with Torridge District Council. 

 It was proposed that 7 Members from each Council be appointed to the Joint 
Committee (14 Members in total).  

 It was proposed that the Joint Committee be responsible for a number of 
delegated functions as detailed in paragraph 4.13 of the report. 

 It was recommended that the Joint Committee not be politically balanced. 

 That the Group Leaders of North Devon Council had agreed that the following 
Councillors be appointed to the Joint Committee: Councillors Chesters, 
Lofthouse, Prowse, D. Spear, Tucker, Worden and Yabsley. 

 
It was moved by Councillor Roome and seconded by Councillor Prowse “that the 
recommendations be adopted and that Councillors Chesters, Lofthouse, Prowse, D. 
Spear, Tucker, Worden and Yabsley be appointed to the Joint Planning Policy 
Committee.” 
 
RESOLVED: 
 

(a) That a Joint Planning Policy Committee be formed in accordance with the 
‘Agreement for a Joint Planning Policy Committee’ appended to the report 
(subject to a successful Torridge District Council resolution for the same); 
 

(b) That alternative arrangements for political balance under section 17(1) of the 
Local Government and Housing Act 1989 be approved and that membership 
of the Joint Committee be as set out in the Agreement; 

Page 23

Agenda Item 2
Appendix A



 
Council - 5 October 2021 

 
 

 
4 

 

 
(c) That the following Councillors be appointed to the Joint Committee: 

Councillors Chesters, Lofthouse, Prowse, D. Spear, Tucker, Worden and 
Yabsley. 

 

58.   NORTHERN DEVON FUTURES UPDATE 
 

The Chief Executive provided Council with an update on the Northern Devon Futures 
partnership. He advised Council of the following: 
 

 The history of setting up the Northern Devon Futures partnership. It was a 
partnership of organisations working together to improve the lives of those 
who lived and worked in Northern Devon and to plan for the future of the area. 

 As North Devon was 1 economic area, Torridge District Council was also part 
of the programme. 

 Discussions had taken place with One Northern Devon regarding their role 
within the group and it had been agreed that their role would be a delivery 
partner and not as a strategic partner on the group. 

 Northern Devon Futures Board was currently chaired by Petroc. Membership 
of the board included the MP’s for both North Devon and Torridge, both 
District Councils, Devon County Council, the Police, the NHS, Heart of the 
South West LEP and Chamber of Commerce. 

 Discussions had taken place regarding the future of partnership and themed 
groups that would be established, governance and secretariat arrangements. 
The partnership was a collaboration and staffed by the organisations that 
formed the partnership to drive forward the strategic vision and projects for 
North Devon.    

 The secretariat team serviced meetings of the Board and Action Groups and 
progressed the Partnership’s strategy and actions. Team members were 
employed by partner organisations. A number of themed sub groups had 
been established which included: Children and Young People; Economy, 
Innovation and Skills; Health and wellbeing liaison; Place and Community; 
New Funding Proposals Support; and Climate Emergency.  Each group would 
be Chaired by a member of the secretariat team. The themed groups would 
put forward the main issues and priorities to be incorporated into the overall 
strategy for Northern Devon. 

 The main aim of the Board was to create a single vision for Northern Devon 
and make sure all partners had an input into strategic plans such as the Local 
Plan which would then help to shape their own organisation’s strategies.  

 There was currently no representative from the Culture sector on the Board 
and a representative would be sought from the Arts Council board. 

 The next meeting of the Board would be held in October 2021 and more 
regular meetings would then be scheduled. 

 
In response to questions, the Chief Executive advised the following: 
 

 Transport was a cross cutting theme and would be included under Economy 
and Place. Devon County Council were represented on the Board. 

Page 24

Agenda Item 2
Appendix A



 
Council - 5 October 2021 

 
 

 
5 

 

 Discussions had taken place with One Northern Devon regarding their role on 
the Board and they were of the view that they were a delivery partner across 
all of the sectors.  The role of One Northern Devon was unchanged and would 
continue to operate as they were currently. North Devon Council valued One 
Northern Devon as an organisation and the Council would not have been able 
to provide the community response to the Covid pandemic without their 
support. 

 There were democratic representations on the Board such as the Leaders of 
North Devon and Torridge Councils, Devon County Councillor Gilbert and 
Alison Hernandez. 

 The Board would not replace the governance structure of the Councils or any 
organisations represented on the Board. The Board was a collaboration to 
deliver actions for Northern Devon. 

 The Government had recently made an announcement which indicated 
potential change in the infrastructure for health inequality and pay.  By 
working collaboratively together, would give a stronger voice to Government 
future proposals. 

 The Health and Wellbeing Group would be led by Andrea Beacham of One 
Northern Devon and John Womersley was a member of the Board. 

 The Board was not a legal entity and therefore would not be in a position to 
apply for funding or take away the opportunity for the Council to apply for 
future funding from the Government.  

 
 
Chair 
The meeting ended at 7.25 pm 
 
NOTE: These minutes will be confirmed as a correct record at the next meeting of 
Council. 
 
 

Page 25

Agenda Item 2
Appendix A



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Council - 20 October 2021 
 

1 
 

NORTH DEVON COUNCIL 
 

Minutes of a meeting of NORTH DEVON COUNCIL held at Crematorium Meeting 
Room - North Devon Crematorium on Wednesday, 20th October, 2021 at 7.30 pm 
 
PRESENT: Members: 

 
 Councillor Tucker (Chair) 

 
 Councillors Biederman, Bushell, Fowler, Gubb, Henderson, Jenkins, 

Lane, Lovering, Orange, Pearson, Phillips, Prowse, Roome, 
D. Spear, L. Spear, Topps, Turton, Walker, Wilkinson, Worden, 
Yabsley and York 
 

 Officers: 
 

 Chief Executive, Director of Resources and Deputy Chief Executive, 
Solicitor and Data Protection Officer and Head of Governance 
 

 

59.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Barker, Campbell, Cann, 
Chesters, Crabb, Davies, Davis, Hunt, Leaver, Ley, Lofthouse, Luggar, Mack, 
Mackie, Patrinos, Saxby and Topham. 
 

60.   BUSINESS BROUGHT FORWARD BY OR WITH THE CONSENT 
OF THE CHAIR 
 

The Chief Executive addressed the Full Council to say some words of remembrance 
for our colleague, Andrew Austen, who had recently passed away. 
 
The Leader addressed the Committee and said a prayer, which was followed by a 
minute of silence and some kind words of remembrance. 
 
The Group leaders, Councillors Prowse, Pearson and Yabsley each spoke and 
recounted their “thank you’s” for Andrew’s kindness and work ethic in their dealings 
with him.  
 
All those who spoke recounted that Andrew was seen to be a kind gentleman who 
will be greatly missed. 
 

61.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

There were no declarations of interest declared. 
 
 
 

Page 27

Agenda Item 2
Appendix B



 
Council - 20 October 2021 

 
 

 
2 

 

62.   STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2020/21 
 

 (a)   Report by Chief Financial Officer (attached)  

  Council considered the Report by the Chief Financial Officer 
(circulated previously).  
 
The Director of Resources and Deputy Chief Executive 
advised that:  
 

 The draft accounts would usually be signed off by the 
31st of July each year, however this had been extended 
to the 30th September. The delay to this now October 
meeting had been due to the Governance Committee 
not meeting on the 27th September 2021 as planned. 

 It was noted that only 9% of Authorities had achieved 
this by 30th September due to additional pressures on 
the external audit firms and delays with the the Pension 
Audit. 

 An Unqualified opinion had been issued. 

 A recommendation concerning transparency of reporting 
to Members with regards to ongoing projects had been 
included in the action plan and agreed with 
management. 

 A previous forecast at quarter 3 of a net surplus of £28k 
had now been increased due to additional funds such as 
income from planning, increased rental income on 
Butcher’s Row, reduced spend on temporary 
accommodation and accompanying reductions in costs 
across the Authority. 

 An increased workload on staff was noted and 
appreciation of the Officers for their efforts and hard 
work was also noted. The staff were considered a major 
contributor as to how the Authority remained financially 
viable. 

 £1.2m General fund reserve, and £16.3m earmarked 
reserves were achieved. 

 The earmarked reserves were artificially higher in 
2020/2021 due to timing differences in the accounting 
treatment of Covid business rate relief from Central 
Government. 

 The Authority was in a strong financial position for 
2021/2022 year. 

 The Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) as 
approved in February 2021 had predicted a funding gap 
of £2m. 

 The Government’s Spending Review was due shortly. 

 The net worth on the balance sheet had shown a net 
decrease on 2019/20 due to an increase in the valuation 

Page 28

Agenda Item 2
Appendix B



 
Council - 20 October 2021 

 
 

 
3 

 

of the long term assets, including the value of the new 
leisure centre build and an increase in the net liability of 
the pension fund. 

 The deficit in the Pension fund was offset by a pension 
reserve and would be made good by the employees’ 
contributions over their employment period. The value of 
this fund was reassessed every three years. 

 The final opinion on the accounts was due from the 
Auditors next week (w/c 25th October 2021). 

 There would be a slight change to the wording on the 
material uncertainty disclosure due to the valuation and 
replacement costs of assets. The increase in rebuild 
costs were due to the prices of building materials. A 
disclosure note had been added to the accounts in 
explanation. 

 
Councillor Roome reported the recommendations of the 
Governance Committee held on 20th October 2021 and 
advised that the efforts and hard work of the Officers had 
been the reason for the achievement of a surplus and the 
level of reserves held. He noted that the recommended 
level of reserves held were between five and ten percent. 
North Devon Council had achieved a level of 9.1%. 
 
It was moved by Councillor Roome and seconded by 
Councillor Walker “that the Statement of Accounts for 2020-
21 be approved”.  
 

RESOLVED that the Statement of Accounts 
2020-21 be approved. 

   

 (b)   Annual Governance Statement 2020/21 (attached)  

  Council considered the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) 
for 2020-21 (circulated previously).  
 
The Director of Resources and Deputy Chief Executive 
advised that: 
 

 The AGS was part of the accounts and has been 
received by the Governance Committee at their 
meeting of 20th October 2021 (which immediately 
preceded this meeting). 

 The Devon Audit Partnership (DAP) had given an 
opinion of Reasonable Assurance. 

 The Governance Committee, at its meeting on 20th 
October 2021, had recommended approval.  

 A series of recommendations had been presented to the 
Governance Committee which included items around 

Page 29

Agenda Item 2
Appendix B



 
Council - 20 October 2021 

 
 

 
4 

 

Member Training and Code of Conduct, a review of the 
Corporate Plan Priorities and an update to the 
procurement strategy. 

 
In response to questions from the Committee, the Director of 
Resources and Deputy Chief Executive advised that: 
 

 The Corporate Plan was being examined in detail with 
the Solicitor and Data Protection Officer and  

 The Corporate and Community Services team were 
reviewing the community engagement strategy. 

 
Councillor Roome reported the recommendations of the 
Governance Committee held on 20th October 2021 and 
advised that a plan to address the issues raised was already 
being created. 
 
It was moved by Councillor Roome and seconded by 
Councillor Jenkins “that the Annual Governance Statement for 
2020-21 be approved”.  
 

RESOLVED that the Annual Governance 
Statement for 2020-21 be approved. 
 

 (c)   Letter of Representation on behalf of the Council 
(attached)  

  Council considered the Letter of Representation on behalf of 
the Council (attached). 
 
The Director of Resources and Deputy Chief Executive 
advised Council that: 
 

 The Letter of Representation on behalf of the Council 
was the final part of the Statement of Accounts process 
and conclusion of the external audit.  

 All relevant procedures had been followed and the 
appropriate representations had been made to Council. 

 
Councillor Roome reported the recommendation of the 
Governance Committee held on 20th October 2021 was that of 
approval.  
 
It was moved by Councillor Roome and seconded by 
Councillor Walker that “that the letter of representation on 
behalf of the Council be approved and signed by the Chief 
Financial Officer and the Chairman of the Council”.  
 

RESOLVED that the letter of representation on 

Page 30

Agenda Item 2
Appendix B



 
Council - 20 October 2021 

 
 

 
5 

 

behalf of the Council be approved and signed by 
the Chief Financial Officer and the Chairman of 
the Council. 
 

63.   APPOINTMENT OF SENIOR SOLICITOR AND MONITORING 
OFFICER 
 

The Solicitor and Data Protection Officer (SF) declared an interest and left the 
meeting for the duration of this agenda item. 
 
The Director of Resources and Deputy Chief Executive addressed the Committee 
and advised that following the recent recruitment and selection process, internal 
candidate, Simon Fuller, had been recommended to be appointed to the role of 
Senior Solicitor and Monitoring Officer by the Appointments Committee. 
 
It was proposed by Councillor Prowse, and seconded by Councillor Pearson “that 
Simon Fuller be appointed to the position of Senior Solicitor and Monitoring Officer 
as recommended”. 
 

RESOLVED that Simon Fuller was appointed to the position of Senior 
Solicitor and Monitoring Officer as recommended. 

 
 
Chair 
The meeting ended at 8.08 pm 
 
NOTE: These minutes will be confirmed as a correct record at the next meeting of 
Council. 
 
 

Page 31

Agenda Item 2
Appendix B



This page is intentionally left blank



NORTH DEVON COUNCIL 
 
COUNCIL: 24 NOVEMBER 2021 
 
Leader’s Report. 

First of all I would like to thank all members who attended Andrew Austen’s funeral at 

the crematorium on November 11th.  I am confident that there would have been even 

more there if it had been at another time as some were at the remembrance services in 

their own towns or villages.  Andrew was someone that I believe I can say that we all 

liked as he was a real gentleman and a true professional and I know many have put 

their tributes on the Council’s intranet memory page. It is sad that he was taken from us, 

his friends and family at such as early age and was a terrible shock to staff and 

members alike.  

On a more cheerful note I am delighted that one of our officers was shortlisted in two 

categories of the prestigious LGC Awards, the biggest celebration of excellence in local 

government.  Alex Miles, the council's Emergency Planning Officer was recognised in 

the 'Outstanding Individual Contribution' and 'Rising Star' categories. She was 

nominated by colleagues to acknowledge her role in shaping North Devon Council's 

response to the Covid-19 pandemic - and numerous other emergency planning 

incidents - since she joined the organisation in November 2019.  Alex was interviewed 

by a judging panel made up of senior and influential figures within local government. 

Unfortunately she did not win this time but even to be shortlisted when considered 

against much larger authorities was an honour and we are very proud of her 

achievements. As a council we are very fortunate to have so many talented members of 

staff. 

Like all the Districts in Devon we were disappointed not to receive anything from the 

leveling up fund this year.  Our submission would have given a real boost to Ilfracombe 

and we can only hope that we are considered favourably next year. Most of the funding 

on this occasion appears to have gone to the north of the UK.  However, some projects 

for our area through the Community Renewal Fund have been successful.  The 

Biosphere Foundation CIC will receive finance for an integrated economic and 

environmental development programme, led by the Biosphere Foundation, which seeks 

to leverage Torridge and Northern Devon’s rural and coastal natural capital, as well as 

the recently remobilised Appledore Shipyard. Petroc’s project which seeks to utilise new 

digital technology (AR, VR, MR) and knowledge transfer to fast track innovation and 

upskilling across business in Northern Devon is also due to get funding. So too is a 

project led by Petroc College in partnership with Northern Devon partners, focused on 

filling gaps within existing youth and community provision to create a single programme 

which will support young people in rural / coastal Devon to return to work and learning. 

Page 33

Agenda Item 10



We have been working with Team Devon (Devon County Council and the other Devon 

District Councils) in relation to a Household Support Fund which will assist households 

facing financial hardship this winter. North Devon’s share is £128,000. The fund is for 

emergency short term support for households facing financial hardship this winter, 

helping them to cover the cost of food, increased energy and water bills and/or any 

related essential costs (e.g., such as but not limited to saucepans, jumpers, blankets, 

boiler service, white goods). Each application will be assessed on its own merits with 

the scheme running up to March 2022. 

We held a Northern Devon Futures meeting on Monday 25 October 2021 and the 

Principal and CEO of Petroc, Sean Mackney was elected as chair. The partnership 

will agree its vision, aims and objectives at its next meeting, following consultation. The 

draft vision proposed is set out below but might need tightening up to be a bit more 

specific …. 

‘The Vision of the Partnership is that by 2050 Northern Devon is healthy, prosperous 

and sustainable, recognised for its aspiration, innovation, and ability to get things done. 

A place where all are able to succeed and no one is left behind.’ 

The CEO, Ken Miles and myself had lunch recently with the vice chancellor/CEO of 

Exeter University and she is keen to promote the research work that they are doing 

regarding climate change.  Something I think we should pursue. Since the last Full 

Council we had the official opening of NodeCowork Enterprise Centre. We will miss 

getting funding from the EU for such projects but hopefully the area will be able to take 

advantage of the forthcoming UK Shared Prosperity Fund, which is intended to replace 

EU funding. 

We have also had a meeting with the Arts Council following their decision to prioritise 

support for North Devon for the next three years. As a result Alison Mills is going to 

produce a policy for NDC considering coordinating the Arts in North Devon.  Although 

no concrete projects have been put forward yet I am hopeful that we will be looked upon 

favourably and be given financial support.  

We had an informal Housing Panel meeting to hear from a number of stakeholders and 

gather views on what the housing crisis means for individual and organisations and 

what can be done to resolve it.  We heard from housebuilders, voluntary groups, Homes 

England and also the Torridge and North Devon Home Crisis group.  We will be holding 

another Panel meeting in a couple of weeks’ time meeting with our partners who 

presented to us last time. At this meeting, where we will debate what we can do as an 

authority to help meet the challenges we face and consider the manifesto produced by 

the Home Crisis group, we plan to come up with recommendations for clear actions 

which can be taken. This will form the basis of our housing delivery programme moving 

Page 34

Agenda Item 10



forward. Each of the new heads of service are working on a programme to deliver in 

their service areas based on our revised corporate plan objectives.  

Our CEO has been talking to Superintendent Toby Davies and the police concerning 
anti-social behaviour in the centre of Barnstaple.  As a result patrols have now started 
which moving forward will involve our staff including some of our car park wardens and 
also the Place Makers, who were scheduled to start just before Christmas but will now 
be starting earlier.  It is important that we do our part in making Barnstaple as attractive 
to visitors as possible, particularly in the lead up to Christmas.  You may have heard 
that the flower beds at Imperial Gardens on Taw Vale in Barnstaple are getting a 
makeover thanks to the North Devon Parks team. 
Taking inspiration from the beautiful Olympic Park meadows which were sown for the 
London Olympics in 2012, the layout will be altered by removing the circular bedding 
and outside beds and replacing them with a spiral wildflower meadow with a central 
feature such as a sculpture or tree. A nectar-rich annual and perennial wildflower mix 
will be planted for biodiversity and for attracting pollinators, as well as visual 
attractiveness. 
 
It was pleasing that Barnstaple received a silver award in the Britain in Bloom 
competition this year and I hope that they will continue to enter next year. Forgive me 
for mentioning too South Molton in Bloom who won the gold award in the category they 
entered.  
 
We are celebrating Green Flag Awards as the scheme marks its Silver Jubilee. 
Bicclescombe Park in Ilfracombe and Yeo Valley Community Woodland in Barnstaple 
are celebrating their award yet again.  It is the 17th consecutive year that Bicclescombe 
Park has achieved Green Flag status and for Yeo Valley Community Woodland it is the 
tenth time in a row. It is a testament to the hard work and dedication of our parks teams 
and the volunteer groups who have made them great spaces that everyone can enjoy. 
 
Some of you may have noticed that the North Devon Gazette has a new format and that 

I have started writing a weekly column for it in my capacity as Leader of NDC.  I am 

pleased that it gives us the opportunity of sharing some of the many good things that 

our council is doing.  If you have something that the council is doing in your area that is 

outstanding news, please let me know and hopefully I will be able to include it. 

As you know we have received the feedback report from the Local Government 

Association corporate peer challenge refresh.  Many of the comments are extremely 

encouraging and I am tempted to emphasis them all in my report.  However, I will 

content myself with just one of the conclusions. ‘Celebrate your successes! You have 

delivered on many of the ambitions/recommendations we noted when we were with you 

18 months ago and have created a springboard for continuing to move forward – you 

have all the pieces in place including the trust and support of your workforce – it is now 

within your gift to capitalise on this opportunity, maintain focus and deliver on the 

potential.’  

Page 35

Agenda Item 10



We will consider all the findings in detail and use them to help us continue to improve as 

a council. Despite the pandemic I believe that we can be proud of the progress we are 

making. 

 

David Worden         

November ’21. 

Page 36

Agenda Item 10



 

North Devon Council 

Report Date: Strategy and Resources Committee: 1st November 2021 

Topic: Performance and Financial Management Quarter 2 of 2021/22 

Report by: Director of Resources and Deputy Chief Executive 

1. INTRODUCTION 

1.1. This is one of the series of regular quarterly reports on the council's overall 

operational and financial performance. The report covers financial as well as 

operational performance. It mainly covers the quarter from July to September 

2021, but also looks at the whole year. 
1.2. Sections 4 deals with headline financial performance.  More detailed 

performance information is available in Appendix E. 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1. That the actions being taken to ensure that performance is at the desired 

level be noted. 
2.2. That the contributions to/from earmarked reserves be approved (section 4.2) 

2.3. That the movement on the Strategic Contingency Reserve (section 4.3) be 

noted. 

2.4. The Council approve the variations to the Capital Programme 2021/22 to 

2024/25 (sections 4.4.3) 

2.5. That funds are released for the capital schemes listed in section (4.4.10) 

2.6. That the sections dealing with Treasury Management (section 4.5), and Debt 

Management (sections 4.6 and 4.7) be noted. 

 

3. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

3.1. To ensure that appropriate action is taken to allow the council to meet its 

objectives.  

3.2. To inform Members of actual results compared to approved Corporate Plan, 

as well as progress in delivering services within the revenue budget and 

Capital Programme. 

 

4. Financial Performance 

4.1. Revenue 

4.1.1.  The revenue budget for 2021/22 was approved at Council on 24th 

February 2021 at £13,639,000. 

4.1.2.  As at 30th September 2021, the latest forecast net budget is 

£13,617,000, which produces a forecast budget surplus of £22,000. 

Details are shown in “Appendix A – Variations in the Revenue Budget” 

Page 37

Agenda Item 12



 
4.1.3.  The original budget for 2021/22 included a forecast to achieve 

£225,000 worth of salary vacancy savings.  The current position 

forecasts we will exceed this by £2,000. 

4.1.4.  There is still pressure on the 2021/22 budget due to the Covid-19 

pandemic with continued additional costs being incurred and forecast 

decline in core income sources. 

4.1.5.  Included within the approved budget we factored in a government 

grant in relation to Covid-19 pressures of £536,710 and also budgeted for 

£375,000 of additional costs and reduced income, these are already 

incorporated into Appendix A along with the latest forecast for each 

service area.   

4.1.6.  The above grant of £536,710 was approved and received and we are 

also anticipating £80,000 re-imbursement for Q1 loss of Sales, Fees and 

charges, from the continued Government 75% income reimbursement 

scheme, this is an estimate as the scheme was extended to include the 

period April to June 2021 only. 

4.1.7.  At the end of 2020/21 the Council placed £375,000 into a Covid 

Budget management reserve to help mitigate any further adverse 

variances due to the pandemic in 2021/22, this future protection is still 

available if required. 

4.1.8.  As at 31st March 2021 the Collection Fund reserve balance is 

£9,810,252.  This earmarked reserve was created to deal with the timing 

impacts of the Collection Fund (Business Rates), which ensures the 

revenue budget is not unduly affected in the year the taxes are collected.  

Collection Fund deficits/surpluses are reversed out to bring the revenue 

account back to the budgeted figure for the year; the deficits/surpluses 

are recovered/distributed in the following financial years. This reserve 

includes an £8,660,000 balance that will be utilised in 2021/22 and 

2022/23 to mitigate timing differences of business rate reliefs awarded in 

2020/21 that from an accounting perspective impact over the next two 

financial year; thus leaving the fund reserve with a residue balance of 

£1,150,000 protection against future volatility. 

4.1.9. An additional provision has been included within the forecast figures 

shown in Appendix A for the National Pay Award potentially being settled 

higher than the original 1% budgeted amount. Negotiations are ongoing 

between the Unisons and the Employers and we will reflect the outcome 

of these discussions within the next report. 

4.1.10.  At the 30th September 2021 total external borrowing was 

£500,000.  The timing of any future borrowing is dependent on how the 

authority manages its treasury activity and due to current low interest rates 

and reduced returns on investments it is prudent for the Council to 

‘internally borrow’ and use these monies to fund the Capital Programme. 

Page 38

Agenda Item 12



 
4.1.11. The recommended level of general fund balance is 5%-10% of 

the council’s net revenue budget £681,950 to £1,363,900.  The actual 

general fund reserve at 31 March 2021 is £1,211,000, which is a level of 

8.9%. 
 

 

4.2. Earmarked Reserves 2021/22 

4.2.1. “Appendix B – Movement in reserves and Balances” details the 

movements to and from earmarked reserves in 2021/22 

4.3. Strategic Contingency Reserve  

4.3.1. Full details of the Strategic Contingency Reserve movements and 

commitments are attached as “Appendix C – Strategic Contingency 

Reserve” 

 

4.4. Capital 

4.4.1. The 2021/22 Capital Programme is attached as “Appendix D – Capital 

Programme 2021/22” 

4.4.2. The Budget and Financial Framework report to Full Council 24th Feb 

2021 outlined the Capital Programme for the 2021/22 financial year of 

£22,419,916.  Project underspend of £917,121 were bought forward from 

2020/21 year and further variations of £1,479,065 were approved as part 

of the performance and financial management report to Strategy and 

Resources Committee, to produce a revised 2021/22 Capital Programme 

of £24,816,102. 

4.4.3. Overall variations of £4,213,427 are proposed to the 2021/22 Capital 

Programme as follows: 

  Other variations (+ and -) to 2021/22 Capital Programme 

£7,363,249 

Scheme Amount 

(£) 

Notes 

Fendering and Fish Store 

Enhancements 

163,650 Approved at Full 

Council 29th 

September 2021 

Removal of capital budgets, 

replaced be new Vehicle Leasing 

Contract 

(1,800,401) Removal of capital 

budgets, replaced with 

revenue Lease 

payments 

Purchase of Strategic Asset 9,000,000 Approved at Full 

Council 14th June 

2021 

 

Page 39

Agenda Item 12



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Project movements (to)/from future years 

Scheme Amount 

(£) 

Notes 

Ilfracombe Water Sports Centre (1,504,815) From 2021/22 to 

2022/23 

Leisure Provision at Seven 

Brethren 

(1,290,008) From 2021/22 to 

2022/23 

Future High Streets Fund (354,999) From 2021/22 to 

2023/24 

Future High Streets Fund (105,643) From 2022/23 to 

2023/24 

Future High Streets Fund (3,683,250) From 2024/25 to 

2023/24 

 

4.4.4. The revised Capital Programme for 2021/22 taking into account the 

budget variations above is £29,029,529. 

4.4.5. Actual spend on the 2021/22 Capital Programme as at 30th September 

2021 is £4,292,304. 

4.4.6. The overall Capital Programme for 2021/22 to 2024/25 is £46,151,018 

and is broken down as follows: 

 2021/22 £29,029,529 

 2022/23 £9,692,423 

 2023/24 £6,717,192 

 2024/25 £711,874 

4.4.7. The Programme of £46,151,018 is funded by Capital Receipts / 

Borrowing (£28,274,889), External Grants and Contributions 

(£16,154,193) and Reserves (£1,721,936). 

4.4.8. The timing and realisation of capital receipts can be impacted by 

events beyond the control of the Council and we have been able to 

manage cash flows for projects through internal borrowing. 

Page 40

Agenda Item 12



 
4.4.9. We also have authority to borrow from the Public Works Loan Board 

(PWLB) as outlined in the Treasury Management Annual Investment 

Strategy and the Council currently has external borrowing of £500,000. 

4.4.10. Release of Funds – 2021/22 Capital Programme 

  Fendering and Fish Stores Enhancements £163,650 

 

4.5. Treasury management 

4.5.1.  Bank Rate remained at 0.10% during the quarter. 

4.5.2.  The average 7 day LIBID (inter-bank bid rate), the Council’s 

benchmark rate at 30th September 2021, was -0.08% (previous year -

0.06%). 

4.5.3.  The return earned on the Council’s investments was 0.05% (previous 

0.24%) 

4.5.4.  £9,375 investment interest was earned during the quarter. (2021/22 

interest receivable budget was £35,000) 

4.5.5.  As at 30th September 2021, the Council had total external borrowing of 

£500,000 

4.5.6.  £3,585 interest was paid at an average rate of 1.43% on PWLB loans 

during the half year period. (2021/22 interest payable budget was 

£109,000) 

4.6. Debt Management 

4.6.1.  The major areas of credit income are Council Tax, Business Rates, 

Housing Benefit overpayment Recoveries and General Debtors. 

4.6.2.  As billing authority, the Council annually raises the bills for Council Tax 

(£69,000,000) and Business Rates (£32,000,000). 

4.6.3.  Collection rates are controlled through monitoring: 

 The level of write offs 

 Levels of previous years’ outstanding debt 

 The level of income collection in the year against the annual sums 

due to be collected. 

4.6.4.  The council’s budget is based on the assumptions that eventually 97% 

of sums due will be collected.  To ensure this level is achieved, year on 

year levels of write offs approved are controlled against a ceiling of 3% of 

annual debt. 

4.6.5.  The outstanding amounts at 30th September 2021 are as set out 

below: 

 

Page 41

Agenda Item 12



 

 Council Tax Business Rates 

Age in Years 2020/21 

£’000 

2021/22 

£’000 

2020/21 

£’000 

2021/22 

£’000 

1 – 2 1,599 1,742 670 289 

2 – 3 789 1,052 224 423 

3 – 4 477 608 92 163 

4 – 5 281 396 50 65 

5 – 6 190 238 25 42 

Over 6 275 373 69 53 

4.6.6. Irrecoverable debts from previous years not exceeding £1,500 can be 

written off with the authorisation of the Chief Financial Officer.  Decisions 

on whether to write off debts over £1,500 rest with the Chief Financial 

Officer, in consultation with the Leader of the Council.  As at 30th 

September 2021 the amount of accounts written off was as follows: 

Less than £1,500  More than £1,500 

No. of 

accounts 

Amount  No. of 

accounts 

Amount 

757 £24,943.90 Council Tax 68 £42,847.68* 

56 £5,762.16 Business Rates 17 £60,893.00** 

47 £4,999.72 Housing Benefits 2 £3,613.25 

 * £9,183.49 due to bankruptcy (see section 4.6.8) 

 ** £3,313.11 due to bankruptcy (see section 4.6.8) 

4.6.7.  The monitoring of in year collection carried out against national 

performance indicators targets sums collected in year as a percentage of 

the Net Sums due for that year. 

4.6.8.  The majority of the write offs are normally individual bankruptcy and 

company insolvency and in a number of cases include liabilities for 

previous years. In these cases we are unable to recover the debt.  

However, if at a later date a dividend is paid, the money is allocated to 

the account and the relevant amount written back on. 

4.6.9.  The other main reason for write offs is where the person has gone 

away (no trace).  However, write offs are reviewed and where we find the 

persons contact address the write off is reversed and recover action 

continues. 

4.6.10.  The levels of collections are: 

Page 42

Agenda Item 12



 

Achieved 

2020/21 

Achieved 

2021/22 

Council tax 54.63% 55.13% 

Business rates 57.23% 50.03% 

 

4.7. General Debtors 

4.7.1.  The level of general invoices raised was £5,100,000 at 30th September 

2021 (previous year £3,300,000) 

4.7.2.  A summary of the outstanding debt, by age, is set out below with 

comparison to the previous year. 

Age of debt 30 Sept 2020 30 Sept 2021 

 £’000 £’000 

3 weeks to 6 months 283 880 

6 months to 1 year 226 110 

1 to 2 years 394 243 

2 to 6 years 367 550 

Over 6 years 
57 131 

TOTAL 
1,327 1,914 

4.7.3. The outstanding debt of £1,900,000 includes the following main service 

areas: 

 Building Control £95,000 

 Corporate Properties £106,000 

 Trade Waste  £212,000 

 Planning   £424,000 

 Housing Deposits £579,000 

4.7.4. All Heads of Service have been tasked to review their outstanding 

debts and review processes for effective debt recovery. 

4.7.5. The aged debt over 6 years includes £69,000 in relation to Aylesford 

Newsprint. Our debt remains lodged with the Administrators pending the 

sale of the site. 

4.7.6.  In according with the Constitution, irrecoverable debts not exceeding 

£1,500 can be written off with the authorisation of the Chief Financial 

Officer.  The Chief Financial Officer, in consultation with the Leader of the 

Council, must authorise the write offs of debts over £1,500. 

Page 43

Agenda Item 12



 
4.7.7.  As at 30th September 2021, the amounts written off were as follows: 

Number of 

Invoices 

Written offs - 

£1,500 & under 

Number of 

Invoices 

Written offs - 

over £1,500 

0 £0 0 £0 

In the first two quarters of this financial year no amounts were written off due 

to a backlog in the Finance Team.  Since 30th September, 47 invoices have 

been written off to the value of £27,199 to bring the write offs up to date. 

5. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

5.1. All revenue and Capital impacts have been discussed and highlighted in 

section 4. 

6. EQUALITIES ASSESSMENT 

6.1. There are no equality implications anticipated as a result of this report. 

7. CONSTITUTIONAL CONTEXT 

7.1. Part 2, 4.4 and Part 3, Annexe 1 1(e) - Delegated. 

8. STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY 

8.1. This report contains no confidential information or exempt information under 

the provisions of Schedule 12A of 1972 Act. 

9. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

9.1. None 

10. STATEMENT OF INTERNAL ADVICE 

10.1. The author (below) confirms that advice has been taken from all 

appropriate Councillors and Officers: Author Tony Rumble, Accountancy 

Manager; Date 18th October 2021 

 

 

Page 44

Agenda Item 12



Appendix A – Variations in the Revenue budget 

Service and Cost Area Qtr 1 

 

Qtr 2 Totals 

  £  £ £ 

Temporary Accommodation 65,000  0 (65,000) 

Deposits (15,000)  (5,000) 10,000 

Other (10,000)  (15,000) (5,000) 

Environmental Health & Housing 40,000  (20,000) (60,000) 

Public Conveniences Rates (21,000)  0 21,000 

Test & Trace Admin Grant 0  (85,000) (85,000) 

Other (6,000)  (21,000) (15,000) 

Resources (27,000)  (106,000) (79,000) 

Covid-19 financial support 150,000  120,000 (30,000) 

Other (6,000)  (7,000) (1,000) 

Corporate & Community Services 144,000  113,000 (31,000) 

Waste & Recycling Employees (1,000)  48,000 49,000 

Waste & Recycling Vehicle costs 20,000  43,000 23,000 

Waste & Recycling Tipping Charges 0  (19,000) (19,000) 

Waste & Recycling Supplies & Services (6,000)  9,000 15,000 

Waste & Recycling Trade Waste income 65,000  (25,000) (90,000) 

Waste & Recycling Recycling Credits 0  6,000 6,000 

Waste & Recycling Recycling Sales 12,000  (78,000) (90,000) 

Waste & Recycling Shared Savings Scheme 0  23,000 23,000 

Waste & Recycling Other (11,000)  (5,000) 6,000 

Car Parks Pay & Display income 225,000  130,000 (95,000) 

Car Parks Other income (Ringo, Season Tickets, PCN) 20,000  32,000 12,000 

Operational Services 324,000  164,000 (160,000) 

Bank Charges 30,000  41,000 11,000 

HR Professional Fees & Further Education (24,000)  (13,000) 11,000 

Land Charges fees (6,000)  5,000 11,000 

Other 0  (17,000) (17,000) 

Corporate Services 0  16,000 16,000 

Development Control Fees (180,000)  (180,000) 0 

Development Control Employees 9,000  2,000 (7,000) 

Pannier Market fee income 62,000  56,000 (6,000) 

Building Control income (15,000)  0 15,000 

CCTV income 35,000  25,000 (10,000) 

Other 0  (2,000) (2,000) 

Place (89,000)  (99,000) (10,000) 

Additional Vacancy savings (53,000)  (2,000) 51,000 

Interest Receivable 15,000  15,000 0 

Interest Payable (55,000)  (55,000) 0 

New Burdens Grant (228,000)  (228,000) 0 

75% Govt reimbursement SFC Q1 (80,000)  (80,000) 0 

Repairs Fund Contribution 0  120,000 120,000 

National Pay Award potential higher cost 0  140,000 140,000 

Other (401,000)  (90,000) 311,000 

     
Total (9,000)  (22,000) (13,000) 

 

 

Page 45

Agenda Item 12
Appendix A



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix B – Movement in reserves and Balances 

Earmarked Reserves 

Closing 
Balance 

31st 
March 
2021 

Transfer 
to 

Reserves 

Transfer from 
Reserves (to 

Capital) 

Transfer 
from 

Reserves (to 
Revenue) 

Closing 
Balance 

31st March 
2022 

Collection Fund Reserve 9,810,252     -8,660,252 1,150,000 

Community Housing Fund-Hsg Enabling 467,893     -50,000 417,893 

Covid Budget Management Reserve 375,000       375,000 

Capital Funding Reserve 397,587   -47,404   350,183 

Crem Equipment Replacement Reserve 297,288       297,288 

Flexible Homelessness Support Grant 313,298     -35,000 278,298 

Crem Earmarked Reserve 230,560       230,560 

Transformation Reserve 242,861   -45,515   197,346 

Economic Development Reserve 235,677     -50,570 185,107 

Repairs Fund 796,652 259,760 -352,812 -549,320 154,280 

Local Plans Fund 155,850     -6,500 149,350 

Planning Enquiries Fund 170,133     -34,500 135,633 

Rough Sleeper Initiative - DCLG grant 129,395       129,395 

Strategic Contingency Reserve 143,842     -25,240 118,602 

Council Tax Support Scheme Reserve 141,629     -27,420 114,209 

Leisure Centre Replacement Reserve 141,099     -27,000 114,099 

Collection Fund Reserve (Council Tax) 106,157       106,157 

Tarka Tennis Surface replacement 83,873 13,000     96,873 

Vehicle Renewals Fund 304,995 0 -221,275   83,720 

Digital Transformation Financial Systems 143,890     -60,915 82,975 

Self Build & Custom Housebuild 72,302       72,302 

New Homes Bonus Reserve 131,118   -59,039   72,079 

Environmental Initiatives 50,000       50,000 

District Council Election 25,000 25,000     50,000 

Rechargeable Works Reserve 49,641       49,641 

Prevention CLG Grant Reserve 45,317       45,317 

Improvement Programme Reserve 79,645   -36,000   43,645 

CCTV Reserve 112,000   -69,000   43,000 

P C Planned Maintenance Fund 40,156       40,156 

Office Technology Reserve 223,686 115,000 -289,629 -9,913 39,144 

Community Consultation 38,383     -1,309 37,074 

Ilfracombe Watersports Centre Reserve 158,167     -121,300 36,867 

Museum development fund 33,033       33,033 

Ilfracombe Harbour Repairs 31,806     -1,806 30,000 

Economic Financial Hardship 30,000       30,000 

Community Protection Vehicles Reserve 24,000 6,000     30,000 

Brownfield Land Registers & Permission 26,263       26,263 

Car Parking Reserve 30,496     -4,795 25,701 

Brexit Exports EH 25,000       25,000 

Parks Reserve 51,551     -27,000 24,551 

RS Rapid Rehoming Pathway 23,956       23,956 

External Legal Services Reserve 22,790       22,790 

IER Funding 22,032       22,032 

Climate & Environmental Grants 10,000 20,000   -10,000 20,000 

Building Control Reserve 18,000       18,000 

Neighbourhood Planning 23,250     -5,800 17,450 

Members Technology Reserve 10,710 6,070   -310 16,470 

Development Control Fund 15,600       15,600 

Greensweep Replacement Fund 77,703   -2,703 -60,020 14,980 

Internal Audit Plan 25,687     -10,760 14,927 

Specialist Domestic Abuse Reserve 13,901       13,901 

Litter Bin Strategy 10,000       10,000 

Town & Parish Fund 5,159       5,159 

Future High Street Fund FHSF 4,221       4,221 

Noise Equipment reserve 2,129 2,000     4,129 

Lynton Agency Reserve 13,522     -10,000 3,522 

Pannier Market 1,872       1,872 

Habitat Directive Reserve 945       945 

Local Welfare Support reserve 541       541 

Office Accommodation Reserve 41       41 

Page 47

Agenda Item 12
Appendix B



Earmarked Reserves 

Closing 
Balance 

31st 
March 
2021 

Transfer 
to 

Reserves 

Transfer from 
Reserves (to 

Capital) 

Transfer 
from 

Reserves (to 
Revenue) 

Closing 
Balance 

31st March 
2022 

Second Homes Council Tax Reserve 23,421   -23,421   0 

HR Payroll 7,500     -7,500 0 

Theatres Reserve 0       0 

Covid-19 Funding Reserve 0       0 

Provision for Brexit Reserve 0       0 

Next Step Accom Programme 51,678     -51,678 0 

  16,350,151 446,830 -1,146,798.00 -9,848,908 5,801,275 

 

Page 48

Agenda Item 12
Appendix B



APPENDIX C - STRATEGIC CONTINGENCY RESERVE 

 

Resources Available £ 

Balance brought forward 1st April 2021 (143,842) 

Contribution to reserve 2021/22 (0) 

 (143,842) 

2021/22 Committed Spend £ 

Junction 27 – Economic impacts of North Devon 10,000 

Watersports Centre, Ilfracombe 11,740 

North Devon Fisherman’s Association 500 

Funding of potential Judicial Review 3,000 

Spend in Year 25,240 

Balance Remaining at 31 March 2022 (118,602) 

 

Page 49

Agenda Item 12
Appendix C



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX D - CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2021/22 TO 2024/25 

Project  

Original 
Budget 
2021/22                  

£ 

Actuals as 
30th 

September 
Variance   

Original 
Budget 
2022/23                  

£ 

Original 
Budget 
2023/24                  

£ 

Original 
Budget 
2024/25                  

£ 
                           

Chief Executive and Corporate         

ICT Capital Investment 22/23   0 0 0   432,570 0 0 

Office Technology Fund - End User Assets and IT Assets in 
Data Centre   489,122 4,417 484,705   0 0 0 

ICT Improve Back-up and Recovery Capabilities   40,249 0 40,249   0 0 0 

ICT Skype for Business   84,156 0 84,156   0 0 0 

  613,527 4,417 609,110   432,570 0 0 

         

Corporate and Community         

Museum of Barnstaple - Long Bridge Wing   5,000 5,000 0   0 0 0 

Queens Theatre - Flat roof   130,000 1,000 129,000   0 0 0 

S106 Contributions - Various projects   173,716 48,169 125,547   0 0 0 

Leisure Provision at Seven Brethren   9,754,342 2,895,040 6,859,302   1,290,008 0 0 

  10,063,058 2,949,209 7,113,849   1,290,008 0 0 

         

Environmental Health & Housing         

Affordable Housing delivery Grant   5,000 0 5,000   0 0 0 

Affordable Housing Fund   90,000 0 90,000   0 0 0 

S106 Affordable Housing - Higher Westaway, Newton Tracey   45,000 0 45,000   0 0 0 

ECO Warm up Grants   550,060 10,658 539,402   0 0 0 

Disabled Facilities Grant Programme   1,959,934 448,035 1,511,899   979,000 0 0 

Boyton House   71,591 71,591 0   0 0 0 

Provision of temporary accommodation   277,710 4,149 273,561   0 0 0 

P
age 51

A
genda Item

 12
A

ppendix D



Project  

Original 
Budget 
2021/22                  

£ 

Actuals as 
30th 

September 
Variance   

Original 
Budget 
2022/23                  

£ 

Original 
Budget 
2023/24                  

£ 

Original 
Budget 
2024/25                  

£ 

  2,999,295 534,433 2,464,862   979,000 0 0 

         

Operational Services         

Works Unit Vehicles   221,275 10,275 211,000   0 0 0 

Trade Waste Software   36,000 0 36,000   0 0 0 

Greensweep / Bartec migration and automation   35,000 0 35,000   0 0 0 

Material Recovery Facility - Infrastructure   760,000 0 760,000   0 0 0 

  1,052,275 10,275 1,042,000   0 0 0 

         

Place         

Land Release Fund - Seven Brethren   2,022,019 47,408 1,974,611   0 0 0 

CCTV service   115,000 71,520 43,480   0 0 0 

Future High Street Fund   610,281 12,346 597,935   2,904,653 6,717,192 711,874 

Replacement Planning ICT system   6,869 0 6,869   0 0 0 

  2,754,169 131,274 2,622,895   2,904,653 6,717,192 711,874 

         

Resources         

Barnstaple Bus Station re-furbishment   0 0 0   46,394 0 0 

Marine Drive Car Park Resurfacing - Ilfracombe   0 0 0   65,000 0 0 

Ilfracombe Harbour - Kiosks   49,446 2,446 47,000   0 0 0 

Jubilee Gardens reserved car park retaining wall   31,447 0 31,447   0 0 0 

Resurfacing to various car parks   1,284 1,284 0   0 0 0 

Retaining Wall - Cross Street Car Park Lynton   9,500 0 9,500   0 0 0 

Fendering and Fish Store Enhancements   163,650 0 163,650   0 0 0 

P
age 52

A
genda Item

 12
A

ppendix D



Project  

Original 
Budget 
2021/22                  

£ 

Actuals as 
30th 

September 
Variance   

Original 
Budget 
2022/23                  

£ 

Original 
Budget 
2023/24                  

£ 

Original 
Budget 
2024/25                  

£ 

Purchase of Strategic Asset   9,000,000 64,494 8,935,506   2,000,000 0 0 

Public Maintenance - Public House corner of Castle Street 
and 16 Castle Street   90,000 0 90,000   0 0 0 

Jubilee Garden see wall   34,875 0 34,875   0 0 0 

HR and Payroll System   13,218 7,351 5,867   0 0 0 

Pannier Market Re-roofing works   0 0 0   469,983 0 0 

Water Sports Centre Ilfracombe   1,665,535 315,913 1,349,622   1,504,815 0 0 

Acquisition of Land off Frankmarsh, Barnstaple   89,000 0 89,000   0 0 0 

Planned Maintenance Seven Brethren   109,250 0 109,250   0 0 0 

Digital Transformation Asset and Financial Management 
System   40,000 0 40,000   0 0 0 

  11,297,205 391,488 10,905,717   4,086,192 0 0 

         

Resources - Non Treasury         

Acquisition of Corporate Property   250,000 250,000 0   0 0 0 

    250,000 250,000 0   0 0 0 

         

  29,029,529 4,271,096 24,758,433   9,692,423 6,717,192 711,874 

 

P
age 53

A
genda Item

 12
A

ppendix D



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Appendix E 

 
 
 

Table A: High level status of all service plan actions tracked on Pentana 

 
 
 

  
Completed 

 

 
Overdue 

 
Cancelled 

 
Not due 

 
Total 

 

Totals 448    577 

 
Since the last report 
included in the total 
 

 
         7 

 
 

 
 

  

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 55

A
genda Item

 12
A

ppendix E



 

Table B: Service plan actions that have been cancelled authorised by SMT 

 

Action 
 

Reason 

 
NONE 

 

 

  

P
age 56

A
genda Item

 12
A

ppendix E



Table C: Service Plan Actions (7) completed 

Action Closure Note Due Date Completed Date 

C&C C&CS 01 18/19  

Introduce new online consultations and 

engagement software system 

Currently in process of procuring a licence to use Microsoft 

Office Dynamics 365 which can be used by multiple users 

including Corporate and Community Services and Comms 

team. This software meets the needs of the Council for 

future consultations and engagement and has greater 

functionality than the previous software used. The 

procurement of this software has achieved signficant 

savings within the Capital Programme. The accessibility 

statement has been produced and published on the 

Council’s website.  The next stages are to advise middle 

managers of the procurement of this software,  to arrange 

training for the team in relation to analysing results and to 

revise the community engagement strategy. 

 

 

31-Jul-2021 

 
 
 
10-Aug-2021 

Crem 01 21/22  

Bring abandoned area of site into use 

Area fenced and shipping container in place 30-Jun-2021 25-Aug-2021 

EH&H H1 19/20  

Mitigate the effect of the reduction in Gov. grant 

funding which is currently supporting 

homelessness prevention services and the 

provision of temporary accommodation. 

Gov funding secured for 21/22: 

£396,361 Homelessness Prevention Grant 

£536,594 Rough Sleeper Initiative Funding 

 

 

30-June-2021 

 
 
26-Aug-2021 

  

P
age 57

A
genda Item

 12
A

ppendix E



ICT 04 20/21  

New WAN (or improved connectivity) Solution to 

connect our sites and partners. Plus in advance of 

this put in 1 gig bearer initially for our outgoing 

internet traffic and then over time move all IP 

addresses to use this much larger pipe for all 

internet 

We have worked with Devon County Council and our 

incumbent supplier and taken out a further contract 1 + 1 

contract.   

 

31-Aug-2021 

 
 
29-Jul-2021 

OD 03 HR 01 21/22  

Comensura - review the use for provision of 

agency staff currently an agreement with Mid 

Devon/South Hams/Teignbridge/Torridge/West 

Devon/Dartmoor NP 

Have decided to continue with the Devon wide group going  

procurement being led by Teignbridge 

 

31-Jul-2021 

 
 
9-Sept-2021 

P SS 06 19/20  

CCTV 

No closure note added  

31-July-2021 

 
11-Aug-2021 

Place 03 20/21  

Develop a Climate Change and Biodiversity Action 

Plan 

We now have a Climate Change Officer in post and these 

works will form part of a wider organisation project to be 

managed under a wider governance structure 

 

31-Jul-2021 

 
29-Jul-2021 

 
  

P
age 58

A
genda Item

 12
A

ppendix E



Table D & Table E 
 

All outstanding Service Plan actions are currently being reviewed by the new Heads of Service as part of their service delivery moving 

forwards.  These will need to tie in with the refreshed priorities of the Council which Members have been considering recently. This will form part 

of the new 2022-23 Service Plans which will be presented to Members in December/January and will include the carried forward actions from 

previous plans together with updated timelines. 

  

P
age 59

A
genda Item

 12
A

ppendix E



Table F: Key Performance Indicators : Last year’s data + this year’s results 

  

                                                           
1 NI 155 changed from Gross to Cumulative 

PI Code & Short Name Performance 
Data Q1 
2020/21 & 
2021/22 

Performance 
Data Q2 
2020/21 & 
2021/22 

Performance 
Data Q3 
2020/21 & 
2021/22 

Performance 
Data Q4 
2020/21& 
2021/22 

Year 
End 
Target 

Year 
End 
Result 

Current 
Target 

Latest Note & 
History 
 

Planning 

NI 155 Number of 
affordable homes delivered 
(cumulative1) 

5 40 71 100  100 
 

  
Quarter 2 not yet 
available 32      

 

NI 157a Percentage of 
major applications 
processed within 13 weeks 

100% 100% 100% 67% 45% 92% 45% Quarter 2 not yet 
available  

86%    45%  

NI 157b Percentage of 
minor planning 
applications processed 
within 8 weeks 

97% 93% 96% 98%  96% 75% Quarter 2 not yet 
available 

97%      

NI 157c Percentage of 
other applications 
processed within 8 weeks 

91% 98% 98% 98% 85% 96%  
 

85% 

Quarter 2 not yet 
available 

97%    85%  

Waste & Recycling 

L82(i) Total percentage 
domestic waste recycled 

51.9% 53% 47.10% 43.11% 46% 48.78
% 

 
46.00% 

Quarter 1 & 2 
figures not yet 
available     46%  

P
age 60

A
genda Item

 12
A

ppendix E



 

  

PI Code & Short Name Performance 
Data Q1 
2020/21 & 
2021/22 

Performance 
Data Q2 
2020/21 & 
2021/22 

Performance 
Data Q3 
2020/21 & 
2021/22 

Performance 
Data Q4 
2020/21 & 
2021/22 

Year 
End 
Target 

Year End 
Result 

Current 
Target 

Latest Note & 
History 
 

Finance 

BV8 Percentage of 
invoices paid on time 
 

96.20% 93.30% 91.3% 92.33% 97.00% 93.28%  
97.00% 

 

92.22% 91.40%   97.00%  

 
BV9 Percentage of 
Council Tax collected 

27.47% 54.63%          81.41% 96.01% 97.5% 96.01%  
97.5% 

 

28.24% 55.13%            97.5%  

BV78a (M) Speed of 
processing - new Housing 
Benefit/Council Tax Benefit 
claims 
 

27 27.6 23.8 24.1 28.00 25.6  
 

28.0 

 

27.3 25.7   28.00  

BV10 Percentage of Non-
domestic Rates Collected 

21.07% 57.23% 81.68% 95.23% 99.05% 95.23  
99.05% 

 

20.88%    99.05%  

Property & Technical 

L728 Percentage of the 
gross internal area of the 
investment estate currently 
let 

98.16% 95.21% 95.21% 95.23%     

96.01% 96.01%     

L168 Income per car park 
P&D ticket 
 
 

 July £1.79 Sept £1.79 
  

 Dec £1.51 
  

March £1.40 
 

£1.69   
 

£1.79 

 

July £1.87 Sept £1.89 
  

  
  

 
 

£1.83  

P
age 61

A
genda Item

 12
A

ppendix E



Building Control 

L300 Building Regulation Full 

Plan applications determined 

in 2 months 

98% 99% 99% 97% 95% 98.75

% 

95% 

 

 

 

 

90% 97%   95%  

L301 Building Regulation 

Applications examined within 

3 weeks 

99% 100% 99% 98% 95% 99% 95% 

 

 

100% 98%   95%  

L302 Average time to first 

response (Days) 

 

5 7 7 7 10 7 

 

 

10 

 

 

 

8.5 7.5   10  

  

PI Code & Short Name Performance 
Data Q1 
2020/21 & 
2021/22 

Performance 
Data Q2 
2020/21 & 
2021/22 

Performance 
Data Q3 
2020/21 & 
2021/22 

Performance 
Data Q4 
2020/21 & 
2021/22 

Year 
End 
Target 

Year 
End 
Result 

Current 
Target 

Latest Note & 
History 
 

P
age 62

A
genda Item

 12
A

ppendix E



Customer Services & Communications 

L999 Feedback Customer 

Satisfaction % 

N/A N/A N/A N/A    

50% 

 

42% 53%     

L997 Customer Service 

Satisfaction % 

83% N/A N/A N/A 90%   

90% 

 

94% 90%   90%  

L998 Media Satisfaction % 

Annual 

Annual  N/A 100% 90% Survey not carried 

out this year  
    

  

PI Code & Short Name Performance 
Data Q1 
2019/20 & 
2020/21 

Performance 
Data Q2 
2019/20 & 
2020/21 

Performance 
Data Q3 
2019/20 & 
2020/21 

Performance 
Data Q4 
2019/20 & 
2020/21 

Year 
End 
Target 

Year 
End 
Result 

Current 
Target 

Latest Note & 
History 
 

P
age 63

A
genda Item

 12
A

ppendix E



Environmental Health & Housing 

 

LEHH014 Food Hygiene 

Interventions Completed 

16 2 

 

88 187 1776 293  

 

 

777 

 

29 177 

 

    

LEHH015 Percentage of 

Food Hygiene Due 

Interventions Completed 

2.5% 

 

0.3%  0.6% 1.2% 100% 1.6% 100%  

3.7% 

 

23%   100%  

LEHH016 Housing Options - 

Number of Homelessness 

Prevented & Relieved 

102 

 

153 104 135  494 Data 

only 

 

Prevention - 85, 
Relief - 41 

128 

 

126     

LEHH017 Housing Options - 

Number of Households 

Accommodated in Temporary 

Accommodation 

 

36 

 

33 

 

33 

 

38 

  

140 

Data 

Only 

 

42 

 

38 

 

 

 

 

 

  

PI Code & Short Name Performance 
Data Q1 
2020/21 & 
2021/22 

Performance 
Data Q2 
2020/21 & 
2021/22 

Performance 
Data Q3 
2020/21 & 
2021/22 

Performance 
Data Q4 
2020/21 & 
2021/22 

Year 
End 
Target 

Year 
End 
Result 

Current 
Target 

Latest Note & 
History 
 

PI Code & Short Name Performance 
Data Q1 
2020/21 & 
2021/22 

Performance 
Data Q2 
20120/21 & 
2021/22 

Performance 
Data Q3 
2020/21 & 
2021/22 

Performance 
Data Q4 
2020/21 & 
2021/22 

Year 
End 
Target 

Year 
End 
Result 

Current 
Target 

Latest Note & 
History 
 

P
age 64

A
genda Item

 12
A

ppendix E



LEHH019 Housing Standards 

- Number of DFG's 

Completed & Monies Paid 

30 

 

56 102 214   Data 

only 

Total for Qtr 2: 

£430,622.35 

31 

 

     

LEHH026 Number of NDC 

Lets Through DHC 

48 98 70 98  314 Data 

only 

 

 72 70     

LEHH020 Housing Standards 

– the level of unmet demand 

for DFGs 

£366,156 £227,416 £300,799 £401,580  £1,295

,951 

Data 

only 

 

£343,163 £354,224     Data 

only 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
2. Constitution Context  
 

Appendix and 
paragraph 

Referred or 
delegated power? 

5.5 Delegated 
 

3. Statement of Internal Advice 
 
3.1 The author (below) confirms that advice has been taken from all appropriate Councillors and officers. 
 

 

Author: Sarah Higgins     Date: October 2021 Reference: Executive Performance Report October 2021 

 

P
age 65

A
genda Item

 12
A

ppendix E



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 
NORTH DEVON COUNCIL 
 
COUNCIL: 24 NOVEMBER 2021 
 
PERFORMANCE AND FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT QUARTER 2 2021/22 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE STRATEGY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
HELD ON 1 NOVEMBER 2021  
 
Minute 78 (f): Performance and Financial Management Quarter 2 2021/22 
 
RESOLVED: 
 

(a) That the actions being taken to ensure that performance was at the desired 
level be noted; 

(b) That the contributions to/from earmarked reserves be approved as detailed in 
section 4.2 of the report;  

(c) That the movement on the Strategic Contingency Reserve as detailed in 
section 4.3 of the report be noted. 

(d) That funds be released for the capital schemes listed as detailed in section 
4.4.10 of the report;  

(e) That the sections dealing with Treasury Management (section 4.5 of the 
report), and Debt Management (sections 4.6 and 4.7 of the report) be noted. 

 
RECOMMENDED:  
 

(f) That Council approve the variations to the Capital Programme 2021/22 to 
2024/25 as detailed in sections 4.4.3 of the report. 

 

Page 67

Agenda Item 12b



This page is intentionally left blank



 

North Devon Council 

Report Date: 1st November 2021 

Topic: Mid-Year Treasury Management Report 2021/22 

Report by: Director of Resources and Deputy Chief Executive 

 

1. Introduction 

1.1  This mid-year report has been prepared in compliance with CIPFA’s Code of 
Practice on Treasury Management (revised 2017), and covers the following: 

 An economic update for the first part of the 2021/22 financial year  (appendix 
A); 

 A review of the Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual 
Investment Strategy; 

 The Council’s capital expenditure and prudential indicators; 

 A review of the Council’s investment portfolio for 2021/22; 

 A review of the Council’s borrowing strategy for 2021/22; 

 A review of any debt rescheduling undertaken during 2021/22; 

 A review of compliance with Treasury and Prudential Limits for 2021/22. 

 

2. Recommendations 

The Committee is asked to recommend to full Council that: 

2.1  The changes to the prudential indicators be approved. 

2.2 The report and the treasury activity be noted.  

 

3. Reasons for Recommendations 

3.1 This Council is required through regulations issued under the Local Government 
Act 2003 to produce a mid year treasury report reviewing treasury management 
activities and the prudential and treasury indicators for 2021/22. This report 
meets the requirements of the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury 
Management (revised 2017). 

3.2 This Council is also required under the Code to give prior scrutiny to the 
treasury management reports by the Policy Development Committee before 
they are reported to the full Council.   

 

Page 69

Agenda Item 13



 

4. Report  

4.1 Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual Investment Strategy 
update 

The Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) for 2021/22 was approved by 
this Council on 24th February 2021.   

The underlying TMSS approved previously requires revision in the light of economic 
and operational movements during the year.  The proposed changes are set out below: 

 

Prudential Indicator 2021/22 
Original 

Estimate  

£000 

Revised 
Prudential 
Indicator 

£000 

Capital Financing Requirement  17,410 23,644 

Operational Boundary  14,500 17,500 

Maturity Structure of borrowing over 
10 years – Upper Limit 

90% 95% 

 

Section 4.3 of this report gives further information on the Capital Financial Requirement 
and the Operational Boundary. The change to the upper borrowing limit over 10 years 
will allow greater flexibility for long term borrowing.   

4.2 The Council’s Capital Position (Prudential Indicators) 

This part of the report is structured to update: 

 The Council’s capital expenditure plans; 

 How these plans are being financed; 

 The impact of the changes in the capital expenditure plans on the prudential 
indicators and the underlying need to borrow; and 

 Compliance with the limits in place for borrowing activity. 

Prudential Indicator for Capital Expenditure 

This table shows the revised estimates for capital expenditure and the changes since 
the capital programme was agreed at the budget.   

 

  

Page 70

Agenda Item 13



 

 

Changes to the Financing of the Capital Programme   

The table below draws together the capital expenditure plans (above), and the 
expected financing arrangements of this capital expenditure.  The borrowing element 
of the table increases the underlying indebtedness of the Council by way of the Capital 
Financing Requirement (CFR), although this will be reduced in part by revenue 
charges for the repayment of debt (the Minimum Revenue Provision).   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4.3 Changes to the Prudential Indicators for the Capital Financing 
Requirement, External Debt and the Operational Boundary 

The table below shows the borrowing requirement (above), the reduction for the 
Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) and impact on the CFR, which is the underlying 

Capital Expenditure by Service 2021/22 

Original 

Estimate 

£000 

Current 
Position 

30/09/21 

£000 

2021/22 

Revised 

Estimate 

£000 

Chief Executive & Corporate 543 4 614 

Corporate & Community 11,319 2,949 10,063 

Environmental Health & Housing 2,293 535 2,999 

Operational Services  2,588 10 1,052 

Place 2,000 131 2,754 

Resources 3,677 642 11,547 

Total 22,420 4,271 29,029 

Capital Expenditure 2021/22 

Original 

Estimate 

£000 

2021/22 

Revised 

Estimate 

£000 

Total capital spend 22,420 29,029 

Financed by:   

Capital receipts  150 500 

Capital grants 8,578 7,847 

Capital reserves 1,502 1,115 

Total financing 10,230 9,462 

Borrowing requirement 12,190 19,567 

Page 71

Agenda Item 13



 

external need to incur borrowing for a capital purpose.  It also shows the expected debt 
position over the period, which is termed the Operational Boundary. 

 

 

 

 

Prudential Indicator – Capital Financing Requirement 

The forecast Capital Financing Requirement has increased by circa £6.2m from the 
original budget. The main reason for this increase is the additional capital budget of £9m 
for the acquisition of a strategic asset, offset by £1.4m slippage on the new Leisure 
Centre budget and £1.2m slippage on the Watersports Centre budget. These two 
budgets have been re-profiled into the 2022/23 capital programme.      

Prudential Indicator – the Operational Boundary for external debt 

The forecast external borrowing has increased by £3m to support the additional capital 
spend above. It is projected that the remaining borrowing need can be funded from year 
end reserves and cash balances (internal borrowing). Section 4.5 looks at the borrowing 
strategy in more detail.   

4.4 Limits to Borrowing Activity 

The first key control over the treasury activity is a prudential indicator to ensure that 
over the medium term, net borrowing (borrowings less investments) will only be for a 
capital purpose.  Gross external borrowing should not, except in the short term, 
exceed the total of CFR in the preceding year plus the estimates of any additional CFR 
for 2021/22 and next two financial years.  This allows some flexibility for limited early 
borrowing for future years.  The Council has approved a policy for borrowing in 
advance of need, which will be adhered to if this proves prudent.   

 2021/22 

Original 

Estimate 

£000 

2021/22 

Revised 

Estimate 

£000 

Prudential Indicator – Capital Financing Requirement 

Borrowing requirement 12,190 19,567 

Minimum Revenue Provision  (535) (514) 

Movement in CFR  11,655 19,053 

Revised Total CFR 17,410 23,644 

Prudential Indicator – the Operational Boundary for 
external debt 

Borrowing & Other long term 
liabilities 

14,500 17,500 

Total debt (year-end position) 14,500 17,500 

Page 72

Agenda Item 13



 

 

A further prudential indicator controls the overall level of borrowing.  This is the 
Authorised Limit that represents the limit beyond which borrowing is prohibited, and 
needs to be set and revised by Members.  It reflects the level of borrowing which, while 
not desired, could be afforded in the short term, but is not sustainable in the longer 
term.  It is the expected maximum borrowing need with some headroom for unexpected 
movements. This is the statutory limit determined under section 3 (1) of the Local 
Government Act 2003.  

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

The Extraordinary Council meeting held on 14th June 2021 approved the increase in 
the authorised borrowing limit to £37.5m as part of the report detailing the purchase of 
a strategic asset. 

4.5 Borrowing 

The Council’s forecast capital financing requirement (CFR) for 2021/22 is £23.6m. The 
CFR denotes the Council’s underlying need to borrow for capital purposes.  If the CFR 
is positive the Council may borrow from the Public Works Loan Board (PWLB), or the 
market (external borrowing), or from internal balances on a temporary basis (internal 
borrowing).  The balance of external and internal borrowing is generally driven by 
market conditions.   

At present, the Council has projected total external borrowing of £17.5m and utilising 
£6.1m of cash flow funds in lieu of borrowing (internal borrowing).  This is a prudent 
and cost effective approach in the current economic climate but will require ongoing 
monitoring of economic conditions.  

 2021/22 

Original 

Estimate 

£000 

Current 
Position 

30/09/21 

£000 

2021/22 

Revised 

Estimate 

£000 

Gross borrowing & other long 
term liabilities  

14,500 
500 17,500 

Total debt 14,500 500 17,500 

CFR (year end position) 17,410  23,644 

Authorised limit for external 
debt 

2021/22 

Original 
Indicator  

£000 

2021/22 

Revised 
Indicator 

£000 

Borrowing & Other long term 
liabilities 

26,500 
37,500 

Total 26,500 37,500 

Page 73

Agenda Item 13



 

At present we have been using internal borrowing from the Council’s own cash flows, 
as this is a low cost financing option and reduces the net interest cost to the Council, 
but we will continue to monitor our cash position and amend the borrowing position as 
necessary.   

The cash balances have allowed external borrowing to remain at £0.5m as at 30th 
September. However, with a further £24.7m budgeted capital spend in the second half 
of the financial year then additional external borrowing will be required. The current 
forecast is for a further £17m of external borrowing but the exact amount will depend 
on any capital spend slippages and our cash flow balances towards the financial year 
end.  

The interest rates forecasts are showing that the Bank of England might increase the 
bank rate shortly and the Finance Team will continue to monitor the impact on the 
PWLB borrowing rates. The Link Group forecast as at 19th October is shown below: 

 

 

 

PWLB Rates 1st April 2021 to 30th September 2021 

 

  1 Year 5 Year 10 Year 25 Year 50 Year 

Low 0.78% 1.05% 1.39% 1.75% 1.49% 

Date 08/04/2021 08/07/2021 05/08/2021 17/08/2021 10/08/2021 

High 0.90% 1.24% 1.80% 2.27% 2.06% 

Date 11/08/2021 13/05/2021 13/05/2021 13/05/2021 13/05/2021 

Average 0.83% 1.15% 1.59% 2.03% 1.82% 

Spread 0.12% 0.19% 0.41% 0.52% 0.57% 

 

4.6 Debt Rescheduling 
 
Debt rescheduling opportunities have been very limited in the current economic climate 
and following the various increases in the margins added to gilt yields which have 
impacted PWLB new borrowing rates since October 2010. No debt rescheduling has 
therefore been undertaken to date in the current financial year.   

 
4.7 Compliance with Treasury and Prudential Limits 
 
It is a statutory duty for the Council to determine and keep under review the affordable 
borrowing limits. During the half year ended 30th September 2021, the Council has 
operated within the treasury and prudential indicators set out in the Council’s Treasury 
Management Strategy Statement for 2021/22.  The Chief Finance Officer reports that 
no difficulties are envisaged for the current or future years in complying with these 
indicators.    
 

Page 74

Agenda Item 13



 

All treasury management operations have also been conducted in full compliance with 
the Council's Treasury Management Practices. 

 

4.8 Annual Investment Strategy 

The Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) for 2021/22, which includes 
the Annual Investment Strategy, was approved by the Council on 24th February 2021.  
In accordance with the CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice, it sets out the 
Council’s investment priorities as being: 
 Security of capital 
 Liquidity 
 Yield 
 
The Council will aim to achieve the optimum return (yield) on its investments 
commensurate with proper levels of security and liquidity and with the Council’s risk 
appetite. In the current economic climate it is considered appropriate to keep 
investments short term to cover cash flow needs, but also to seek out value available 
in periods up to 12 months with high credit rated financial institutions, using the Link 
suggested creditworthiness approach. 
 
As shown by the interest rate forecasts in Appendix A, it is now impossible to earn the 
level of interest rates commonly seen in previous decades as all short-term money 
market investment rates have only risen weakly since Bank Rate was cut to 0.10% in 
March 2020. Given this environment and the fact that Bank Rate may only rise 
marginally, or not at all, before the second half of 2023, investment returns are 
expected to remain low. 
 
Creditworthiness. 
 
Significant levels of downgrades to Short and Long Term credit ratings have not 
materialised since the crisis in March 2020. In the main, where they did change, any 
alterations were limited to Outlooks. However, as economies are beginning to reopen, 
there have been some instances of previous lowering of Outlooks being reversed.  
 
Investment Counterparty criteria 
The current investment counterparty criteria selection approved in the TMSS is 
meeting the requirement of the treasury management function  
 
Investment balances 

The Council held £40m of investments as at 30 September 2021 (£22.8m at 31 March 
2021) and the investment portfolio yield for the first six months of the year was 0.05% 
against the benchmark 7 day LIBID of -0.08%.  

The Council’s budgeted investment return for 2021/22 was £35,000. As at 30th 
September 2021 £9,375 investment interest was earned in the half-year period. 
Although investment returns have been low; using the cash flow balances for internal 
borrowing has reduced the borrowing costs on the expenditure budget.  

The cash position includes the residual balance of business support grants due to be 
repaid to central government shortly, this is currently estimated at circa £16m.  

Page 75

Agenda Item 13



 

The Chief Financial Officer confirms that the approved limits within the Annual 
Investment Strategy were not breached during the first six months of 2021/22. 

 

Non-Treasury Management Investments 

The PWLB will no longer provide loans for ‘debt for yield’ projects where financial 
assets and property are purchased primarily for financial return. This would also mean 
no PWLB loans for the rest of the capital programme in that year. 

The Chief Finance Officer confirms there have been no ‘debt for yield’ projects included 
in the current capital programme.  

Bank Rate & LIBID rates 1st April 2021 to 30th September 2021 

 

 
  
5. Resource Implications 
  
 5.1 As detailed in the report. 
 
6. Equalities Assessment 
 
 6.1 There are not any equalities implications anticipated as a result of this report, as 

the purpose of this report is to present the Council’s financial position only. 

7. Constitutional CONTEXT 

7.1 Part 4 Financial Procedure Rules (Article 13.8) / Article 4.4 

7.2 Delegated power 

  
8.  Statement Of Confidentiality 
 

8.1 This report contains no confidential or exempt information under the provisions 
of Schedule 12A of 1972 Act. 

 

9. Statement Of Internal Advice 

 
9.1  The author (below) confirms that advice has been taken from all appropriate  
  Councillors and Officers. 
 
 
Jon Triggs, Director of Resources and Deputy Chief Executive  

Bank Rate 7 day 1 mth 3 mth 6 mth 12 mth

High 0.10 -0.08 -0.07 -0.04 -0.01 0.10

High Date 01/04/2021 09/04/2021 06/07/2021 01/04/2021 24/06/2021 27/08/2021

Low 0.10 -0.09 -0.08 -0.06 -0.04 0.03

Low Date 01/04/2021 27/08/2021 26/04/2021 23/08/2021 27/07/2021 16/04/2021

Average 0.10 -0.08 -0.07 -0.05 -0.02 0.05

Spread 0.00 0.01 0.01 0.02 0.03 0.07

Page 76

Agenda Item 13



APPENDIX A: ECONOMICs AND INTEREST RATES 
 

1. Economic Update 
 The Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) voted unanimously to leave Bank Rate 

unchanged at 0.10% and made no changes to its programme of quantitative easing 
purchases due to finish by the end of this year at a total of £895bn; only one MPC 
member voted to stop these purchases now to leave total purchases £45bn short of 
the total target. 
 

 While that was all very much unchanged from previous MPC decisions over the last 
year, there was a major shift from indicating no expected tightening any time soon 
to now flagging up that interest rate increases were now on the horizon. There 
was disagreement among MPC members, some of whom felt that the forward 
guidance that the MPC won’t tighten policy until inflation “is achieving the 2% 
inflation target sustainably”, had already been met.  Although other MPC members 
did not agree with them, they did all agree that “some modest tightening of 
monetary policy over the forecast period was likely to be necessary to be 
consistent with meeting the inflation target sustainably in the medium term”.  
 

 The MPC was more upbeat in its new 2-3 year forecasts so whereas they had 
expected unemployment to peak at 5.4% in Q3, the MPC now thought that the peak 
had already passed. (It is to be noted though, that the recent spread of the Delta 
variant has damaged growth over the last couple of months and has set back 
recovery to the pre-pandemic level of economic activity till probably late 2021.) 
 

 We have been waiting for the MPC to conclude a review of its monetary policy as 
to whether it should raise Bank Rate first before reducing its balance sheet 
(quantitative easing) holdings of bonds. This review has now been completed so we 
learnt that it will start to tighten monetary policy by: - 

1. Placing the focus on raising Bank Rate as “the active instrument in most 
circumstances”. 

2. Raising Bank Rate to 0.50% (1.50% previously), before starting on reducing 
its holdings. 

3. Once Bank Rate is at 0.50% it would stop reinvesting maturing gilts. 
4. Once Bank Rate had risen to at least 1%, it would start selling its holdings. 

 
 What the MPC did not give us was any indication on when it would start raising Bank 

Rate. Inflation is currently expected to peak at over 4% during 2021. The key issue 
then is whether this is just going to be transitory inflation or whether it will morph 
into inflation which will exceed the MPC’s 2% target on an ongoing basis.  In his 
press conference, Governor Andrew Bailey said, “the challenge of avoiding a steep 
rise in unemployment has been replaced by that of ensuring a flow of labour into 
jobs” and that “the Committee will be monitoring closely the incoming evidence 
regarding developments in the labour market, and particularly unemployment, wider 
measures of slack, and underlying wage pressures.” In other words, it’s worried that 
labour shortages will push up wage growth by more than it expects and that, as a 
result, CPI inflation will stay above the 2% target for longer. Which then raises an 
interesting question as to whether the million or so workers who left the UK during 
the pandemic, will come back to the UK and help to relieve wage inflation pressures. 
We also have an unknown as to how trade with the EU will evolve once the 

Page 77

Agenda Item 13
Appendix A



pandemic distortions have dissipated now that the UK no longer has tariff free 
access to EU markets.  
 

 At the current time, the MPC’s forecasts are showing inflation close to, but just 
below, its 2% target in 2 to 3 years’ time. The initial surge in inflation in 2021 and 
2022 is due to a combination of base effects, one off energy price increases and a 
release of pent-up demand, particularly from consumers who have accumulated 
massive savings during the pandemic, hitting supply constraints. However, these 
effects will gradually subside or fall out of the calculation of inflation. The issue for 
the MPC will, therefore, turn into a question of when the elimination of spare 
capacity in the economy takes over as being the main driver to push inflation 
upwards and this could then mean that the MPC will not start tightening policy until 
2023. Remember, the MPC has sets its policy as being wanting to see inflation 
coming in sustainably over 2% to counteract periods when inflation was below 2%. 
While financial markets have been pricing in a hike in Bank Rate to 0.25% by mid-
2022, and to 0.50% by the end of 2022, they appear to be getting ahead of 
themselves. The first increase to 0.25% is more likely to come later; our forecast 
shows the first increase in Q1 of 23/24 and the second to 0.50% in Q4 of 23/24. The 
second increase would then open the way for the Bank to cease reinvesting 
maturing bonds sometime during 2024. 

 
 

Gilt and treasury yields 
Since the start of 2021, we have seen a lot of volatility in gilt yields, and hence PWLB 
rates. During the first part of the year, US President Biden’s, and the Democratic party’s 
determination to push through a $1.9trn (equivalent to 8.8% of GDP) fiscal boost for the 
US economy as a recovery package from the Covid pandemic was what unsettled 
financial markets. However, this was in addition to the $900bn support package already 
passed in December 2020 under President Trump. This was then followed by additional 
Democratic ambition to spend further huge sums on infrastructure and an American 
families plan over the next decade which are caught up in Democrat / Republican 
haggling.  Financial markets were alarmed that all this stimulus, which is much bigger 
than in other western economies, was happening at a time in the US when: -  
1. A fast vaccination programme has enabled a rapid opening up of the economy. 
2. The economy had already been growing strongly during 2021. 
3. It started from a position of little spare capacity due to less severe lockdown 

measures than in many other countries. A combination of shortage of labour and 
supply bottle necks is likely to stoke inflationary pressures more in the US than in 
other countries. 

4. And the Fed was still providing monetary stimulus through monthly QE purchases. 
 

These factors could cause an excess of demand in the economy which could then 
unleash stronger and more sustained inflationary pressures in the US than in other 
western countries. This could then force the Fed to take much earlier action to start 
tapering monthly QE purchases and/or increasing the Fed rate from near zero, despite 
their stated policy being to target average inflation. It is notable that some Fed members 
have moved forward their expectation of when the first increases in the Fed rate will 
occur in recent Fed meetings. In addition, more recently, shortages of workers appear 
to be stoking underlying wage inflationary pressures which are likely to feed through into 
CPI inflation. A run of strong monthly jobs growth figures could be enough to meet the 
threshold set by the Fed of “substantial further progress towards the goal of reaching 
full employment”.  However, the weak growth in August, (announced 3.9.21), has spiked 

Page 78

Agenda Item 13
Appendix A



anticipation that tapering of monthly QE purchases could start by the end of 2021. These 
purchases are currently acting as downward pressure on treasury yields.  As the US 
financial markets are, by far, the biggest financial markets in the world, any trend 
upwards in the US will invariably impact and influence financial markets in other 
countries. However, during June and July, longer term yields fell sharply; even the large 
non-farm payroll increase in the first week of August seemed to cause the markets little 
concern, which is somewhat puzzling, particularly in the context of the concerns of many 
commentators that inflation may not be as transitory as the Fed is expecting it to be. 
Indeed, inflation pressures and erosion of surplus economic capacity look much stronger 
in the US than in the UK. As an average since 2011, there has been a 75% 
correlation between movements in 10 year treasury yields and 10 year gilt yields.  
This is a significant UPWARD RISK exposure to our forecasts for longer term 
PWLB rates. However, gilt yields and treasury yields do not always move in 
unison. 
 
There are also possible DOWNSIDE RISKS from the huge sums of cash that the UK 
populace have saved during the pandemic; when savings accounts earn little interest, it 
is likely that some of this cash mountain could end up being invested in bonds and so 
push up demand for bonds and support their prices i.e., this would help to keep their 
yields down. How this will interplay with the Bank of England eventually getting round to 
not reinvesting maturing gilts and then later selling gilts, will be interesting to keep an 
eye on. 
 
A new era – a fundamental shift in central bank monetary policy 
One of the key results of the pandemic has been a fundamental rethinking and shift in 
monetary policy by major central banks like the Fed, the Bank of England and the ECB, 
to tolerate a higher level of inflation than in the previous two decades when inflation was 
the prime target to bear down on so as to stop it going above a target rate. There is now 
also a greater emphasis on other targets for monetary policy than just inflation, 
especially on ‘achieving broad and inclusive “maximum” employment in its entirety’ in 
the US before consideration would be given to increasing rates. Although there are 
nuances between the monetary policy of all three banks, the overall common ground is 
allowing the inflation target to be symmetrical so that inflation averages out the dips 
down and surges above the target rate, over an unspecified period of time. For local 
authorities, this means that interest rates will not be rising as quickly or as high 
as in previous decades when the economy recovers from a downturn and the 
recovery eventually runs out of spare capacity to fuel continuing expansion.  
Labour market liberalisation since the 1970s has helped to break the wage-price spirals 
that fuelled high levels of inflation and has now set inflation on a lower path which makes 
this shift in monetary policy practicable. In addition, recent changes in flexible 
employment practices, the rise of the gig economy and technological changes, will all 
help to lower inflationary pressures.  Governments will also be concerned to see interest 
rates stay lower as every rise in central rates will add to the cost of vastly expanded 
levels of national debt; (in the UK this is £21bn for each 1% rise in rates). On the other 
hand, higher levels of inflation will help to erode the real value of total public debt. 
 
Globally, our views on economies are as follows: - 

 EU. The slow role out of vaccines initially delayed economic recovery in early 2021 
but the vaccination rate has picked up sharply since then.  After a contraction of -
0.3% in Q1, Q2 came in with strong growth of 2.2% which is likely to continue into 
Q3, though some countries more dependent on tourism may struggle. There is little 

Page 79

Agenda Item 13
Appendix A



sign that underlying inflationary pressures are building to cause the ECB any 
concern. 
 

 China.  After a concerted effort to get on top of the virus outbreak in Q1 2020, 
economic recovery was strong in the rest of the year; this enabled China to recover 
all the initial contraction. Policy makers both quashed the virus and implemented a 
programme of monetary and fiscal support that was particularly effective at 
stimulating short-term growth. At the same time, China’s economy benefited from 
the shift towards online spending by consumers in developed markets. These 
factors helped to explain its comparative outperformance compared to western 
economies during 2021. However, the pace of economic growth will fall back after 
this initial surge of recovery from the pandemic. China is also now struggling to 
contain the spread of the Delta variant through sharp local lockdowns which will 
damage economic growth. There are also questions as to how effective Chinese 
vaccines are proving.   

 

 Japan. After declaring a second state of emergency on 7th January, which 
depressed growth in Q1 2021, the economy was expected to make a strong 
recovery to pre-pandemic GDP levels in the rest of the year as the slow role out of 
vaccines eventually gathers momentum.  However, the Delta variant has now raised 
questions as to whether lockdowns will be needed to contain it and to protect the 
health service from being overwhelmed. 
 

 World growth.  Further progress on vaccine rollouts, continued policy support, and 
the re-opening of most major economies should mean that global GDP growth in 
2021 will grow at its fastest rate since 1973. The spread of the Delta variant poses 
the greatest risk to this view, particularly in large parts of the emerging world where 
vaccination coverage is typically lower than in advanced economies. Continued 
strong recovery will be accompanied by higher inflation. While most of the arithmetic 
and commodity price effects boosting inflation in recent months are behind us, 
goods shortages will last well into 2022 as order backlogs are worked through and 
inventories are replenished. What’s more there is mounting evidence that rapid re-
opening of economies generates labour shortages, which could exert further upward 
pressure on firms’ costs. So, global inflation is unlikely to drop back until next year.  
 

 
 

2) Interest rate forecasts  

The Council’s treasury advisor, Link Group, provided the following forecasts on 10th 
August 2021 (PWLB rates are certainty rates, gilt yields plus 80bps): 

 

Link Group Interest Rate View  10.8.21

Sep-21 Dec-21 Mar-22 Jun-22 Sep-22 Dec-22 Mar-23 Jun-23 Sep-23 Dec-23 Mar-24

BANK RATE 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.50

  3 month ave earnings 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.30 0.30 0.30 0.50

  6 month ave earnings 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.20 0.30 0.40 0.50 0.50

12 month ave earnings 0.20 0.20 0.20 0.20 0.20 0.30 0.30 0.40 0.50 0.60 0.70

5 yr   PWLB 1.20 1.20 1.20 1.30 1.30 1.30 1.40 1.40 1.40 1.50 1.50

10 yr PWLB 1.60 1.60 1.70 1.70 1.80 1.80 1.90 1.90 1.90 2.00 2.00

25 yr PWLB 1.90 2.00 2.10 2.20 2.30 2.30 2.30 2.40 2.40 2.40 2.50

50 yr PWLB 1.70 1.80 1.90 2.00 2.10 2.10 2.10 2.20 2.20 2.20 2.30

Page 80

Agenda Item 13
Appendix A



Additional notes by Link on this forecast table: - 

 LIBOR and LIBID rates will cease from the end of 2021. Work is currently 
progressing to replace LIBOR with a rate based on SONIA (Sterling Overnight Index 
Average). In the meantime, our forecasts are based on expected average earnings 
by local authorities for 3 to 12 months. 

 Our forecasts for average earnings are averages i.e., rates offered by individual 
banks may differ significantly from these averages, reflecting their different needs 
for borrowing short term cash at any one point in time. 

 We will maintain continuity by providing clients with LIBID investment benchmark 
rates on the current basis. 

The coronavirus outbreak has done huge economic damage to the UK and to 
economies around the world. After the Bank of England took emergency action in March 
2020 to cut Bank Rate to 0.10%, it left Bank Rate unchanged at its subsequent meetings, 
although some forecasters had suggested that a cut into negative territory could have 
happened prior to more recent months when strong recovery started kicking in. 
However, the minutes of the Monetary Policy Committee in February 2021 made it clear 
that commercial banks could not implement negative rates within six months; by that 
time the economy would be expected to be recovering strongly and so there would be 
no requirement for negative rates. As shown in the forecast table above, one increase 
in Bank Rate from 0.10% to 0.25% has now been included in quarter 1 of 2023/24 and 
another increase to 0.50% in quarter 4 of 23/24, as an indication that the Bank of 
England will be starting monetary tightening during this year.  

 

PWLB RATES.  There was much speculation during the second half of 2019 that bond 
markets were in a bubble which was driving bond prices up and yields down to 
historically very low levels. The context for that was heightened expectations that the 
US could have been heading for a recession in 2020. In addition, there were growing 
expectations of a downturn in world economic growth, especially due to fears around 
the impact of the trade war between the US and China, together with inflation generally 
at low levels in most countries and expected to remain subdued. Combined, these 
conditions were conducive to very low bond yields. While inflation targeting by the major 
central banks has been successful over the last 30 years in lowering inflation 
expectations, the real equilibrium rate for central rates has fallen considerably due to 
the high level of borrowing by consumers. This means that central banks do not need to 
raise rates as much now to have a major impact on consumer spending, inflation, etc. 
The consequence of this has been the gradual lowering of the overall level of 
interest rates and bond yields in financial markets.  Over the year prior to the 
coronavirus crisis, this resulted in many bond yields up to 10 years turning negative in 
the Eurozone. In addition, there was, at times, an inversion of bond yields in the US 
whereby 10 year yields fell below shorter-term yields. In the past, this has been a 
precursor of a recession.   
 
Gilt yields had, therefore, already been on a generally falling trend up until the 
coronavirus crisis hit western economies during March 2020 which caused gilt 
yields to spike up.  However, yields then fell sharply in response to major western 
central banks taking rapid policy action to deal with excessive stress in financial markets 
during March and starting massive quantitative easing driven purchases of government 
bonds: these actions also acted to put downward pressure on government bond yields 
at a time when there was a huge and quick expansion of government expenditure 
financed by issuing government bonds. Such unprecedented levels of issuance in 
“normal” times would have caused bond yields to rise sharply.   

Page 81

Agenda Item 13
Appendix A



 
At the start of January 2021, all gilt yields from 1 to 8 years were negative: however, 
since then all gilt yields have become positive and rose sharply, especially in medium 
and longer-term periods, until starting a significant decline since May. The main driver 
of the increases was investors becoming progressively more concerned at the way that 
inflation was expected to rise sharply in major western economies during 2021 and 
2022. However, repeated assurances by the Fed in the US, and by other major world 
central banks, that inflation would spike up after Covid restrictions were abolished, but 
would only be transitory, have eventually allayed those investor fears. However, there 
is an alternative view that the US Fed is taking a too laid-back view that inflation 
pressures in the US are purely transitory and that they will subside without the 
need for the Fed to take any action to tighten monetary policy. This could mean 
that US rates will end up rising faster and sharper if inflationary pressures were 
to escalate; the consequent increases in treasury yields could well spill over to 
cause (lesser) increases in gilt yields.   
  
As the interest forecast table for PWLB certainty rates, (gilts plus 80bps), above shows, 
there is likely to be an unwinding of the currently depressed levels of PWLB rates and a 
steady rise over the forecast period, with some degree of uplift due to rising treasury 
yields in the US.    

There is likely to be exceptional volatility and unpredictability in respect of gilt 
yields and PWLB rates due to the following factors: - 

 How strongly will changes in gilt yields be correlated to changes in US treasury 
yields? 

 Will the Fed take action to counter increasing treasury yields if they rise beyond a 
yet unspecified level? 

 Would the MPC act to counter increasing gilt yields if they rise beyond a yet 
unspecified level? 

 How strong will inflationary pressures turn out to be in both the US and the UK and 
so impact treasury and gilt yields? 

 How will central banks implement their new average or sustainable level inflation 
monetary policies? 

 How well will central banks manage the withdrawal of QE purchases of their national 
bonds i.e., without causing a panic reaction in financial markets as happened in the 
“taper tantrums” in the US in 2013? 

 Will exceptional volatility be focused on the short or long-end of the yield curve, or 
both? 

 

The forecasts are also predicated on an assumption that there is no break-up of the 
Eurozone or EU within our forecasting period, despite the major challenges that are 
looming up, and that there are no major ructions in international relations, especially 
between the US and China / North Korea and Iran, which have a major impact on 
international trade and world GDP growth.  

 

The balance of risks to the UK 

Page 82

Agenda Item 13
Appendix A



 The overall balance of risks to economic growth in the UK is now to the upside though 
there are still residual risks from Covid variants - both domestically and their potential 
effects worldwide, and from various shortages. 

 

 There is relatively little domestic risk of increases in Bank Rate exceeding 0.50% in the 
next two to three years and, therefore, in shorter-term PWLB rates.  

 

Downside risks to current forecasts for UK gilt yields and PWLB rates currently 
include:  

 Mutations of the virus render current vaccines ineffective, and tweaked vaccines to 
combat these mutations are delayed, resulting in further national lockdowns or severe 
regional restrictions.  
 

 MPC acts too quickly in unwinding QE or increasing Bank Rate and causes UK 
economic growth, and increases in inflation, to be weaker than we currently anticipate.  

 

 The Government implements an austerity programme that supresses GDP 
growth. 

 

 Labour and material shortages do not ease over the next few months and further stifle 
economic recovery. 

 

 The lockdowns cause major long-term scarring of the economy. 

 

 UK / EU trade arrangements – if there was a major impact on trade flows and financial 
services due to complications or lack of co-operation in sorting out significant remaining 
issues.  

 

 A resurgence of the Eurozone sovereign debt crisis. The ECB has taken monetary 
policy action to support the bonds of EU states, with the positive impact most likely for 
“weaker” countries. In addition, the EU agreed a €750bn fiscal support package which 
has still to be disbursed.  These actions will help shield weaker economic regions in the 
near-term. However, in the case of Italy, the cost of the virus crisis has added to its 
already huge debt mountain and its slow economic growth will leave it vulnerable to 
markets returning to taking the view that its level of debt is unsupportable.  There 
remains a sharp divide between northern EU countries favouring low debt to GDP and 
annual balanced budgets and southern countries who want to see jointly issued 
Eurobonds to finance economic recovery. This divide could undermine the unity of the 
EU in time to come.   

 

 Weak capitalisation of some European banks, which could be undermined further 
depending on the extent of credit losses resulting from the pandemic. 

 

 German minority government & general election in September 2021. In the 
German general election of September 2017, Angela Merkel’s CDU party was left in a 
vulnerable minority position dependent on the fractious support of the SPD party, 
because of the rise in popularity of the anti-immigration AfD party. Subsequently, the 
CDU has done badly in state elections, but the SPD has done even worse. Angela 
Merkel has stepped down from being the CDU party leader but remains as Chancellor 

Page 83

Agenda Item 13
Appendix A



until the general election in 2021. Her appointed successor has not attracted wide 
support from voters and the result of the general election could well lead to some form 
of coalition government, though there could be a question as to whether the CDU will 
be part of it which, in turn, could then raise an issue over the tenure of her successor. 
This then leaves a question mark over who the major guiding hand and driver of EU 
unity will be.   

 

 Other minority EU governments. Austria, Sweden, Spain, Portugal, Netherlands, 
Ireland and Belgium also have vulnerable minority governments dependent on 
coalitions which could prove fragile and, therein, impact market confidence/economic 
prospects and lead to increasing safe-haven flows. 

 Major stock markets e.g., in the US, become increasingly judged as being over-
valued and susceptible to major price corrections. Central banks become 
increasingly exposed to the “moral hazard” risks of having to buy shares and 
corporate bonds to reduce the impact of major financial market selloffs on the 
general economy. 

 Geopolitical risks, for example in China, Iran or North Korea, but also in Europe and 
other Middle Eastern countries, which could lead to increasing safe-haven flows.  
 

 
Upside risks to current forecasts for UK gilt yields and PWLB rates: - 

 Longer term US treasury yields rise strongly and pull UK gilt yields up higher than 
forecast. 
 

 Vaccinations are even more successful than expected and eradicate hesitancy around 
a full return to normal life, which leads into a stronger than currently expected recovery 
in UK and/or other major developed economies. 

 

 The Bank of England is too slow in its pace and strength of increases in Bank Rate 
and, therefore, allows inflationary pressures to build up too strongly within the UK 
economy, which then necessitates a later rapid series of increases in Bank Rate faster 
than we currently expect.  
 

 

Page 84

Agenda Item 13
Appendix A



 
 
NORTH DEVON COUNCIL 
 
COUNCIL: 24 NOVEMBER 2021 
 
MID YEAR TREASURY MANAGEMENT REPORT 2021-22 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE STRATEGY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
HELD ON 1 NOVEMBER 2021  
 
Minute 79: Mid Year Treasury Management Report 2021-22 
 
RECOMMENDED: 
 

(a) That the changes to the prudential indicators be approved; 
(b) That the report and the treasury activity be noted. 

 

Page 85

Agenda Item 13b



This page is intentionally left blank



 

North Devon Council 

Report Date:  24 November 2021 

Topic:  Appointment of External Auditors from 2023-24 

Report by: Director of Resources and Deputy Chief Executive 

1. INTRODUCTION 

1.1 The provision of external audit in Local Government has undergone a 
number of fundamental changes in recent years, although limited to 
delivery arrangements as opposed to technical change of approach. 

1.2 External audit in Local Government was previously a responsibility of the 
Audit Commission, which was originally set up in 1983 for this purpose.  
The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 abolished the Audit 
Commission as at 31 March 2015 and its functions are now delivered via 
Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA), National Audit Office (NAO), 
Financial Reporting Council and the Cabinet Office. 

1.3 The arrangements for the future provision of external audit were also laid 
out in the 2014 Act part of which transferred the responsibility for 
appointing external audit back to the sector itself.  The current contracts 
for external audit are being overseen by PSAA and run through to the 
conclusion of the 2022-23 audits. 

1.4 This report considers what options are available to North Devon Council 
for the future provision on external audit services commencing with the 
2023-24 audit.  The report has been presented to the Governance 
Committee on 16th November 2021 and their recommendation is included 
within the minutes on this agenda. 

 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1. It is recommended that North Devon Council opts into the national scheme 

for auditor appointments from April 2023 and formally accepts the proposal 

from Public Sector Audit Appointments. 

 

3. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

3.1. There is a legal requirement to have an external audit and the legislation 

changed allowing a variety of options available to procure and select external 

audit firms.  Whilst such freedoms are generally welcomed it is recognised 

that in this tightly regulated area a source of national procurement by a 

provider appointed by the Secretary of State and supported by the Local 

Government Association (LGA) offers a beneficial and more effective process 

than North Devon Council undertaking alone.    

Page 87

Agenda Item 14



 
3.2. The provision of External Audit is covered by the Local Audit and 

Accountability Act 2014 and the Local Audit (Appointing Person) Regulations 

2015.  Under the legislation North Devon Council has to appoint its external 

auditor for the 2023-24 financial year before the end of December 2022. 

 

4. REPORT 

4.1. North Devon Council’s current external auditor is Grant Thornton UK LLP 

(GT) and this arrangement has been in place since 2018-19 when this 

Council opted into the current national scheme for auditor appointments for 

the five-year period commencing in April 2018; alongside 98% of eligible 

bodies who chose to opt in. 

4.2. Grant Thornton UK LLP (GT) will remain North Devon Council’s External 
Auditors until the conclusion of the 2022-23 audit and in order to comply with 
legislation North Devon Council must appoint an external auditor for the audit 
of the accounts for 2023-24 before the end of 2022 

 

4.3. The Act allows individual authorities to procure and appoint its own External 
Auditors independently.  However, operating under this arrangement requires 
the setting up of independent auditor panels.   

 

4.4. The Secretary of State has again specified Public Sector Audit Appointments 
(PSAA) as the appointing person for principal local government bodies, which 
gives them the role of appointing local auditors under a national scheme.  
What this means is that they will be able to procure external audit services at 
a national level for all those authorities who wish to opt into the scheme 
thereby removing the onus on individual authorities to act alone.   

 

4.5. Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) previously secured the necessary 
arrangements under the legislation and are supported by the Local 
Government Association (LGA).   They will appoint auditors for a period of 5 
years with effect from 1 April 2023.  Appendix A to the report sets out the 
role and what Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) will deliver as the 
appointed person. 

 

4.6. The experience from the last four years together with discussions with other 
Councils across Devon have led to a general consensus that opting in to the 
national scheme is far more practical and cost effective than attempting to set 
up individual or joint / partnership arrangements with groups of councils.  

 

4.7. North Devon Council has received the official offer to opt into the scheme 
provided by Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) and they require 
confirmation of whether North Devon Council wants to by 11 March 
2022.  In order to opt into the scheme the legislation requires approval of Full 
Council, of which the next meeting is being held on 24 November. 

Page 88

Agenda Item 14



 
 

5. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

5.1. The current cost of the external audit service provided by Grant Thornton UK 

LLP (GT) for 2020-21 was £57,999 (2019-20 was £50,599).  The fees back in 

2017-18 were £60,788; the final year before the current 5-year contracts 

were put in place. 

5.2. The service with effect from 1 April 2023 will be subject to a national 
procurement exercise and therefore the cost may differ to that currently 
budgeted for at present.  However, it is anticipated that opting into a national 
scheme could deliver financial benefits notwithstanding the savings made by 
not having to implement independent audit panels and the costs of procuring 
the services individually ourselves.  

 

6. EQUALITIES ASSESSMENT 

6.1. There are not any equalities implications anticipated as a result of this report.   

 

7. CONSTITUTIONAL CONTEXT 

7.1. Article 4.5 of Part 2  

 

8. STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY 

8.1. This report contains no confidential information or exempt information under 

the provisions of Schedule 12A of 1972 Act. 

 

9. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

9.1. The background papers are available for inspection and kept by the author of 

the report. 

 

10. STATEMENT OF INTERNAL ADVICE 

10.1. The author (below) confirms that advice has been taken from all 

appropriate Councillors and Officers:  

 

Jon Triggs, Director of Resources and Deputy Chief Executive 

 

 

Page 89

Agenda Item 14



This page is intentionally left blank



 

18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ 

 

 
22 September 2021 

 
To:       Mr Miles, Chief Executive 
       North Devon District Council 
 
 
Copied to: Mr Triggs, S151 Officer 

                 Mr Roome, Chair of Audit Committee or equivilent 

 

Dear Mr Miles, 

Invitation to opt into the national scheme for auditor appointments from April 2023 
 

I want to ensure that you are aware the external auditor for the audit of your accounts for 

2023/24 has to be appointed before the end of December 2022. That may seem a long way 

away but, as your organisation has a choice about how to make that appointment, your 

decision-making process needs to begin soon. 

We are pleased that the Secretary of State has confirmed PSAA in the role of the appointing 

person for eligible principal bodies for the period commencing April 2023. Joining PSAA’s 

national scheme for auditor appointments is one of the choices available to your organisation.  

In June 2021 we issued a draft prospectus and invited your views and comments on our early 

thinking on the development of the national scheme for the next period. Feedback from the 

sector has been extremely helpful and has enabled us to refine our proposals which are now 

set out in the scheme prospectus and our procurement strategy. Both documents can be 

downloaded from our website which also contains a range of useful information that you may 

find helpful.  

The national scheme timetable for appointing auditors from 2023/24 means we now need to 

issue a formal invitation to you to opt into these arrangements. In order to meet the 

requirements of the relevant regulations, we also attach a form of acceptance of our invitation 

which you must use if your organisation decides to join the national scheme. We have 

specified the five consecutive financial years beginning 1 April 2023 as the compulsory 

appointing period for the purposes of the regulations which govern the national scheme. 

Given the very challenging local audit market, we believe that eligible bodies will be best 

served by opting to join the scheme and have attached a short summary of why we believe 

that is the best solution both for individual bodies and the sector as a whole. 

I would like to highlight three matters to you: 

1. if you opt to join the national scheme, we need to receive your formal acceptance of this 

invitation by Friday 11 March 2022;  

Page 91

Agenda Item 14
Appendix A

https://www.psaa.co.uk/about-us/appointing-person-information/appointing-period-2023-24-2027-28/prospectus-2023-and-beyond/
https://www.psaa.co.uk/about-us/appointing-person-information/appointing-period-2023-24-2027-28/procurement-strategy/


2. the relevant regulations require that, except for a body that is a corporation sole (e.g. a 

police and crime commissioner), the decision to accept our invitation and to opt in must 

be made by the members of the authority meeting as a whole e.g. Full Council or 

equivalent. We appreciate this will need to be built into your decision-making timetable. 

We have deliberately set a generous timescale for bodies to make opt in decisions (24 

weeks compared to the statutory minimum of 8 weeks) to ensure that all eligible bodies 

have sufficient time to comply with this requirement; and 

3. if you decide not to accept the invitation to opt in by the closing date, you may 

subsequently make a request to opt in, but only after 1 April 2023. We are required to 

consider such requests and agree to them unless there are reasonable grounds for their 

refusal. PSAA must consider a request as the appointing person in accordance with the 

Regulations. The Regulations allow us to recover our reasonable costs for making 

arrangements to appoint a local auditor in these circumstances, for example if we need 

to embark on a further procurement or enter into further discussions with our contracted 

firms. 

If you have any other questions not covered by our information, do not hesitate to contact us 

by email at ap2@psaa.co.uk. We also publish answers to frequently asked questions on our 

website. 

If you would like to discuss a particular issue with us, please send an email also to 

ap2@psaa.co.uk, and we will respond to you.  

 

Yours sincerely 

Tony Crawley 

Chief Executive 

 

Encl: Summary of the national scheme 

 

Page 92

Agenda Item 14
Appendix A

mailto:ap2@psaa.co.uk
https://www.psaa.co.uk/contact-us/frequently-asked-questions/
https://www.psaa.co.uk/contact-us/frequently-asked-questions/
http://www.psaa.co.uk/supporting-the-transition/appointing-person/
mailto:ap2@psaa.co.uk


 

 

Why accepting the national scheme opt-in invitation is the best solution 

Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited (PSAA) 

We are a not-for-profit, independent company limited by guarantee incorporated by the Local 

Government Association in August 2014.  

We have the support of the LGA, which in 2014 worked to secure the option for principal local 

government and police bodies to appoint auditors through a dedicated sector-led national 

body.  

We have the support of Government; MHCLG’s Spring statement confirmed our appointment 

because of our “strong technical expertise and the proactive work they have done to help to 

identify improvements that can be made to the process”. 

We are an active member of the new Local Audit Liaison Committee, chaired by MHCLG and 

attended by key local audit stakeholders, enabling us to feed in body and audit perspectives 

to decisions about changes to the local audit framework, and the need to address timeliness 

through actions across the system. 

We conduct research to raise awareness of local audit issues, and work with MHCLG and 

other stakeholders to enable changes arising from Sir Tony Redmond’s review, such as more 

flexible fee setting and a timelier basis to set scale fees.  

We have established an advisory panel, which meets three times per year. Its membership is 

drawn from relevant representative groups of local government and police bodies, to act as a 

sounding board for our scheme and to enable us to hear your views on the design and 

operation of the scheme.  

The national scheme for appointing local auditors 

In July 2016, the Secretary of State specified PSAA as an appointing person for principal local 

government and police bodies for audits from 2018/19, under the provisions of the Local Audit 

and Accountability Act 2014 and the Local Audit (Appointing Person) Regulations 2015. Acting 

in accordance with this role PSAA is responsible for appointing an auditor and setting scales 

of fees for relevant principal authorities that have chosen to opt into its national scheme. 98% 

of eligible bodies made the choice to opt-in for the five-year period commencing in April 2018. 

We will appoint an auditor for all opted-in bodies for each of the five financial years beginning 

from 1 April 2023.  

We aim for all opted-in bodies to receive an audit service of the required quality at a realistic 

market price and to support the drive towards a long term competitive and more sustainable 

market for local audit. The focus of our quality assessment will include resourcing capacity 

and capability including sector knowledge, and client relationship management and 

communication. 

What the appointing person scheme from 2023 will offer 

We believe that a sector-led, collaborative, national scheme stands out as the best option for 

all eligible bodies, offering the best value for money and assuring the independence of the 

auditor appointment.  Page 93

Agenda Item 14
Appendix A



 

 

The national scheme from 2023 will build on the range of benefits already available for 

members: 

• transparent and independent auditor appointment via a third party; 

• the best opportunity to secure the appointment of a qualified, registered auditor;  

• appointment, if possible, of the same auditors to bodies involved in significant 

collaboration/joint working initiatives, if the parties believe that it will enhance efficiency;  

• on-going management of any independence issues which may arise; 

• access to a specialist PSAA team with significant experience of working within the context 

of the relevant regulations to appoint auditors, managing contracts with audit firms, and 

setting and determining audit fees;   

• a value for money offer based on minimising PSAA costs and distribution of any surpluses 

to scheme members - in 2019 we returned a total £3.5million to relevant bodies and more 

recently we announced a further distribution of £5.6m in August 2021; 

• collective efficiency savings for the sector through undertaking one major procurement as 

opposed to a multiplicity of smaller procurements;  

• avoids the necessity for local bodies to establish an auditor panel and undertake an auditor 

procurement, enabling time and resources to be deployed on other pressing priorities;  

• updates from PSAA to Section 151 officers and Audit Committee Chairs on a range of 

local audit related matters to inform and support effective auditor-audited body 

relationships; and 

• concerted efforts to work with other stakeholders to develop a more sustainable local audit 

market. 

We are committed to keep developing our scheme, taking into account feedback from scheme 

members, suppliers and other stakeholders, and learning from the collective post-2018 

experience. This work is ongoing, and we have taken a number of initiatives to improve the 

operation of the scheme for the benefit of all parties.  

Importantly we have listened to your feedback to our recent consultation, and our response is 

reflected in the scheme prospectus. 

 

Opting in 

The closing date for opting in is 11 March 2022. We have allowed more than the minimum 

eight-week notice period required, because the formal approval process for most eligible 

bodies is a decision made by the members of the authority meeting as a whole [Full Council 

or equivalent], except police and crime commissioners who are able to make their own 

decision.  

We will confirm receipt of all opt-in notices. A full list of eligible bodies that opt in will be 

published on our website. Once we have received an opt-in notice, we will write to you to 

request information on any joint working arrangements relevant to your auditor appointment, 

and any potential independence matters which may need to be taken into consideration when 

appointing your auditor. 

Page 94

Agenda Item 14
Appendix A

https://www.psaa.co.uk/about-us/appointing-person-information/appointing-period-2023-24-2027-28/prospectus-2023-and-beyond/


 

 

Local Government Reorganisation 

We are aware that reorganisations in the local government areas of Cumbria, Somerset, and 

North Yorkshire were announced in July 2021. Subject to parliamentary approval shadow 

elections will take place in May 2022 for the new Councils to become established from 1 April 

2023. Newly established local government bodies have the right to opt into PSAA’s scheme 

under Regulation 10 of the Appointing Person Regulations 2015. These Regulations also set 

out that a local government body that ceases to exist is automatically removed from the 

scheme. 

If for any reason there is any uncertainty that reorganisations will take place or meet the 

current timetable, we would suggest that the current eligible bodies confirm their acceptance 

to opt in to avoid the requirement to have to make local arrangements should the 

reorganisation be delayed. 

Next Steps 

We expect to formally commence the procurement of audit services in early February 2022. 

At that time our procurement documentation will be available for opted-in bodies to view 

through our e-tendering platform. 

Our recent webinars to support our consultation proved to be popular, and we will be running 

a series of webinars covering specific areas of our work and our progress to prepare for the 

second appointing period. Details can be found on our website and in the scheme prospectus.

 

Page 95

Agenda Item 14
Appendix A

https://www.psaa.co.uk/about-us/appointing-person-information/appointing-period-2023-24-2027-28/autumn-and-winter-webinars/
https://www.psaa.co.uk/about-us/appointing-person-information/appointing-period-2023-24-2027-28/prospectus-2023-and-beyond/


This page is intentionally left blank



NORTH DEVON COUNCIL:  

COUNCIL: 24 NOVEMBER 2021  

ENVIRONMENT - REPORT BY LEAD MEMBER FOR ENVIRONMENT 

 

On 9th November I attended a workshop on transition to a low carbon future which 

was hosted by 361 Energy and chaired by NDC’s sustainability and climate officer, 

Donna Sibley. I thought I’d share with you some of my observations from the 

workshop, which was a useful and informative day with practical steps parish and 

town councils can take to reduce their carbon footprint. A formal report on the 

workshop will be published by 361 Energy and circulated to councillors. 

Though the workshop was aimed at parish and town councils the actions to reduce 

carbon are just as applicable to other organisations. It was a surprise to discover that 

there was a global reduction in carbon through the Covid pandemic of just 7%. 361 

energy’s ambition is to reduce it by 50% in the next 3 to 4 years. 

The first thing councils were advised to do in order to be able to measure the 

reduction is to calculate a baseline, if not already done: the recommendation was to 

calculate it based on 2019 data. Once it is clear where carbon savings can be made 

it is important to engage all parties in the actions they can take: simple changes in 

behaviour can make a big difference, e.g. switching off lights, monitors, computers 

when they are not in use.  

Retrofitting public buildings to make them more energy-efficient can reduce carbon 

emissions by as much as 20%. Grants are available to support various carbon-

reducing initiatives..  

I was particularly interested in the presentation from North Devon Biosphere. They 

are encouraging individuals, community groups, parishes, town, and district councils 

to sign up to their Nature Recovery Declaration: Nature Recovery Plan - North 

Devon UNESCO Biosphere Reserve UK (northdevonbiosphere.org.uk). They also 

recommended that each council make their own plan for nature. 

For the team at the Biosphere partnership working is key, as is public engagement, 

e.g. for some people grass verges are cut too often and for others not often enough, 

trees evoke strong emotions and there should always be good reasons for felling or 

coppicing: the Forestry Commission approach is ‘Right Tree, Right Place, Right 

Reason’. 

Rivers across the country, as we know, are all suffering from pollution to some 

degree: the West Country Rivers Trust has a citizen scientists programme enlisting 

volunteers to help monitor water quality by taking samples. Beavers are being 

introduced to various rivers to help address problems with flooding. The Devon 

Hedge Group raise awareness and interest in Devon’s hedges and run courses in 

hedge maintenance. 

They have developed a peer-reviewed accreditation scheme for businesses called 

Biosphere Business Partner (BBP): a network for sharing ideas on conservation, 

Page 97

Agenda Item 16

https://www.northdevonbiosphere.org.uk/nature-recovery-plan.html
https://www.northdevonbiosphere.org.uk/nature-recovery-plan.html


local development, and awareness-raising. The benefits of signing up are inclusion 

in a network directory on the visitor website, use of the BBP logo, invitations to 

networking meetings and events; a newsletter; the ‘Biosphere Star Business’ award 

recognising achievements. They use the hashtag #togetherforourbiosphere and 

councils were asked to encourage businesses to sign up (there is currently no 

charge for accreditation). 

We also heard about actions 361 Energy are taking to help families in fuel poverty 

(definition: more than 10% of income spent on fuel bills). In Devon we have one of 

the highest rates in the country at 13% - in Ilfracombe Central Ward it is 21-22%. 

This is not just about reducing carbon but improving health. Presentations on 

community energy and transport rounded off the day. 

Actions to reduce carbon not only help to tackle the problems of climate change but 

help nature to recover. We can – and must - all do our bit: every little really does 

help. 

 

Councillor Netti Pearson 

Environment Lead 

Page 98

Agenda Item 16



 

Building Control Joint Committee - 4 November 2021 
 

1 
 

NORTH DEVON COUNCIL 
 

Minutes of a meeting of Building Control Joint Committee held at Barum Room - 
Brynsworthy on Thursday, 4th November, 2021 at 9.30 am 
 
PRESENT: Members: 

 
 Councillor Yabsley (Chair) 

 
 Councillors Chesterton, Deed and Tucker 

 
 Officers: 

 
 Head of Planning, Housing and Health, Building Control Manager, 

Accountancy Services Manager and Senior Solicitor and Monitoring 
Officer 
 

 Also Present: 
 

 Director of Place (Mid Devon District Council) and Accountant (Mid 
Devon District Council). 

 
11.     APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Paul Deal, Mid Devon District Council. 
 
12.                  TO APPROVE AS A CORRECT RECORD THE MINUTES OF THE               
                          MEETING HELD ON 8TH JULY 2021 (ATTACHED) 

 
RESOLVED, that the minutes of the meeting held on 8th July 2021 be approved as a 
correct record and signed by the Chair. 
 
13.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
There were no declarations of interest received. 
 
14. 2021/22 Q2 FORECAST BUILDING CONTROL PARTNERSHIP 

TRADING ACCOUNT 
 
The Joint Committee considered a report by North Devon Council Head of Resources 
(circulated previously) regarding the 2021/22 Q2 Forecast Building Control 
Partnership Trading Account.  
 
The Accountancy Services manager (NDC), gave the Committee the following 
summary: 
 

 Column one of the trading account showed the budget for each Council.  

 Column two showed the actuals expenditure and income. 

Page 99

Agenda Item 17a



 
Building Control Joint Committee - 4 November 2021 

 
 

 
2 

 

 Column three showed the percentage split of trade income between the two 
authorities, with the trading position for North Devon Council at £56% and Mid 
Devon District Council at 43%. 

 
He added that for revenue monitoring purposes shown in the reconciliation table there 
was a forecast surplus of £11K for North Devon Council and £12K for Mid Devon 
District Council. 
 
He added that since the publication of the agenda, there had been an adjustment to 
the Q2 forecast figures as officers hadn’t removed the depreciation costs for the IT 
system and that the revised figures would be circulated to the Joint Committee 
following the meeting. The actuals column three trading figures for both authorities 
were now as follows: 
 

 North Devon Council - £1,097. 

 Mid Devon District Council - £832. 
 
RESOLVED, that the report and the revision to the figures be noted. 
 
15.  BUILDING CONTROL BUSINESS UPDATE 
 
The Joint Committee considered a report by the Building Control Manager (circulated 
previously) regarding the Building Control Business update.  
 
The Building Control Manager advised that he had just returned from sick leave, so 
the report was prepared whilst he was unwell and as a result was not as detailed as it 
would usually be. 
 
He explained that the workload had reduced in July and August of 2021 and recovered 
in September before reducing again in October. However, the service was moving a 
long on budget during a slowness in the industry.  
 
Individual officer workloads remained high despite a reduction in applications in July 
and August as the decrease took time to filter through to impact day to day activity. 
 
One of the team’s surveyors retired in October 2021 and the vacancy had been filled 
via the appointment of the trainee, who had recently completed their apprenticeship 
and obtained a first class honours degree in Public Service Building Control. 
 
There had been some staffing issues due to sickness, with four surveyors within a 
team of nine having contracted Covid-19 on separate occasions. However, with all 
staff currently working from home there had been no risks to other members of staff 
and those affected were able to work from home once well enough to do so. 
 
As previously reported there was an application to the Magistrates Court for an order 
under Section 77 for the building Act regarding Rowan Cottage, Chittlehampton, which 
was heard and granted by the Magistrate on 28th September 2021. The authority was 
now waiting to see if the owner will take action. 
 

Page 100

Agenda Item 17a



 
Building Control Joint Committee - 4 November 2021 

 
 

 
3 

 

As anticipated with the transition to the new regime for Building Control under the 
Building Safety Regulator, Approved Inspectors were reviewing their operations and 
cleaning up their books. As a result the service was experiencing an increase in Initial 
Notice cancellations and reversions as Approved Inspectors return projects to the 
Local Authority that they were not able to bring to a satisfactory completion.  
 
In addition, Construction Industry Council Approved Inspector Register (CICAIR) who 
were currently responsible for monitoring Approved Inspectors had withdrawn 
approval of Celtech Consultancy Ltd and Campagna Ltd following their failure to meet 
the required standards during re-approval audit of their systems and processes. He 
advised that their licences would be valid until April 2022 to enable them to wind down 
their operations in a timely manner. He explained that the service had already received 
Initial Notice cancellations from Celtech Consultancy Ltd, who had some existing 
projects in that area. 
 
The Building Control Manager was currently exploring options to address the 
additional work and advised that one way to mitigate the situation would be to recruit 
two trainees to the service instead of one. 
 
In response to a question regarding the timescale for enforcement action if the owner 
does not respond regarding Rowan Cottage, Chittlehampton. The Building Control 
Manager advised that there was some confusion in the lead up to the hearing in that 
the defendant was non-responsive. Officers considered asking for an adjournment. 
However, the decision was taken not to and the North Devon Council’s solicitor had 
written to the court to ascertain how long the authority should wait prior to taking any 
further action, adding that it was usually 60 days. Reimbursement of the Council’s 
expenses would then be sought from the defendant. 
 
In response to a question regarding the opportunity to employ additional trainees from 
Petroc, the Building Control Manager advised that he would need to have a separate 
conversation with the Head of Planning, Housing and Health in relation to the 
suggestion as previous attempts to recruit trainees from Petroc had seen no 
applications. He added that the most successful recruitment in previous years had 
been via applicants that were already working within the industry. 
 
Councillor Deed advised that he had attended the graduation event at Petroc recently 
and that the Human Resources Director would be happy to discuss trainee 
opportunities with the Council. 
 
In response to a suggestion regarding the importance of establishing a working 
relationship with Petroc together with the suggestion that officers visit the college to 
explain the building control process, the Building Control Manager advised that he 
would be happy to be involved in such a process. 
 
The Head of Planning, Housing and Health added that at the current time, there was 
a challenge for technical roles across the board. He explained that there was a 
requirement to develop a wider strategy to recruit officers into service areas such as 
Building Control, Planning, Environmental Health and Housing. He added that the 
government were incentivising councils to recruit and train people through the 
government funded graduate scheme. The scheme allowed people to gain 

Page 101

Agenda Item 17a



 
Building Control Joint Committee - 4 November 2021 

 
 

 
4 

 

qualifications, which would be funded by the Council and then required to work for the 
Council for a period of time following their qualification or they would be required to 
repay the fees.  
 
The Building Control Manager advised that trainees required a lot of time investment, 
which was dependent on the level at which they were brought to the role, which 
inevitably put additional pressure on an already stretched service. 
 
The Director of Place, Mid Devon District Council echoed the comments made by the 
Head of Planning, Housing and Health, North Devon Council and welcomed the 
opportunity to explore how to address resources going forward. He added that from 
his previous experiences with Petroc that work experience placements had been very 
successful in allowing students to gain an insight into roles within the Building Control 
service. 
 
The Joint Committee discussed the following points: 
 

 The unfortunate situation regarding Building Inspectors losing their licence 
but also acknowledged the importance of ensuring that residents live in 
properties that were built to a safe and satisfactory standard.  

 The ongoing issue with the supply of building materials. 

 The aspirations to raise the standards with the risk being the speed of change 
together with the lack of available resources to inspect buildings. 

 The major shortage of Building Inspectors with only 3,500 currently working 
within the UK. 

 Agreed that there was a requirement to explore all avenues of recruitment 
potential. 

 
RESOLVED, that the report be noted. 
 
The Joint Committee expressed its congratulations to the member of staff on their 
achievement. 
 
16.  KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
 
The Joint Committee considered a report by the Building Control Manager (circulated 
previously) regarding Key Performance Indicators (KPIs).  
 
The Building Control Manager advised that the KPIs for the service were in a steady 
position.  
 
He provided an update in relation to the following areas: 
 

 The number of Building Regulation applications that were examined within a 
three week period was at 98% against a target of 95%. 

 The average time to first response in days was 7.5 against a target of 10. 

 Since the report was published, the figures for October had been produced 
and they showed a market share for the number of applications was 83% 

Page 102

Agenda Item 17a



 
Building Control Joint Committee - 4 November 2021 

 
 

 
5 

 

against a target of 75% and the Joint Committee was advised that the figure 
was the highest ever seen. 

 The market share for new housing completions was 39% against a target of 
40%. 

 The financial position indicated a surplus of £81K. 

 The number of applications received had reduced to 105 in October 2021. 
 
In response to a question regarding a slow in the housing market, the Building Control 
Manager advised that housing completions had slowed recently. 
 
In response to a further question regarding the service’s financial position, the Building 
Control Manager advised that many Councils were generating an income from their 
Building Control service. He added that when we face another recession there will be 
difficult years and the cost of the service delivery would increase. 
 
RESOLVED, that the report be noted. 
 
17. DATES AND LOCATIONS OF FUTURE MEETINGS. TO AGREE 

DATES AND LOCATIONS OF FUTURE MEETINGS OF THE 
COMMITTEE FOR 2021/22 

 
The Joint Committee noted the date of the next meeting, which was scheduled to be 
held on Thursday 10th February 2022. 
 
 
 
Chair 
The meeting ended at 10.16 am 
 
 
 

Page 103

Agenda Item 17a



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Governance Committee - 20 October 2021 
 

1 
 

NORTH DEVON COUNCIL 
 

Minutes of a meeting of Governance Committee held at Crematorium Meeting Room 
- North Devon Crematorium on Wednesday, 20th October, 2021 at 6.30 pm 
 
PRESENT: Members: 

 
 Councillor Roome (Chair) 

 
 Councillors Bushell, Henderson, Phillips, Topps, Turton and Walker 

 
 Officers: 

 
 Chief Executive, Director of Resources and Deputy Chief Executive, 

Solicitor and Data Protection Officer and Head of Governance 
 

   

24.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

Apologies were received from Councillors Campbell and Luggar. 
 

25.   DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS. 
 

There were no declarations of interest declared. 
 

26.   ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2020/21 
 

The Committee considered a report by the Senior Solicitor and Monitoring Officer 
regarding the Annual Governance Statement 2020/21 (circulated previously). 
 
The Head of Governance advised the Committee: 
 

 The Devon Audit Partnership (DAP) had given an opinion of Reasonable 
Assurance. 

 A series of recommendations had been presented to the Governance 
Committee which included items around Member Training and Code of 
Conduct, a review of the Corporate Plan Priorities and an update to the 
procurement strategy. 

 
In response to questions from the Committee, the Head of Governance confirmed 
that: 
 

 The Corporate Plan was being examined in detail with the Solicitor and Data 
Protection Officer and  

 The Corporate and Community Services team were reviewing the community 
engagement strategy. 

 
The Internal Auditor explained that their role included the provision of an annual 
assurance report which referenced a number of external, independent bodies, such 

Public Document Pack

Page 105

Agenda Item 17b



 
Governance Committee - 20 October 2021 
 

 

 
2 

 

as the ombudsman. Their opinion agreed with the overall picture presented by the 
Accounts. 
 
In response to questions from the Committee, the Director of Resources and Deputy 
Chief Executive advised that: 
 

 The DAP had audited the AGS and considered good practice at neighbouring 
Local Authorities and had incorporated this where applicable. 

 The Member Training programme was being reviewed. The training 
programme included a refresher for Governance, equality and diversity 
refresher, along with further training on the roles of Members 

 
RESOLVED that the Annual Governance Statement 2020/21 be noted 
and proceed to Council for consideration. 
 

27.   STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2020/2021 
 

The Committee considered a report by the Director of Resources and Deputy Chief 
Executive regarding the Statement of Accounts 2020/21 (circulated previously). 
 
The Director of Resources and Deputy Chief Executive highlighted the following 
points for the Committee: 
 

 The draft accounts would usually be signed off by the 31st of July each year, 
however this had been extended to the 30th September. The delay to this 
October meeting had been due to the Governance Committee not meeting on 
the 27th September 2021 as planned 

 An Unqualified opinion had been issued. 

 A previous forecast at quarter 3 of a net surplus of £28k had now been 
increased due to additional funds such as income from planning, increased 
rental income on Butcher’s Row, reduced spend on temporary 
accommodation and accompanying reductions in costs across the Authority. 

 £1.2m General fund reserve, and £16.3m earmarked reserves were achieved. 

 The earmarked reserves were artificially higher in 2020/2021 due to timing 
differences in the accounting treatment of Covid business rate relief from 
Central Government. 

 The Authority was in a strong financial position for 2021/2022 year. 

 The net worth on the balance sheet had shown a net decrease on 2019/20 
due to an increase in the valuation of the long term assets, including the value 
of the new leisure centre build and an increase in the net liability of the 
pension fund. 

 The deficit in the Pension fund was offset by a pension reserve and would be 
made good by the employees’ contributions over their employment period. 
The value of this fund was reassessed every three years. 

 The final opinion on the accounts was due from the Auditors next week (w/c 
25th October 2021). 

 There would be a slight change to the wording on the material uncertainty 
disclosure due to the valuation and replacement costs of assets. The increase 

Page 106

Agenda Item 17b



 
Governance Committee - 20 October 2021 
 

 

 
3 

 

in rebuild costs were due to the prices of building materials. A disclosure note 
had been added to the accounts in explanation 

 
In response to questions from the Committee, the Director of Resources and Deputy 
Chief Executive advised that: 
 

 Any cash balances held were protected as set out in the Treasury 
Management Strategy. Investments were held across a number of institutions 
to reduce risk. 

 The build of the Leisure Centre was covered by a fixed cost construction 
contract - reducing financial risk to the Authority. 

 
The Chair added that the general fund reserve balance for a District Council should 
be between 5% and 10%. NDC had achieved 9.1%. He commended the Chief 
Executive, Director of Resources and Deputy Chief Executive and the staff for their 
efforts in delivering the services within budget. 
 

RECOMMENDED that the Statement of Accounts 2020/21 be 
approved and proceed to Council for consideration. 
 

28.   EXTERNAL AUDIT - AUDIT FINDINGS REPORT 
 

The Committee considered a report by Grant Thornton regarding the External Audit 
– Audit Findings report (circulated previously). 
 
The External Auditor (PB) confirmed: 
 

 The date for the signing off of the accounts was set two months’ earlier 
than previously. The Auditors knew this would present a challenge. 

 A subset with the greatest chance of completion were chosen. NDC was 
part of that selection. 

 The cooperation between the Authority and the Auditors had been good. 

 There were no material errors. 

 Main issue had been material uncertainties - such as the pension liability 
and the asset valuations. Management had been challenged on those and 
it had been agreed that no changes were required to the accounts. 

 They were unable to issue the opinion until the Devon Pension Fund audit 
statement had been received. This was expected early next week (w/c 25th 
Oct 2021). Once this was received they would be able to sign off the 
assurance. The accounts would be signed-off by 31st October. 

 NDC were not alone in not yet having the accounts signed-off. As only 9% 
of Authorities had achieved this by the 30th September deadline. 

 The accounts would be signed off within the threshold in terms of risks. 
The Auditor had been impressed with the responses from both the officers 
and valuer. 

 
 
The Director of Resources and Deputy Chief Executive advised that the one 
recommendation within the audit had been reporting about projects such as the 

Page 107

Agenda Item 17b



 
Governance Committee - 20 October 2021 
 

 

 
4 

 

regeneration of High Streets and the transparency/updates of projects. Management 
had accepted these and it was noted that external experts had been involved in 
projects where the professional expertise was unavailable in-house. Such external 
professionals were assessed based on their expertise, price, and results from 
previous contracts.  
 

RESOLVED that the External Audit - Audit Findings Report be noted. 
 

29.   LETTER OF REPRESENTATION 
 

The Committee considered the Letter of Representation, presented by the Director of 
Resources and Deputy Chief Executive (circulated previously). 
 
The Director of Resources and Deputy Chief Executive explained that the Letter of 
Representation formally outlined to the External Auditors, the governance 
arrangements in place and the Authority’s responsibilities on the financial statements 
presented. The Letter was presented to the Committee in advance of the Full 
Council meeting which would take place following this meeting. The Letter was 
required as part of the final process for the approval of the Statement of Accounts for 
2020/21 
 
 

RECOMMENDED that the Letter of Representation be approved by 
Full Council. 

 
Chair 
The meeting ended at 7.16 pm 
 
NOTE: These minutes will be confirmed as a correct record at the next meeting of 
the Committee. 
 

Page 108

Agenda Item 17b



 

Licensing and Community Safety Committee - 19 October 2021 
 

1 
 

NORTH DEVON COUNCIL 
 

Minutes of a meeting of Licensing and Community Safety Committee held at Barum 
Room - Brynsworthy on Tuesday, 19th October, 2021 at 12.30 pm 
 
PRESENT: Members: 

 
 Councillor Tucker (Chair) 

 
 Councillors Biederman, Cann, Gubb, Henderson, Pearson, D. Spear, 

L. Spear and York 
 

 Officers: 
 

 Chartered Legal Executive, Public Protection Manager and Corporate 
and Community Services Officer 

 

14.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Bulled, Campbell, Chesters, 
Hunt, Orange and Yabsley. 

15.   DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS 
 

No declarations of interest were made. 

16.   TAXI BUSINESS REQUEST FOR ASSISTANCE/RELIEF 
 

The Chair apologised that the invite to the press and taxi representative had not 
been sent and that this item would be included on a future agenda of the Licensing 
and Community Safety Committee to allow them to attend.  Ahead of that, the item 
would be discussed at this meeting to allow Members to ask questions of the Public 
Protection Manager who would bring a report back to committee with the answers. 
 
The Public Protection Manager read out the letter (circulated previously), and gave 
members responses to the points raised in the letter as follows: 
 

 In relation to members of the public loitering waiting for a taxi the Police had 

no concerns and this hadn’t been reported to them as an issue. 

 

 In relation to the drop of numbers of Drivers entering the trade the statistics 

did show numbers had declined since 2011.  The number of new Hackney 

Carriage and Private Hire applications made for 2011 were 33, in 2017 it was 

31, in 2018 it was 32, in 2019 it was 27, in 2020 it was 21 and in the year 

2021 to date 20 applications to enter the trade had been made, so there was 

evidence of a decrease in numbers.  The reduction in numbers recently could 

be attributed to the Covid-19 pandemic. 

 

Public Document Pack

Page 109

Agenda Item 17c



 
Licensing and Community Safety Committee - 19 October 2021 

 
 

 
2 

 

 In relation to the application process, being cited as lengthy, the Council’s 

policy required a satisfactory enhanced Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) 

check.  A group 2 medical examination, a Driver and Vehicle Standards 

Agency (DVSA) Hackney Carriage and Private Hire assessment test, an 

internal competency test which included numeracy and geographical 

knowledge questions etc. and completion of a BTEC Level 2 Certificate in The 

Introduction to the Role of the Professional Taxi and Private Hire Driver.   

 

 In relation to the medical examinations the Public Protection Manager advised 

that this had been a problem for new applicants with the delay or refusal at 

GP surgeries to perform this type of medical due to concerns over Covid-19, 

therefore, a solution had been found whereby a private company in Exeter 

now largely carried out the group 2 medical examinations. 

 

 In relation to dropping the fees this could theoretically be undertaken but that 

the fee was set locally and were in line with the cost to the authority to issue 

them and monies would have to be found from elsewhere to offset loss of 

income. 

 

 Temporary licences could be issued but the Public Protection Manager 

highlighted a risk whereby conditions could not be attached to hackney 

carriage driver’s licences, solely a private hire driver’s licence. She explained 

the dual licence system currently utilised in terms of conditionality. 

 

 In relation to help with promoting the need for taxi drivers the Public 

Protection Manager advised she could speak to the Communications team to 

discuss what could be provided on the Council’s social media platforms in 

terms of advertising. 

In conclusion the Public Protection Manager advised that there was no 
straightforward solution to the points raised in the letter and this had been echoed by 
other authorities at a Devon Licensing Officers Group meeting of late. 
 
The Solicitor advised that any departure from the policy in place for the issuing of 
licences could mean the Council could be left unable to apply conditions. 
 
In response to questions from the Committee.  The Public Protection Manager gave 
the following responses: 
 

 The length of the process to become a driver could be prolonged if the driver 

was unwilling or required funding to undertake the relevant courses/tests.   

 

 The authority did not keep statistics on not submitting completed applications 

after making an initial enquiries, but that reasons for drop outs could be 

attributed to factors such as a driver failing one of the tests detailed above 

Page 110

Agenda Item 17c



 
Licensing and Community Safety Committee - 19 October 2021 

 
 

 
3 

 

(e.g. DVSA taxi test), or deciding that they would not pursue their application 

after receiving a copy of their Enhanced DBS certificate due to presence of 

convictions. 

 

 There was no issue with the BTEC course being run currently, albeit that this 

committee had considered issues with course provision on occasions in the 

past, and there was an element of vulnerability with this regard due to it being 

hosted by external stakeholders. 

 

 The most cost effective licence was a three year licence due to administration 

costs being reduced in comparison to a one year licence. 

 

 Investigation into the financial support offered to drivers during the Covid-19 

pandemic would be carried out by the Public Protection Manager.  It was 

understood that the licensing pages on the website had linked to the 

Economic Development teams pages where information on help available 

was publicised. 

 
RESOLVED, that the Public Protection Manager be requested to provide a report to 
the November 2021 meeting of the Committee which would detail: 
 

(a) Whether the process to obtain a licence could be streamlined without 

compromising on safety and suitability of drivers to passengers 

 

(b) If after site visits it could be ascertained whether there were problems with 

shortages of drivers at particular times 

 
(c) How the Council’s fees compared with neighbouring authorities 

 

 

(d) What support the Council had offered to drivers affected by loss of income 

during the Covid-19 lockdowns 

 

(e) Whether the Council could use its communications team to promote uptake of 

drivers to the trade. 

 
 
 

17.   GAMBLING STATEMENT OF PRINCIPLES 
 

The Committee considered a report by the Public Protection Manager (circulated 
previously) regarding the Gambling Statement of Principles. 
 

Page 111

Agenda Item 17c



 
Licensing and Community Safety Committee - 19 October 2021 

 
 

 
4 

 

The Public Protection Manager advised that the low number of responses had been 
a cause for concern but after having attended a Gambling Commission meeting of 
seaside authorities and speaking to delegates she was reassured that the response 
rate was normally low and, therefore, not unusual.  The responses received had 
been provided at Appendix A.  One comment made about the risk of compliance 
assessments being inconsistent and thus it was reassuring that the policy had 
already made provision for a new insertion around the expectations of compliance 
inspections.  Paragraph 4.13 of the agenda report also detailed a proposed 
amendment to the draft Statement of Principles around premises location and this 
could be seen in the revised policy document at Appendix B. 
 
RESOLVED, that the feedback from the consultation exercise be noted. 
 
RECOMMENDED, that Strategy and Resources Committee approve the revised 
Gambling Statement of Licensing Principles policy at its November 2021 meeting 
and that it recommend the adoption of the policy to full council. 
 
Chair 
The meeting ended at 1.40 pm 
 
NOTE: These minutes will be confirmed as a correct record at the next meeting of 
the Committee. 
 

Page 112

Agenda Item 17c



 

Planning Committee - 13 October 2021 
 

1 
 

NORTH DEVON COUNCIL 
 

Minutes of a meeting of Planning Committee held at Barnstaple Rugby Club Main 
Room - Barnstaple Rugby Club on Wednesday, 13th October, 2021 at 10.00 am 
 
PRESENT: Members: 

 
 Councillor Ley (Chair) 

 
 Councillors Davies, Fowler, Gubb, Jenkins, Mack, Mackie, Prowse, 

D. Spear, L. Spear, Tucker, Walker(substitute for Councillor Leaver) 
and Yabsley 
 

 Officers: 
 

 Service Manager (Development Management) (MB), Lead Planning 
Officer (Majors) (JW), Lead Officer (South) (JM), Senior Planning 
Officer (DB), Senior Planning Officer (SM) and Chartered Legal 
Executive (HP). 
 

 Also Present: 
 

 Councillors Henderson and Worden.   
   

58.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Chesters, Crabb and Cllr 
Leaver, who appointed a substitute, Councillor Walker, to attend in her place. 
 

59.   TO APPROVE AS CORRECT RECORDS THE MINUTES OF THE 
MEETINGS HELD ON 1ST SEPTEMBER AND 8TH SEPTEMBER 
2021 
 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meetings held on 1st September 2021 and 
8th September 2021 (circulated previously) be approved as correct records 
and signed by the Chair.  

 

60.   ITEMS BROUGHT FORWARD WHICH IN THE OPINION OF THE 
CHAIR SHOULD BE CONSIDERED BY THE MEETING AS A 
MATTER OF URGENCY 
 

The Chair advised that following the conclusion of the meeting, the Committee 
members were invited to discuss the requirement for a site visit. 
 

61.   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 
 

The following declarations of interest were announced: 
 

Public Document Pack

Page 113

Agenda Item 17d



 
Planning Committee - 13 October 2021 

 
 

 
2 

 

Councillor Davies Planning application 73872: prejudical interest as the 
Agent for the application.  
 

 

62.   71251: LAND OFF NADDER LANE, SOUTH MOLTON DEVON 
 

 
The Committee considered a report by the Lead Planning Officer (South) (circulated 
previously). 
 
The Lead Planning Officer (Majors) addressed the Committee and advised that: 
 

 The location of the site, which was for 187 dwellings, was to the western side 
of South Molton. It was an infill site between two existing sites to the North 
and South. 

 The site was on 7.93 hectares of agricultural land. 

 Following discussions with the Ecologist it was agreed that the two existing 
Linhays on the site (which provided roosting for owls) would be offset with the 
provision of an owl roost in the existing trees. 

 The new dwellings would be at distances of between 20m and 33m from the 
existing dwellings along West Park. 

 The dwellings were 1.5 storeys, and 2 storeys high, and were of a range of 
styles and roof types. Drawings of the street view showing the variety of 
dwelling styles was presented to the Committee.  

 Each dwelling would have access to car parking and an enclosed rear garden. 

 20% affordables were proposed. This included 75% social rent housing, and 
25% shared ownership properties. 

 The proposals provided 33 dwellings per hectare, which was considered a 
reasonable density of development. 

 
Marc Cornelius (South Molton Town Council) addressed the Committee.  
 
The Corporate and Community Services Officer read a statement from Stan Colman 
(objector) to the Committee. 
 
David Johnson, Herbert Cromack and David Winter (Supporters) addressed the 
Committee. 
 
The Corporate and Community Services Officer read statements from Lyn Winter 
and Derry Hodgson (objectors) to the Committee. 
 
Jamie Grant of Wainhomes, (applicant), addressed the Committee. 
 
Councillors Henderson and Worden addressed the Committee as Ward Members. 
 
In response to the representations made, the Lead Planning Officer (Majors) 
advised: 
 

Page 114

Agenda Item 17d



 
Planning Committee - 13 October 2021 

 
 

 
3 

 

 A Viability assessment had been independently assessed and the best 
proposal had been presented. 

 South West Water had raised no objections. 

 DCC Highways had raised no objections or concerns. 

 The officers had secured design changes but there was no policy reason or 
amenity reason to require single storey dwellings. 

 All representations were available on the Council’s website. 

 There had been two rounds of public consultation and site notices had been 
placed on site by the Lead Planning Officer (Majors). 

 The development as a whole was considered acceptable. 
 
In response to questions from the Committee, the Lead Planning Officer (Majors) 
advised: 
 

 A refuse plan was included in the application. 

 There would be visual clues within the road design throughout the site to 
clarify that it was a residential area, rather than a fast track through the site. 

 Although the site was car-lead (as many residents would require spaces for 
vehicles) there would be strong pedestrian and cycle tracks throughout. 

 The design and access statement was in keeping with the traditional style of      
South Molton, eg, grey slate-coloured roofs. 

 The amended layout showed the green routes through the site.  

 There was no requirement for the scheme to be re-examined by the design 
panel. 

 When previously assessed, the Linhays were not considered to be of a quality 
to deem them suitable for protection/listing. The assessment was carried out 
over 15 years ago. 

 The site was allocated for development within the Joint Local Development 
Plan. 

 The responsibility for the Orchard would be that of the management company. 
 
In response to a question about viability of sites, and the provision of affordable 
housing, the Service Manager (Development Management) confirmed that viability 
would be scrutinised further as part of the review process of the Joint Local 
Development Plan. She confirmed that the Authority was tied by legislation. 
 

RESOLVED (12 for, 0 against, 1 abstained) that the application be 
APPROVED as recommended subject to the following Viability Assessment 
AVA2 Section 106 Option 1 being agreed with the amendment as follows;  
Option 1: 71% of Financial Contributions, with the Waste Management and 
Recycling contribution being £0, and the proposed contribution of £4,829 
being added to the Medical Centre contribution, which would now total 
£60,749. 

 

63.   ADJOURNEMENT OF MEETING 
 

RESOLVED that it being 11.44 a.m. the meeting be adjourned for a six minute 
comfort break and reconvene at 11.50 a.m. 

Page 115

Agenda Item 17d



 
Planning Committee - 13 October 2021 

 
 

 
4 

 

 
RESOLVED, that it being 11.50 a.m. the meeting continue in order for the 
remaining business to be transacted. 

 

64.   72194: GREENWOOD FARM, SOUTH MOLTON, DEVON, EX36 
3PE 
 

The Committee considered a report by the Planning Officer (DB) (circulated 
previously). 
 
The Planning Officer addressed the Committee and advised that: 
 

 The existing dwelling had been granted temporary permission in 2011. It had 
been occupied by the applicant since that date. 

 Previous applications had been unsuccessful due to the period of occupation 
and the notice period given. 

 The presentation showed the dwelling was a single storey timber structure 
used as a residence for an agricultural worker. 

 The dwelling was used as a home for the applicant who was running a 
business from the dwelling – and ran a calf rearing business. Numbers of 
livestock on the holding were confirmed. 

 External expert advice was sought on the case to provide the functional needs 
assessment. It was deemed that the care for the heifers was not the sole 
interest of the business, nor only source of income, as the majority of the 
income was provided by contracting works. . The conclusion of the 
assessment was that not all elements of the applicants work should be used 
to determine a functional need. Whilst there were different figures for the SMD 
hours it was concluded that the evidence was insufficient to support a 
functional need. 

 Queries over the costings provided by the applicant as part of the accounts, 
and the fact the accounts did not appear to be audited, resulted in the officers 
being unable to conclude that the business was ‘well established and 
profitable”. The removal of the farrier work etc would mean the business 
would be at a break even or loss situation. 

 The business needed to demonstrate a functional and profitable business in 
order for the Authority to justify the essential need for the applicant to be 
resident on-site.  

 
Councillor Worden, Leader of NDC, (supporter), Phillip Carr (applicant), Nigel Downe 
(supporter), Rex Milton (Parish Council Representative) and Graham Townsend 
(agent) addressed the Committee. 
 
Service Manager (Development Management) (MB) addressed the Committee and 
reconfirmed that the decision had to be evidence-based and the recommendation 
had been made based on expert advice. 
 
The Chair addressed the Committee (as Ward Member). 
 

Page 116

Agenda Item 17d



 
Planning Committee - 13 October 2021 

 
 

 
5 

 

RESOLVED (unanimous) that the application be APPROVED subject to: 

(a) a standard occupancy condition and S106 Agreement to tie the land to the 
dwelling 

(b) That Mr Downe (expert agricultural witness) be requested to provide to the 
Planning Authority a written copy of his statement to the Committee prior to the 
decision notice being issued. 

In reaching its decision, the Committee approved the application for the 
following reasons: 

1. As there was sufficient information to properly analyse the functional 
needs of the Farm, both by reference to a Standard Man Days or Standard 
Man Hours calculation and review of the practical processes relating to the 
farming activities. In light of the above the policy test for a permanent 
dwelling or continued use of the mobile home beyond the consent period 
had therefore been established. The proposed development was therefore 
considered to be justified development in the Countryside and supported 
by Policies ST07 and DM28 of the North Devon and Torridge Local Plan 
Rural Workers Dwelling Supplementary Planning Document and 
Paragraph 79 of The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF). 

2. The Committee considered that there was sufficient justification to 
demonstrate a viable business. The business could be considered to be 
profitable and fulfilled the criteria of one year’s profit in the last three 
trading years, when considering the elements of the business that formed 
the functional requirement to support the delivery of a residential unit. The 
development was therefore considered a justified unit of accommodation 
in the open countryside supported by Policies ST07 and DM28 of the 
North Devon and Torridge Local Plan Rural Workers Dwelling 
Supplementary Planning Document and Paragraph 79 of the NPPF. 

3. In addition the Committee also recognised the sustainable nature of the 
business and considered that it was supported in this respect by the NPPF 
key thread supporting sustainable business and industry which was 
recognised as a Material Planning Consideration. 

 
 

65.   73430: LAND TO THE WEST OF THE JUNCTION OF MANOR 
ROAD AND VICARAGE ROAD, LANDKEY, BARNSTAPLE, 
DEVON, EX32 0JB 
 

The Committee considered a report by the Senior Planning Officer (SM) (circulated 
previously). 
 
The Senior Planning Officer addressed the Committee and advised that: 
 

 An update on the information on page 2 of the report: that application 73809 
had now been approved. 

Page 117

Agenda Item 17d



 
Planning Committee - 13 October 2021 

 
 

 
6 

 

 The application site was the corner plot to the west of the junction with Manor 
Road. 

 The site was within the conservation area. 

 The site plan now showed the new proposed access at a lower level. The 
boundary section plan showed the cut back of the land for wider visibility 
splay. 

 DCC Highways raised no objections. 

 The plans were considered acceptable in terms of outside amenity space. 

 Provision of a bat and bird box on each dwelling would provide a net gain in 
biodiversity. 

 
RESOLVED (unanimous) that the application be APPROVED as 
recommended by the Senior Planning Officer. 

 

66.   73872: WILSONS TENEMENT, CHULMEIGH, DEVON, EX18 7EG 
 

Councillor Davies re-declared his prejudicial interest as the Agent for the application 
and left the meeting during the consideration of the application. 
 
The Committee considered a report by the Senior Planning Officer (JM) (circulated 
previously). 
 
The Senior Planning Officer addressed the Committee and presented the Committee 
with the location plans, floor and elevation plans of the proposed extension, and 
photographs of the existing site. She advised the Committee that the application 
complied with the Authority’s policies. 
 

RESOLVED (unanimous) that the application be APPROVED as 
recommended by the Senior Planning Officer. 
 

 
 
 

67.   APPEALS REPORT 
 

Councillor Davies re-joined the meeting. 
 
The Committee noted a report by the Senior Planning Support Officer   (circulated 
previously) regarding planning and enforcement appeal decisions received since 
those reported at the last meeting of the Committee. 
 
 
Chair 
The meeting ended at 1.00 pm 
 
NOTE: These minutes will be confirmed as a correct record at the next meeting of 
the Committee. 
 

Page 118

Agenda Item 17d



 

Strategy and Resources Committee - 4 October 2021 
 

1 
 

NORTH DEVON COUNCIL 
 

Minutes of a meeting of Strategy and Resources Committee held at Barum Room - 
Brynsworthy on Monday, 4th October, 2021 at 10.00 am 
 
PRESENT: Members: 

 
 Councillor Worden (Chair) 

 
 Councillors Knight, Lane, Lofthouse, Patrinos, Pearson, Prowse and 

L. Spear 
 

 Officers: 
 

 Chief Executive, Director of Resources and Deputy Chief Executive, 
Solicitor and Data Protection Officer, Parking Manager and 
Sustainability and Climate Officer 
 

 Also Present: 
 

 Councillors Jenkins, D. Spear and Tucker 
 
   
 

67.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Wilkinson and Yabsley. 

68.   TO APPROVE AS A CORRECT RECORD THE MINUTES OF THE 
MEETING HELD ON 6 SEPTEMBER 2021 (ATTACHED). 
 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 6 September 2021 (circulated 
previously) be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair. 

69.   ITEMS BROUGHT FORWARD WHICH IN THE OPINION OF THE 
CHAIR SHOULD BE CONSIDERED BY THE MEETING AS A 
MATTER OF URGENCY. 
 

(a) Consultation on Changes to Link Services in North Devon 
 
Councillor Worden encouraged Members of the Committee to respond to  Devon 
County Council’s consultation on changes to the Link Services in North Devon if they 
had not done so already. 
 

(b) Informal Briefing 
 

He requested that Group Leaders remain behind following the conclusion of the 
formal Committee meeting. 

70.   DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS. 
 

Public Document Pack

Page 119

Agenda Item 17f



 
Strategy and Resources Committee - 4 October 2021 

 
 

 
2 

 

There were no declarations of interest received. 

71.   REVIEW OF OVERSIZED VEHICLE PARKING 
 

The Committee considered a report by the Parking Manager (circulated previously) 
regarding a review of oversized vehicle parking. 
 
The Director of Resources and Deputy Chief Executive highlighted the following: 
 

 A review had been undertaken following a notice of motion presented to 
Council on 26 September 2018 by Councillor Tucker requesting officers to 
look at the issue of enforcing larger vehicles overhanging bays and whether 
there was a justification in an increase of the number of oversized bays or the 
relining of all existing car parks to accommodate. 

 The Parking Manager had reviewed the data over the past 2 years following 
work that had been commenced by the previous Parking Manager. 

 The occupancy of all car parks across Barnstaple, Ilfracombe and South 
Molton had been and continued to be currently very high especially in light of 
increased visitor numbers to the area through a much longer seasonal period.  
This trend was expected to continue.   

 A schedule of planned works and maintenance that required immediate 
attention had been discussed by the Parking Manager and Property 
Maintenance Officer in September 2021. This had identified a need for some 
oversized bay parking in a small number of Council car parks but was not 
considered a high priority at this time. It was not viable to add larger bays in 
all NDC car parks as there was not capacity for this. 

 These planned works needed to be undertaken in a pragmatic manner. 

 An analysis of penalty charge notices issued between January 2018 and 
September 2021 had been carried out.  The data had shown that a small 
percentage of all penalty charge notices issued were for not parking correctly 
within the markings of a bay or space. 

 The current data showed that there was not a significant enough issue to 
justify the cost of relining all parking bays. Doing so throughout all car parks 
would result in losing a substantial amount of car parking. An example being 
Ilfracombe where this would exacerbate the issues already present due to 
demand exceeding supply in these car parks. 

 Provision for oversized vehicles in towns within the North Devon District area 
already existed. Larger bays were currently offered at Barnstaple – Bear 
Street, North Walk and Seven Brethren Lorry/Van Park Ilfracombe – 
Brookdale and Hillsborough South Molton – South Molton Central and Lorry 
Park. 

 There was a need to improve signage to advise of the larger bays available in 
those car parks. 

 A number of new projects being delivered involved the provision of car 
parking and with the early involvement with the Parking, Property and 
Technical teams could provide opportunities to identify potential areas for 
larger parking bays and needed to be considered as part of the wider 
strategy. 

 

Page 120

Agenda Item 17f



 
Strategy and Resources Committee - 4 October 2021 

 
 

 
3 

 

In response to questions, the Director of Resources and Deputy Chief Executive and 
Parking Manager advised the following: 
 

 The Civil Enforcement Officers advised car park users of any potential 
contraventions in the first instance with a “warning” notice, followed by a 
penalty charge notice if the vehicle was in contravention again. However if the 
car park user was causing an obstruction, then a penalty charge notice would 
be issued. Car park users were also advised of the location of larger parking 
bays. 

 A review of signage in car parks and signage when driving into the town 
centres was already underway. 

 A list of the number and location of oversized parking spaces would be 
provided to Members. 

 
RESOLVED: 
 

(a) That the contents of the report be noted; 
(b) That a further report be brought back to the Committee at the appropriate time 

to determine priorities on the future strategy of car parking in North Devon 
including asset utilisation, signage, pricing and options for customers to pay 
for parking usage. 

72.   ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY 
 

The Committee considered a report by the Sustainability and Climate Officer 
(circulated previously) regarding the revised Environmental Policy. 
 
Councillor Lofthouse, Lead Member for Climate Change presented the revised 
Environmental Policy to the Committee. 
 
RESOLVED that the revised Environmental Policy be endorsed. 

73.   CONSULTATION ON THE POWERS OF THE POLICE AND CRIME 
COMMISSIONER 
 

The Chief Executive advised the Committee that the Ministry of Housing, 
Communities and Local Government was carrying out consultation of the powers of 
the Police and Crime Commissioner.  A link to the consultation had been previously 
circulated to the Committee.  The Police and Crime Commissioner statutory powers 
were similar to those powers given to Local Authorities’ prior to 2011 i.e. specific 
powers set in legislation or directly incidental to powers and their functions. The 
Government’s view was that these powers were too restrictive.  Consultation was 
being undertaken on two options: 
 

(1) Police and Crime Commissioner to have a general power of competence 
(same as Local Authorities’) 

(2) Police and Crime Commissioner to have a wider functional power of 
competence (similar to Fire Authorities’) 

 
He advised that the consultation would end on 27 October 2021 and that Local 
Authorities’ were being invited to submit a response.  He recommended that the 

Page 121

Agenda Item 17f



 
Strategy and Resources Committee - 4 October 2021 

 
 

 
4 

 

Council’s response to the consultation was to put forward that the Police and Crime 
Commissioner have a wider functional power of competence as there was a need for 
Local Authorities to continue to work as a partner.  Other Local Authorities were also 
supporting this option. 
 
RESOLVED that the response to the consultation on the powers of the Police and 
Crime Commissioner put forward that the Council strongly disagrees with the Police 
and Crime Commissioner having a general power of competence. 
 
Chair 
The meeting ended at 10.26 am 
 
NOTE: These minutes will be confirmed as a correct record at the next meeting of 
the Committee. 
 

Page 122

Agenda Item 17f



 

Strategy and Resources Committee - 1 November 2021 
 

1 
 

NORTH DEVON COUNCIL 
 

Minutes of a meeting of Strategy and Resources Committee held at Barum Room - 
Brynsworthy on Monday, 1st November, 2021 at 10.00 am 
 
PRESENT: Members: 

 
 Councillor Worden (Chair) 

 
 Councillors Lane, Lofthouse, L. Spear, Wilkinson and Yabsley 

 
 Officers: 

 
 Chief Executive, Director of Resources and Deputy Chief Executive, 

Solicitor and Data Protection Officer, Museum Manager, Public 
Protection Manager, Accountancy Services Manager, Head of 
Governance and Project and Procurement Officer 
 

 Also Present: 
 

 Councillors Biederman and D. Spear 
 
   
 

74.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Knight, Patrinos, Pearson and 
Prowse. 

75.   TO APPROVE AS A CORRECT RECORD THE MINUTES OF THE 
MEETING HELD ON 4 OCTOBER 2021 (ATTACHED). 
 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 4 October 2021 (circulated 
previously) be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair. 

76.   ITEMS BROUGHT FORWARD WHICH IN THE OPINION OF THE 
CHAIR SHOULD BE CONSIDERED BY THE MEETING AS A 
MATTER OF URGENCY. 
 

(a) Spending Review Update 
 
The Director of Resources and Deputy Chief Executive provided the Committee with 
an update following the Government’s Autumn Budget and Spending Review 
announcements made on 27 October 2021. The announcements were slightly more 
positive for Local Government, however the full details had not yet been published 
for individual Councils. The headline announcement included 3% increase in real 
terms on spending powers which was positive and also included the ability to raise 
Council Tax levels. The review included £4.8 billion new funding for Local 
Authorities, which would equate to £1.6 billion per year. No announcement had been 
made in relation to the New Homes Bonus funding. The financial settlement for 

Public Document Pack

Page 123

Agenda Item 17f
Appendix A



 
Strategy and Resources Committee - 1 November 2021 

 
 

 
2 

 

individual Councils would be announced in December 2021.  This would be shared 
with Members and further Members Briefings on the budget would be arranged. 
 

(b) Housing Crisis 
 
The Chief Executive advised that following the meeting of the Housing Panel (of 
Policy Development Committee) on 21 October 2021, a further meeting would be 
convened within the next 3 weeks.  The first session was to gather evidence and the 
second session would debate and formulate recommendations.  This would produce 
a series of actions for the Council to act upon and issues that the Council could 
lobby the Government.  Officers were also having discussions with Homes England 
and undertaking a review of empty homes. 

77.   DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS. 
 

There were no declarations of interest received. 

78.   PERFORMANCE AND FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT QUARTER 2 
2021-22 
 

The Committee considered a report by the Director of Resources and Deputy Chief 
Executive (circulated previously) regarding the Performance and Financial 
Management for Quarter 2 of 2021/22. 
 
The Accountancy Services Manager highlighted the following: 
 

 The revenue budget for 2021/22 was approved at Council on 24 February 
2021 at £13,639,000. 

 As at 30 September 2021, the latest forecast net budget was £13,617,000, 
which produces a forecast budget surplus of £22,000. Details were shown in 
“Appendix A – Variations in the Revenue Budget”. 

 There was still pressure on the 2021/22 budget due to the Covid-19 pandemic 
with continued additional costs being incurred and forecast decline in core 
income sources. 

 Factored within the approved budget included a government grant in relation 
to Covid-19 pressures of £536,710 and also budgeted for £375,000 of 
additional costs and reduced income.  These were already incorporated into 
Appendix A along with the latest forecast for each service area. 

 The Government grant of £536,710 was approved and received and it was 
anticipated the Council would receive £80,000 re-imbursement for Quarter 1 
loss of Sales, Fees and charges, from the continued Government 75% 
income reimbursement scheme.  This was an estimate as the scheme had 
been extended to include the period April to June 2021 only. 

 At the end of 2020/21 the Council placed £375,000 into a Covid Budget 
management reserve to help mitigate any further adverse variances due to 
the pandemic in 2021/22.  This future protection was still available if required. 

 As at 31 March 2021 the Collection Fund reserve balance was £9,810,252 as 
detailed in paragraph 4.1.8 of the report. 

 An additional provision had been included within the forecast figures shown in 
Appendix A for the National Pay Award potentially being settled higher than 

Page 124

Agenda Item 17f
Appendix A



 
Strategy and Resources Committee - 1 November 2021 

 
 

 
3 

 

the original 1% budgeted amount. Negotiations were ongoing between the 
Unisons and the Employers and the outcome of these discussions would be 
included within the next report. 

 “Appendix B – Movement in reserves and Balances” detailed the movements 
to and from earmarked reserves in 2021/22. 

 Full details of the Strategic Contingency Reserve movements and 
commitments were detailed in “Appendix C – Strategic Contingency Reserve”. 

 The 2021/22 Capital Programme was detailed in “Appendix D – Capital 
Programme 2021/22”. 

 The Budget and Financial Framework report to Full Council on 24 February 
2021 outlined the Capital Programme for the 2021/22 financial year of 
£22,419,916. Project underspend of £917,121 was bought forward from 
2020/21 year and further variations of £1,479,065 were approved as part of 
the performance and financial management report to Strategy and Resources 
Committee, to produce a revised 2021/22 Capital Programme of £24,816,102. 

 Overall variations of £4,213,427 were proposed to the 2021/22 Capital 
Programme as detailed in paragraph 4.4.3 of the report. 

 Actual spend on the 2021/22 Capital Programme as at 30 September 2021 
was £4,292,304. 

 The overall Capital Programme for 2021/22 to 2024/25 was £46,151,018 and 
was broken down as detailed in paragraph 4.4.6 of the report. 

 The Programme of £46,151,018 was funded by Capital Receipts / Borrowing 
(£28,274,889), External Grants and Contributions (£16,154,193) and 
Reserves (£1,721,936). 

 It was recommended that the funds for the Fendering and Fish Stores 
Enhancements project of £163,650 be released from the 2021/22 Capital 
Programme. 

 Treasury Management as detailed in paragraph 4.5 of the report. 

 Debt Management as detailed in paragraph 4.6 of the report. 

 General debtors as detailed in paragraph 4.7 of the report. All Heads of 
Service had been tasked to review their outstanding debts and review 
processes for effective debt recovery.  In the first two quarters of this financial 
year no amounts were written off due to a backlog in the Finance Team. Since 
30 September 2021, 47 invoices have been written off to the value of £27,199 
to bring the write offs up to date. 

 Performance information as detailed in Appendix E of the report. 
 
In response to questions, the Director of Resources and Deputy Chief Executive 
advised the following: 
 

 The flood defence scheme at Seven Brethren had not been included within 
the capital programme as an approved scheme had not yet been brought 
forward for approval. 

 When the budget for 2021/22 had been approved, it had been anticipated that 
a new CCTV hub and upgrade of the system would have taken place which 
would have increased 3rd party uptake. This did not take place at the 
beginning of the year as expected and took place part way through the year.  
Therefore it was anticipated that the CCTV income would increase moving 
forwards. 

Page 125

Agenda Item 17f
Appendix A



 
Strategy and Resources Committee - 1 November 2021 

 
 

 
4 

 

 £9m had been included within capital programme for 2021/22 for the 
purchase of the strategic asset. £2m had been included within the capital 
programme 2022/23 for capital enhancements to be made to the strategic 
asset. 

 
In response to questions, the Accountancy Services Manager advised the following:  
 

 The collection of business rates achieved to date was 50.03%. It was 
anticipated that the collection rate would rise for the remainder of the year. 
 

RESOLVED: 
 

(a) That the actions being taken to ensure that performance was at the desired 
level be noted; 

(b) That the contributions to/from earmarked reserves be approved as detailed in 
section 4.2 of the report;  

(c) That the movement on the Strategic Contingency Reserve as detailed in 
section 4.3 of the report be noted. 

(d) That funds be released for the capital schemes listed as detailed in section 
4.4.10 of the report;  

(e) That the sections dealing with Treasury Management (section 4.5 of the 
report), and Debt Management (sections 4.6 and 4.7 of the report) be noted. 

 
RECOMMENDED:  
 
(f) That Council approve the variations to the Capital Programme 2021/22 to 

2024/25 as detailed in sections 4.4.3 of the report. 

79.   MID YEAR TREASURY MANAGEMENT REPORT 2021-22 
 

The Committee considered a report by Director of Resources and Deputy Chief 
Executive (circulated previously) regarding the Mid Year Treasury Management 
Report for 2021-22. 
 
The Head of Governance highlighted the following: 
 

 The Council was required through regulations issued under the Local 
Government Act 2003 to produce a mid year treasury report reviewing 
treasury management activities and the prudential and treasury indicators for 
2021/22. 

 The Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) for 2021/22 was 
approved by Council on 24 February 2021. 

 The underlying TMSS approved previously required revision in the light of 
economic and operational movements during the year. The proposed 
changes were set out in paragraph 4.1 of the report. 

 Section 4.3 of this report provided further information on the Capital Financial 
Requirement and the Operational Boundary. The change to the upper 
borrowing limit over 10 years would allow greater flexibility for long term 
borrowing. 

Page 126

Agenda Item 17f
Appendix A



 
Strategy and Resources Committee - 1 November 2021 

 
 

 
5 

 

 Revised estimated for capital expenditure and the changes since the capital 
programme had been agreed as part of the budget as detailed in paragraph 
4.2 of the report. 

 Changes to the capital financing requirement as detailed in paragraph 4.3 of 
the report.  Internal borrowing was most prudent and cost effective for the 
Council. 

 Annual Investment Strategy as detailed in paragraph 4.8 of the report. The 
Council held £40m of investments as at 30 September 2021 (£22.8m at 31 
March 2021) and the investment portfolio yield for the first six months of the 
year was 0.05% against the benchmark 7 day LIBID of -0.08%. 

 
In response to questions, the Head of Governance advised the following: 
 

 External borrowing was currently required for £0.5m at a rate of 1.43% 
interest.  Interest rates were kept under review. 

 
In response to questions, the Director of Resources and Deputy Chief Executive 
advised the following: 
 

 For larger projects such as the Leisure Centre, payment of interests on 
external borrowing was included within the budget at a higher level than 
the current interest rates to allow protection should interest rates increase.  
The Council produced borrowing models with its treasury advisors. 

 
RECOMMENDED: 
 

(a) That the changes to the prudential indicators be approved; 
(b) That the report and the treasury activity be noted. 

80.   MUSEUM OF BARNSTAPLE AND NORTH DEVON 
COLLECTIONS POLICY 
 

The Committee considered a report by the Museum Manager (circulated previously) 
regarding the Museum of Barnstaple and North Devon Collections Development 
Policy. 
 
The Museum Manager highlighted the following: 
 

 The Museum of Barnstaple and North Devon was an Accredited Museum. 
Museum Accreditation was a national scheme for maintaining and improving 
the quality of museums and is managed by Arts Council England. 

 Arts Council England required a number of policies and procedures to be in 
place. 

 The Collections Development Policy was required to follow a certain format 
and include specific wording as required by Arts Council England. 

 Although the Barnstaple and North Devon Museum Development Trust and its 
membership organisation the Friends of the Museum have a role in raising 
funds for and securing items for the collection, any donations received by this 
route were subject to the same decision-making process as any other 
donation to the Museum. 

Page 127

Agenda Item 17f
Appendix A



 
Strategy and Resources Committee - 1 November 2021 

 
 

 
6 

 

 There had been no changes to the specific wording required by Arts Council 
England since the last policy approved in 2015; however the collecting and 
disposal priorities had been reviewed to limit further expansion of the 
collections. This was outlined in sections 4.1 – 4.13 of the policy. 

 The museum was embarking on a programme of collections rationalisation to 
free up space in the stores. The likely disposals arising from this will be of 
unaccessioned items (excavated pottery, items in the handling collection and 
uncollected loans). Further rationalisation will require a formal disposal 
process as outlined in the policy sections 5.1 – 5.3. 

 
In response to questions, the Museum Manager advised the following: 
 

 The likely disposal of unaccessioned items included excavated pottery from 
the Barnstaple library site.  There were approximately 2,000 boxes. The 
Museum Development Trust was working with Devon County Council and the 
Arts Council England and it was anticipated that the number of boxes held 
would reduce by 95%. 

 
RESOLVED that the Collections Development Policy 2021- 2026 for the Museum of 
Barnstaple and North Devon be adopted. 

81.   APPROVAL AND RELEASE OF SECTION 106 PUBLIC OPEN 
SPACE FUNDS - BARNSTAPLE, CHULMLEIGH, NEWTON 
TRACEY AND WITHERIDGE 
 

The Committee considered a report by the Project, Procurement and Open Space 
Officer (circulated previously) regarding the allocation of section 106 public open 
space funds towards a number of projects within the District, across communities of 
Barnstaple, Chulmleigh, Newton Tracey and Witheridge. 
 
The Project, Procurement and Open Space Officer advised the following: 
 

 That since the publication of the report a request had been received from 
Witheridge Parish Council to defer consideration of the projects at Witheridge 
until such a time that was mutually agreed by both parties.  If the Committee 
was in agreement then the recommendation in paragraph 2.2 would be 
required to be amended to “…vary the capital programme by £139,635….” 

 Details of the projects as detailed in paragraphs 4.1, 4.2, 4.3, 4.4, 4.5 and 4.8 
of the report. 

 Financial details of the projects as detailed in paragraph 5 of the report. 
 
Councillor Biederman declared a personal interest as a Member of Horwood, 
Lovacott and Newton Tracey Parish Council. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 

(a) that following section 106 funds be allocated as follows: 
 

(i) £1,015 towards enhancement of the Square Fountain, Barnstaple (NDC).  

Page 128

Agenda Item 17f
Appendix A



 
Strategy and Resources Committee - 1 November 2021 

 
 

 
7 

 

(ii) £80,000 to Chulmleigh Playing Field Association towards the cost of a new 
pavilion extension.  

(iii) £38,000 to Chulmleigh Parish Council towards the enhancement of Davy 
Park, Chulmleigh.  

(iv) £6,096 to Newton Tracey Cricket Club towards the provision of a Non Turf 
Practice Bay.  

(v) £6,096 to Horwood, Lovacott and Newton Tracey Parish Council towards the 
provision of a Wooden Gazebo at Lovacott Playing Field.  

(vi) £8,428 towards Tarka Play Area, Barnstaple (NDC)  
 
(b) That consideration of allocation of section 106 funds to Witheridge Parish Hall 

towards the enhancement of the Village Hall and the enhancement of the 
Adventure Playground be deferred until such a time that was mutually agreed 
by both Witheridge Parish Council and the Council; 

 
RECOMMENDED: 

 
(c) That Council be recommended to vary the capital programme by £139,635 

and that funds be released, subject to a Funding Agreement upon such terms 
and conditions as may be agreed by the Senior Solicitor, for external projects. 

82.   GAMBLING STATEMENT OF PRINCIPLES 
 

The Committee considered a report by the Public Protection Manager (circulated 
previously) regarding the review of the Gambling Statement of Principles. 
 
The Public Protection Manager highlighted the following: 
 

 The Council was under a legal obligation to review its Gambling Statement of 
Licensing Principles on a three yearly basis. 

 A consultation exercise had been undertaken in respect of a draft proposed 
revision to the Council’s Gambling Statement of Licensing Principles, which 
contained minor variations to the existing statement.  The results of the 
consultation were contained in Appendix A of the report. 

 The main proposed amendments to the Statement of Principles as detailed in 
paragraph 4.7 of the report.  

 The low number of consultation responses was not unusual and nationally 
Local Authorities received a low number of responses to this type of 
consultation.  

 
In response to questions, the Public Protection Manager advised the following: 
 

 One consultation had been received from a member of the public and the 
other consultation received was from Gosschalks acting on behalf of the 
Betting and Gaming Council.  Gosschalks had also previously submitted a 
representation in respect of the Gambling statement of Principles 3 years ago. 

 
RECOMMENDED that the proposed revised Gambling Statement of Licensing 
Principles be recommended to Full Council (a tracked changes document 

Page 129

Agenda Item 17f
Appendix A



 
Strategy and Resources Committee - 1 November 2021 

 
 

 
8 

 

highlighting the amendments made to the current policy as contained in Appendix B) 
for approval. 
 
Chair 
The meeting ended at 10.42 am 
 
NOTE: These minutes will be confirmed as a correct record at the next meeting of 
the Committee. 
 

Page 130

Agenda Item 17f
Appendix A



 
NORTH DEVON COUNCIL 
 
COUNCIL: 24 NOVEMBER 2021 
 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE STRATEGY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
HELD ON 1 NOVEMBER 2021  
 
Minute 81 (c): Approval and Release of Section 106 Public Open Space Funds 
– Barnstaple, Chulmleigh, Newton Tracey and Witheridge 
 
RESOLVED: 
 

(a) that following section 106 funds be allocated as follows: 
 

(i) £1,015 towards enhancement of the Square Fountain, Barnstaple (NDC).  
(ii) £80,000 to Chulmleigh Playing Field Association towards the cost of a new 

pavilion extension.  
(iii) £38,000 to Chulmleigh Parish Council towards the enhancement of Davy 

Park, Chulmleigh.  
(iv) £6,096 to Newton Tracey Cricket Club towards the provision of a Non Turf 

Practice Bay.  
(v) £6,096 to Horwood, Lovacott and Newton Tracey Parish Council towards 

the provision of a Wooden Gazebo at Lovacott Playing Field.  
(vi) £8,428 towards Tarka Play Area, Barnstaple (NDC)  
 
(b) That consideration of allocation of section 106 funds to Witheridge Parish Hall 

towards the enhancement of the Village Hall and the enhancement of the 
Adventure Playground be deferred until such a time that was mutually agreed 
by both Witheridge Parish Council and the Council; 

 
RECOMMENDED: 

 

(c) That Council be recommended to vary the capital programme by £139,635 
and that funds be released, subject to a Funding Agreement upon such terms 
and conditions as may be agreed by the Senior Solicitor, for external projects. 

 
Minute 82: Gambling Statement of Principles 
 
RECOMMENDED that the proposed revised Gambling Statement of Licensing Principles be 
recommended to Full Council (a tracked changes document highlighting the amendments 
made to the current policy as contained in Appendix B) for approval. 

 
 
 
 

Page 131

Agenda Item 17f
Appendix B



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 29 September, 5 and 20 October 2021 (attached)
	Minutes
	Minutes , 05/10/2021 Council
	Minutes of Previous Meeting

	10 Report of the Leader of the Council
	12 Performance and Financial Management Quarter 2 2021-22
	North Devon Council
	1. INTRODUCTION
	2. RECOMMENDATIONS
	3. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS
	4. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
	5. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS
	6. EQUALITIES ASSESSMENT
	7. CONSTITUTIONAL CONTEXT
	8. STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY
	9. BACKGROUND PAPERS
	10. STATEMENT OF INTERNAL ADVICE

	Appendix A
	Appendix B
	Appendix C
	Appendix D
	Appendix D - Capital Programme 2021/22 to 2024/25

	Appendix E Performance Report Qtr 2 2122 V1.0
	Appendix E
	Table A: High level status of all service plan actions tracked on Pentana

	Table B: Service plan actions that have been cancelled authorised by SMT


	12b Report of meeting of the Strategy and Resources Committee
	13 Mid Year Treasury Management Report 2021-22
	North Devon Council
	1. Introduction
	2. Recommendations
	3. Reasons for Recommendations
	4. Report
	5. Resource Implications
	6. Equalities Assessment
	7. Constitutional CONTEXT
	8.  Statement Of Confidentiality
	9. Statement Of Internal Advice
	TM APPENDIX A 2021-2122
	APPENDIX A: ECONOMICs AND INTEREST RATES
	1. Economic Update
	A new era 
	Views on Global Economies
	China
	Japan
	World Growth


	2. Interest rate forecasts
	PWLB Rates
	Balance of Risks to the UK
	Downside risks to current forecasts for UK
	Upside risks to current forecasts for UK




	13b Report of meeting of the Strategy and Resources Committee
	14 Appointment of External Auditors from 2023-24
	North Devon Council
	1. INTRODUCTION
	2. RECOMMENDATIONS
	6. EQUALITIES ASSESSMENT
	7. CONSTITUTIONAL CONTEXT

	8. STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY
	9. BACKGROUND PAPERS
	10. STATEMENT OF INTERNAL ADVICE

	Appendix A - North Devon District Council invitation

	16 Report of Lead Member for the Environment
	17a Building Control Joint Committee
	17b Governance Committee
	Minutes

	17c Licensing and Community Safety Committee
	Minutes

	17d Planning Committee
	Minutes

	17f Strategy and Resources Committee
	Minutes
	Minutes Public Pack, 01/11/2021 Strategy and Resources Committee
	Minutes

	2021.11.24 Strategy and Resources recommendations




